POLK CITY

City Commission Workshop (6:00 pm)
City Commission Meeting (7pm)

April 16, 2024 Polk City Government Center
123 Broadway Blvd., SE

IS ESEE RS
CALL TO ORDER - Mayor Joe LaCascia
INVOCATION — Pastor Walter Lawlor, New Life Community Church
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE — Mayor Joe LaCascia
ROLL CALL - Assistant City Manager Sheandolen Dunn
ESTABLISHMENT OF A QUORUM
ELECT MAYOR
ELECT VICE MAYOR
APPROVE CONSENT AGENDA
PRESENTATIONS AND RECOGNITIONS
1. Proclamation for Water Conservation Month

OPPORTUNITY FOR PUBLIC COMMENT — ITEMS NOT ON AGENDA (limit
comments to 3 minutes)

AGENDA

1. PUBLIC HEARING - ORDINANCE 2024-03 - AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY
COMMISSION OF POLK CITY, FLORIDA; AMENDING ARTICLE 2 - REGULATIONS FOR
SPECIFIC DISTRICTS, SECTION 2.04.01, “ZONING DISTRICT SUMMARY TABLES” OF
THE UNIFORM LAND DEVELOPMENT CODE; CHANGING MINIMUM DEVELOPMENT
STANDARDS IN TABLE 5 FOR THE R-1 SINGLE FAMILY ZONING DISTRICT &
REDUCING THE MINIMUM REQUIRED LOT SIZE, LOT WIDTH AND SIDE YARD
SETBACK REQUIREMENTS WITHIN THE POLK CITY EXEMPTION AREA OF THE
GREEN SWAMP AREA OF CRITICAL STATE CONCERN; REPEALING ALL
ORDINANCES IN CONFLICT; PROVIDING FOR A BUSINESS IMPACT ESTIMATE,
SEVERABILITY, CODIFICATION AN EFFECTIVE DATE. First Reading

2. PUBLIC HEARING - ORDINANCE 2024-04 — AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY
COMMISSION OF POLK CITY, FLORIDA; AMENDING ARTICLE 2 - REGULATIONS FOR
SPECIFIC DISTRICTS, SECTION 2.04.01, “ZONING DISTRICT SUMMARY TABLES” OF
THE UNIFORM LAND DEVELOPMENT CODE; CHANGING MINIMUM DEVELOPMENT
STANDARDS IN TABLE 5 FOR THE R-2 SINGLE FAMILY ZONING DISTRICT &
REDUCING THE MINIMUM REQUIRED LOT SIZE WITHIN THE POLK CITY EXEMPTION
AREA OF THE GREEN SWAMP AREA OF CRITICAL STATE CONCERN; REPEALING
ALL ORDINANCES IN CONFLICT; PROVIDING FOR A BUSINESS IMPACT ESTIMATE,
SEVERABILITY, CODIFICATION AN EFFECTIVE DATE. First Reading



3. RESOLUTION 2024-03 - A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COMMISSION OF POLK CITY,
FLORIDA: APPROVING A CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT TO ALLOW FOR A SPECIAL
EVENTS FACILITY ON APPROXIMATELY 2.5 ACRES AT 545 ORANGE BOULEVARD
(PARCEL ID 252633-296500-045020), PROVIDING CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL,
PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING FOR CONFLICT; AND PROVIDING FOR
AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

4. Raftelis Rate Study — Proposed Agreement for Utility Rate Study and Capital Connection
Charge Study for Polk City

5. Polk County Library Cooperative Interlocal Agreement with Polk City

CITY MANAGER ITEMS

CITY ATTORNEY ITEMS

COMMISSIONER ITEMS
Commissioner Nichols
Commissioner Blethen
Mayor LaCascia

ANNOUNCEMENTS

ADJOURNMENT

Please note: Pursuant 1o Section 286.0105, Florida Statules, il a person decides to appeal any decision matd by the City Commission with tespect to any matter considered during his meeting, he or she will nead
1o ensure that a verbatim record of the p i is made, which record includes Ihe testimony and evideénce upan which the appeal is to be based. In accordance with the American with Disabilties Act, a persan
with disabililies needing any special {{ to icij in city i should contact the Office of the Cily Clark, Polk City Govermman! Center, 121 Bropdway, Polk City, Florida 33868, Telephone
(863) 984-1375. Polk City may take action on any matter during this meeting, including lems Lhat are nat set forth within this agenda. Minutes of the Cily C s may be from the City
Clerk's office. The minules are recorded, bul are not i rbalim. Persons requiring a verbalim ipl may amange with the Cily Clerk 1o duplicate the recordings, ar artange 10 have a court reporer
present at Lhe meeting. The cost of duplication and/or courl reporter will be at lhe expense of the requesting parly.




CONSENT AGENDA
April 16, 2024

MAY ALL BE APPROVED BY ONE VOTE OF COMMISSION TO ACCEPT CONSENT
AGENDA. Commission Members may remove a specific item below for discussion and add it
to the Regular Agenda under New or Unfinished Business, whichever category best applies to
the subject.

A. CITY CLERK
1. March 26, 2024 — Special City Commission Meeting

B. REPORTS

Building Permits Report — February/March 2024
Code Enforcement Report — March 2024
Financial Report — March 2024

Library Report — March 2024

Polk Sheriffs Report — March 2024

Public Works/Utilities Report — March 2024
Utility Billing Report -March 2024

NoOORWN=

C. OTHER



City Commission Meeting
April 16, 2024

CONSENT AGENDA ITEM: Accept minutes for:

1. March 26, 2024 — Special City Commission Meeting

____INFORMATION ONLY
X ACTION REQUESTED

ISSUE: Minutes attached for review and approval

ATTACHMENTS:

2. March 26, 2024 - Special City Commission Meeting
ANALYSIS: N/A

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Approval of Minutes




CITY COMMISSION MINUTES
March 26, 2024

]

Mayor LaCascia called the meeting to order at 6:00 pm.
Bob Baker, Planning Commission Chairman gave the invocation.
Those present recited the Pledge of Allegiance led by Mayor LaCascia.

ROLL CALL — Assistant City Manager Sheandolen Dunn

Present: Mayor Joe LaCascia, Commissioner Micheal T. Blethen, Commissioner
Charles Nichols, City Attorney Thomas Cloud and City Manager Patricia
Jackson

APPROVE CONSENT AGENDA

Motion by Commissioner Nichols to approve the February 20, 2024 (Regular City
Commission Meeting and Workshop) and the reports and other items on the Consent
Agenda; this motion was seconded by Commissioner Blethen.

Motion carried 3/0 by Voice Vote.

PRESENTATIONS/PROCLAMATIONS - None

PUBLIC COMMENTS

Bob Baker (525 Orange Boulevard) —discussed the Mock Planning Commission Meeting
held by Polk County. Key factors taken away from the meeting were Consistency and
Compatible. He will attend the April 12 Mock Planning Commission Meeting as well as
another on April 19.

ORDER OF BUSINESS

ORDINANCE 2024-01

Jennifer Codo-Salisbury presented a PowerPoint and discussion regarding the Future Land Use
Map Amendment in the Green Swamp Area of Critical State Concern is an applicant-initiated
Future Land Use Map Amendment in the Green Swamp Area of Critical State Concern “X’ to
change the Future Land Use from Convenience Center-X (CCX) to Residential Suburban-X
(RSX) on approximately 1.44 acres in Polk City, located at 9600 SR 33 (Parcel number 252631-
000000-044210). First Reading

City Attorney Cloud Read the short title only. Mayor LaCascia opened the Public Hearing.
No one spoke for or against this Ordinance. Mayor LaCascia closed the Public Hearing.

Motion by Commissioner Nichols to approve Ordinance 2024-01 Applicant Initiated
Future Land Use Map Amendment; this motion was seconded by Mayor LaCascia.



Roll Call Vote: Commissioner Nichols — aye, Commissioner Blethen — nay, Mayor
LaCascia — aye

Motion carried 2/1.

ORDINANCE 2024-02

Jennifer Codo-Salisbury discussed Ordinance 2024-02, Rezoning in the Green Swamp Area of
Critical State Concern is an applicant-initiated rezoning in the Green Swamp Area of Critical
State Concern “X” to change the zoning from Convenience Center-X (CCX) to Residential
Suburban-X (RSX) on approximately 1.44 acres in Polk City, located at 9600 SR 33 (Parcel
number 252631-000000-044210). First Reading

City Attorney Cloud Read the short title only. Mayor LaCascia opened the Public Hearing.
No one spoke for or against this Ordinance. Mayor LaCascia closed the Public Hearing.

No Discussion.

Motion by Commissioner Nichols to approve Ordinance 2024-02 on First Reading; this
Ordinance was seconded by Commissioner Blethen.

Roll Call Vote: Commissioner Nichols — aye, Commissioner Blethen — aye, Mayor
LaCascia — aye

Motion carried 3/0.

RESOLUTION 2024-02

Jennifer Codo-Salisbury (CFRPC) discussed a Resolution of the City Commission of
Polk City, Florida; approving a Preliminary Site Plan for 9,720 square foot Retail Plaza
located on approximately 1.37 Acres in Polk City, at 0 SR 33 (Parcel Number 242701-
000000-021020) in the Green Swamp Area of Critical State Concern; providing a
condition of approval; providing an effective date.

City Attorney Cloud Read the short title only.

Commissioner Blethen inquired about flooding in that area. Has all due diligence been
done?

Mrs. Codo-Salisbury responded this is a Preliminary and in the green Swamp there are
much more strict guidelines.

City Attorney Cloud also responded with Stormwater and Drainage Plans must be
submitted. This Preliminary Site Plan will go to Florida Commerce for a 60-90 day
Review. The Preliminary Site Plan comes before the Engineer.

Additional condition stated that Engineering Plans shall be submitted and reviewed prior
to the Construction Plan approval.

Lynn Newman inquired about the community having any recourse if the drainage is not
maintained.

2



City Attorney Cloud responded that SWFWMD issues the permit. Therefore, that matter
would have to be taken up with them.

Motion by Commissioner Nichols to adopt Resolution 2024-02 Preliminary Site Plan
for 9,720 Square Foot Retail Plaza; this motion was seconded by Commissioner Blethen.

Roll Call Vote: Commissioner Nichols — aye, Commissioner Blethen — aye, Mayor
LaCascia — aye

Motion carried 3/0.

CITY MANAGER ITEMS

Letters of Interest — A notice will be placed on the website for residents interested in
serving on the City Commission, as Polk City still needs to fill the District #2 Seat as well
as the At-Large Seat.

Vacation — City Manager Jackson will be out of the office on April 4, April 8 and April 11.

CITY ATTORNEY ITEMS

City Attorney Cloud briefly discussed a new start time for the City Commission Meetings.
Recommended 6pm. Motion by Commissioner Nichols to approve the start time of 6pm;
this motion was seconded by Commissioner Blethen. Motion carried by Voice Vote.

COMMISSIONER ITEMS
Commissioner Nichols — None

Commissioner Blethen — Discussed Berkley Road signs will be removed as well as
traffic enforcement. City Manager Jackson responded Polk County has gone to FDOT to
get permanent signs.

Mayor LaCascia — Discussed the need for a new Sound System for the Commission
Chamber.

City Manager Jackson and Rick Jiles responded that Carlton Music will be coming out to
survey what can be done.

City Commission Vacancies — are being advertised on Polk City’s website, newsletter and
emailed to the Water customers. Commissioner Blethen would like staff to research
utilizing text messaging to share items of great importance to the residents. Chasity
Guinn mentioned that we are currently utilizing Twillo. She will investigate using Twillo
for texting information out to the Public.

Mayor LaCascia briefly discussed the homeless population on public property.



City Attorney Cloud responded that Polk City does not own any type of camping facility.
The bill that Governor DeSantis recently passed protects us for the Van Fleet Trail as it
is a State Park.

ANNOUNCEMENTS — None

ADJOURNMENT - 6:55 pm

Patricia Jackson, City Manager Joe LaCascia, Mayor



City Commission Meeting
April 16, 2024

CONSENT AGENDA ITEM: Department Monthly Reports

INFORMATION ONLY
X _ACTION REQUESTED

ISSUE: Department Reports attached for review and approval.

ATTACHMENTS:

Monthly Department Reports for:

Building Permits Report — February/March 2024
Code Enforcement Report — March 2024
Financial Report — March 2024

Library Report — March 2024

Polk Sheriff's Report — March 2024

Public Works/Utilities Report — March 2024
Utility Billing Report — March 2024

NOGOhAWN=

ANALYSIS:

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Approval of Department Reports via Consent Agenda




ELECTRICAL
Permit Number
BT-2024-1774
BT-2024-2730
BT-2024-2800
BT-2024-2976

MECHANICAL
Permit Number
BT-2024-2701

PLUMBING
Permit Number
BT-2024-3298

PRE-PERMIT
Permit Number
BP-2024-49

RE-ROOF
Permit Number
BT-2024-1972
BT-2024-2056
BT-2024-2091
BT-2024-2922
BT-2024-3287

RESIDENTIAL
Permit Number
BR-2024-1487
BR-2024-1489
BR-2024-824
BR-2024-825

Polk Clty Permits

Polk City Permits Added
From: 02/01/24 To: 02/29/2024

Address

123 SE BROADWAY BLVD, POLK CITY, FL 33868
220 PINE AVE, POLK CITY, FL 33868

5420 ANIMOSH CT, POLK CITY, FL 33868

8750 CONOY AVE, POLK CITY, FL 33868

Subtotal:

Address
220 PINE AVE, POLK CITY, FL 33868

Subtotal:

Address
632 N CITRUS GROVE BLVD, POLK CITY, FL 33868

Subtotal:

Address
220 PINE AVE, POLK CITY, FL 33868

Subtotal:

Address
329 HONEY BEE LN, POLK CITY, FL 33868

548 NARROW POND LN, POLK CITY, FL 33868
411 SUNRISE BLVD, POLK CITY, FL 33868
245 BAYBERRY DR, POLK CITY, FL 33868

323 LAKESHORE CT, POLK CITY, FL 33868

Subtotal:

Address

8507 RINDGE RD, POLK CITY, FL 33868
303 NOLANE LN, POLK CITY, FL 33868
627 2ND ST, POLK CITY, FL 33868

627 2ND ST, POLK CITY, FL 33868

Page 1 of 2

Declared Value Date Adde
4,930.91 02/01/2024
1,500.00 02/20/2024

14,000.00 02/21/2024
28,875.00 02/23/2024
$49,305.91

Declared Value ~ Date Added
4,000.00 02/19/2024

$4,000.00

Declared Value Date Added
1,500.00 02/29/2024

$1,500.00

Declared Value ~ Date Added
1,500.00 02/19/2024

$1,500.00

Declared Value Date Added
6,720.00 02/06/2024

14,975.00 02/07/2024

19,352.51 02/07/2024

16,800.00 02/22/2024

16,480.34 02/28/2024
$74,327.85

Declared Value Date Added

18,201.00 02/27/2024
1,000.00 02/27/2024
2,500.00 02/04/2024
9,000.00 02/04/2024

4/4/2024 9:04 AM



BR-2024-957 532 MARKLEN LOOP, POLK CITY, FL 33868 5,800.00 02/07/2024
Subtotal: $36,501.00

Grand Total: $167,134.76

D See +o Dt

Koihy hulp

Polk Clty Permits Page 20f2 4/4/2024 9:04 AM



ELECTRICAL

Permit Number
BT-2024-4015
BT-2024-5032

MECHANICAL

Permit Number
BT-2024-4851

POOL

Permit Number
BT-2024-3709

RE-ROOF

Permit Number
BT-2024-3644
BT-2024-4489

RESIDENTIAL

Permit Number
BR-2024-1745
BR-2024-1782
BR-2024-1783
BR-2024-1823
BR-2024-1848
BR-2024-1893
BR-2024-1927
BR-2024-1993

BR-2024-2081

BR-2024-2154
BR-2024-2203
BR-2024-2278

Polk Clty Permits

Polk City Permits Added
Erom: 03/01/24 To: 03/31/2024

ddress
8722 RINDGE RD, POLK CITY, FL 33868
188 SUNSHINE BLVD, POLK CITY, FL 33868

Subtotal:
Address
538 MARKLEN LOOP, POLK CITY, FL 33868
Subtotal:
Address
8750 CONOY AVE, POLK CITY, FL 33868
Subtotal:

Address
627 2ND ST, POLK CITY, FL 33868
334 BAYBERRY DR, POLK CITY, FL 33868-9344

Subtotal:

Address

303 NOLANE LN, POLK CITY, FL 33868

627 2ND ST, POLK CITY, FL 33868

627 2ND ST, POLK CITY, FL 33868

303 NOLANE LN, POLK CITY, FL 33868

784 TEABERRY TRL, POLK CITY, FL 33868

512 EDGEWATER DR, POLK CITY, FL 33868
604 Meandering Way, Polk City, FL 33868

303 NOLANE LN, POLK CITY, FL 33868

510 N CITRUS GROVE BLVD, POLK CITY, FL 33868
329 HONEY BEE LN, POLK CITY, FL 33868

427 SUNRISE BLVD, POLK CITY, FL 33868

291 S HYDRANGEA AVE, POLK CITY, FL 33868

Page 1 of 2

Declared Value
56,000.00
26,565.00

$82,565.00

Declared Value
9,055.88

$9,055.88

Declared Valu
54,000.00

$54,000.00

Declared Value
5,000.00
18,000.00

$23,000.00

Declared Value
1,000.00
4,500.00
7,500.00
1,000.00

0.00
15,155.00
528,337.00
1,000.00
0.00
3,720.00
13,000.00
1,500.00

Date Added
03/12/2024
03/27/2024

Date Added
03/25/2024

Date Added
03/07/2024

Date Added
03/06/2024
03/19/2024

Date Added
03/05/2024

03/06/2024
03/06/2024
03/07/2024
03/08/2024
03/11/2024
03/12/2024
03/14/2024
03/17/2024
03/19/2024
03/21/2024
03/24/2024

4/4/2024 9:10 AM



BR-2024-236¢ 221 S HYDRANGEA AVE, POLK CITY, FL 33868 1,500.00 03/26/2024
Subtotal: $578,212.00

Grand Total: $746,832.88

| 562 b i
d{CuU»ﬂMO

Polk Clty Permits Page 2 of 2 4/4/2024 9:10 AM



SNIPE SIGNS REMOVED

24

LIEN SEARCHES 19
INSPECTIONS 42

CLOSED OUT CASES 21

SPECIAL MAGISTRATE CASES 6
CLOSED OUT SPECIAL MAGISTRATE CASES 3

CASE SUBJECTS

REFERRED TO COUNTY/OTHER

DISABLE VEHICLES

BUILDING WITHOUT PERMIT

OVERGROWTH

HOUSE NUMBERS

FENCE/INSPECTIONS

JUNK AND DEBRIS

RV/TRAILER PARKING

OPEN STRUCTURE

MET WITH CITIZEN

NOISE

PLACE LIEN

CLOSE OUT LIEN

YARD SALE

ANIMAL

POSTINGS

EXTENDED CASES

ACCESSORY USE

POOLS

BUSNESS LICENSE

MINIMUM STANDARD HOUSING

Rl R ]| N]v|]o|OoO|lOo|lRrR|O|l|O|lW|]|d|R|O || |W




CITY OF POLK CITY

Sﬁ'é'ufﬁfp'.ﬁ;?fob No: 15285 Simple Balance Sheet o SOANNAK
For Fiscal Year: 2024 thru Month: Mar
Fund: 01 OPERATING FUND

Account Account Ending Net
Number Title Bal Amount
01-101-100 Cash - Checking 3,678,393,61
01-101-990 Library Van Fleet Cycling Challenge 31,195.62-
01-102-100 Cash on Hand 875.00
01-115-100 Accounts Receivable - Utilities 46,337.55
01-115-120 Accounts Receivable - Local Bus Licenses 3,540.00
01-115-200 Accounts Receivable - Year End 221,233.17-
01-117-100 Allowance for Bad Debt 131.83-
01-133-100 Due From Other Governmental Units 45,258.79
01-133-101 Due from Others (Franchise & Public Serv. Tax) 57,955.50
01-151-100 Investments - FL SAFE GF 1,192,790.91
01-151-902 Investments - FL SAFE GF Reserves 84,323,83
01-153-302 Restricted Cash - New Local Opt Gas Tax 332,692,65
01-160-9502 Reserve Account 100,000.59
01-160-503 Reserve Acct - Emergencies & Contingency 62,924.00

** TOTAL ASSET** 5,352,531.81
01-202-100 Accounts Payable 19,800.29-
01-202-200 Accounts Payable - Year End 10,258.34-
01-202-900 Customer Deposits 7,960.00
01-202-850 Other Deposits 150,000.00
01-208-300 Due to County - Impact Fees 21,277.92
01-208-310 Due to DCA - Bldg Permit Surcharge 61.64
01-208-320 Due to Dept of Business - License Fees 34.25-
01-208-330 Due to PCSO - Police Education Revenue 1,383.95
01-216-100 Accrued Payrell 28,486.41-
01-217-200 Accrued Sales Tax 208.76
01-218-100 Payroll Taxes Payable 9,507.95
01-218-200 FRS Retirement Payable 528.00
01-218-300 Health Plan Payable 3,018.21
01-218-320 Supplemental Insurance Payable 5,280.38
01-218-400 Dental Plan Payable 1,185.22-
01-218-410 Vision Plan Payable 615.55
01-218-700 ICMA-RC 120.00

#*% TOTAL LIABILITY** 140,197.85
01-243-100 Encumbrances Placed 5,077.33
01-245-100 Reserved for Encumbrances 5,077.33-

++ TOTAL ENCUMBRANCE®** 0.00
01-271-100 Fund Balance Unreserved 4,473,458.35

*+ TOTAL EQUITY**

*% TOTAL REVENUE**

** TOTAL EXPENSE**

TOTAL LIABILITY AND EQUITY

4,473,458.35

2,122,024 .68

1,383,149.07

5,352,531.81




% Te 99 S8 S8C'L ST 8910’6 00" 0 00°%0€£°'3T 00°'H$0E'9T yE 98% €T MGOEwmeAN sourUSIUTRY LOJd 006-%¥E-TO0
% 00°0 00°0 00°0 00°0 00°0 000 o0-0¢ s994 ATIedqON 006-0%E-TO
% %0° 1S PG 2TL LT 9% $9% '8T 9T 980'€ 00" LLT'9¢E 00" LLT'9E 26 L6 '9E s884 >u..n.ﬁ._”n_.D I93emuIols 00L-0PE-TO
% 197899 08°696‘STC 0Z TEV ‘692 LE LOD'LY 00°L6E'SEY 00°L6€E°'SBY ¥9° €06 '88F 938eM pPITog 00%-0%E-TO
% 29° LY S% 98%'92 §5°080'%2 §5°080°'%2 00'L95'0§ 00°L95'0S EE LPT LY mﬂ..nﬁﬁﬂ,m doop %.H.M.HQ..H.H Q0T-LEE-TO
% 8Z°Z% £9°L6T'EET LE'9LL'LE €E E9T'6T 00°¥LZ 'TET 00 ¥LZ‘TEZ 68°6S8'6€C xeJ, S9TBeS JusD-IT[eH 08T-SEE-TO
% 00°0 00°G2ZT'T Q00 00°'0 00°G9Z2T°'T 00°S2T'T TL SZT'T 8sSu3adTT sbeisasg OTTOYODIY O0ST-SE€E-TO
% 90°t€8 G6° %56 S0°T89'% SLTEVT 00°9€9°S 00°9€9'S L9°L9T'L BSuUadDTT SWOH STTQOW OFT-SEE-TO
$ 00°0 00°0 00" 0 00°0 00°0 00°0 89" LE Xel I3nd Hm&ﬂUﬁgi - S¥W ECT-S€e-TO
% 0E€E°'8BY ZB8°0G89°'TT 8T° €86 ‘0T LB EIB’'T 00" %ES’‘CT 00°%ES’'2T €S HLT ST xXeL TenJ IOJ0W '3IusD Yig - SUS CZI-SEE-TO
% 96°B¥ 6Z°96€'CS T.°85Z°'0S Sy 9LE’S 00°559°20T 00°559°20T 8% 0L0'90T XeL SOTeS 23218 - SUW 0TT-SEe-T0
% 00°0 00" 0 Q00 00°0 Q00 000 €1°596 Zz0Z U®BI - “quI®Y °3®35 VWIA TOV-$E€E-TO
% 00°0 00°000°529 000 000 00°000°S29 00°000'529 00°0 I9 ooTd juswdoTsaaq >u._uC.DEEOU - Hddd 00S-TeE-TO
% 00°'0 00°0 00°0 00°0 00°0 00°'0 SL'06L'S Zz0Z Uel - "qUIdY Texapsd VWId TOV-TEE-TO
% 00°0 00°0 00°0 00°0 00°0 00" 0 00°00T 939 TOYOOTY - 3ITwIad 00t-6TE-TO
% 00°99 00°098 00°059'T 00°0 00°00S5°¢2 00°005'¢2 0L P9€’L SMOTADY UBTd 93TS 0ZZ-6ZE-TO
% 00°0 00°0 Q0" 0 Q0" 0 Q0°0 Q0" 0 00°'S¢ mUHEHUm\mmw.&\.U..nQ ISyl0 00T-62¢€-T0
% 6% 9¢C 16°T89'T¥H 60 LTO'ST 000 00°669°95 00°669'9S SL E6E'TL o3seM PITOS 00€-€ZE-TO
% TL'6C ST TSL' 0¥ GL'8ET'LT 00°0 00°000'8S 00°000'8S ZZ ETC’ETT OTIA3O03TH OQ00T-€ZE-TO
% B8%°8 T 8LT 'H6T 65°T66°LT 00°009°T 00°0LT'ZTC o0"oLT’‘21C 00°595'5¢ meﬂUOOQmGH - JjTwur=4 mU._“m 80T-¢2¢€-T0
% 9L°€6 00°0¢ 00" 0S¥ 00°'09 00°08% 00" 08% 00'0€ES Aouednooo JO 339D - ATWIASG BpTE LOT-2ZE-TO
% 09°9¢C 00°0S%’'€ 00°082°T 00°0S8¢ 00°00L'D 00°00L'% 00°620'% TeOTURYDS - FTWISF BpTdE SO0T-2ZE-T10
% 68°9T 00°G5L0’'€E 00°S¢C9 00°0 00°00L € 00°00L'E 00°525°'¢€ mﬁ..nnMESHm - JTwisg bpTdE ®0T-2ZE-T0
% 00°%% 00°008°2 00°002°'C 00°S2T 00°000°‘S 00°000'S 00 0SE’¥ TeDaTIJID8TE - JTwI=ad mUHm— £0T-22¢-T0
% 0S9°LE 00°005°2 00°00S8'T 00°08T 00°000°% 00°000'% 00°088°'€E 894 Utwpy - 3ITwIsd bpTE 20T-2ZE-TO
% £ES°0T 00° T2V 'ET 00°6LS'T 00°0¢2¢ 00°000’'ST 00°000'ST 80 ZLL'Z9 mﬂ..nMUUEU uerd - TwIisdg BpTd TOTI-2ZE€-T0
% €E1°ST 69°€0L'6C TE€°962°S £€0°69¢ 00°000'SE 00°000'GE 8 6LT'TE s3TuI=g mﬁ..nmu._“._nﬂm 00T-2Zt-TO
% 00°0 000 Q0" 0 00°0 00°0 000 00°096 wexboid xeL “snd u.ﬂwﬂUG..nHwD o144 EOT-9TE-TO
% £T°99 8% 692 Z5°90¢9 257 0¢T 00°SLL 00°SLL IV 6EV'T XeBL SSautsng Ajunop z0T-91E-TO
% 90° LS 00" 6EE’'T 00 T9L'Y 0009 00°00T'L 00°00T'L 9L T9T'ET S9SUS8DT] SS8UTSNE [E20T QO0T-9TE-TO
3 €L LZ 65°9%8 '¥9T TIv ¥92°¢€9 9€°L66'0T 00°TITT ‘822 00 ITTI'82¢C GL G0V 'T1ET XBl S9DTAISS SUOTIeDdTUNUWO)] Q0T-STE-TO
% €L°09 vz 86L 'TT 9L'6%T 2T S8 LLS'T 00°8V6 €T 00°8¥6'€C 89°006°'¢€Z XeL \nu..n.m._.nuD - se9 Q0y-%TE-TO
$ 00°0 00°2tZ'9 00°0 00°0 00°2ZtZ’9 00°ZIZ'9 9L 'ZTET’'ZT 25 03 SSIaUTPE3Y - XBL >U._”._”._HUD - I231eM TOE-PTE-TO
% 62°6¢ 6F°00L‘6E 15°869°GZ vy FHE’9 00°66€°S9 00°66€°'59 9% QLY ’SS Xeq, >UﬂﬁﬂuD. - I23BM Q0€E-%TE-TO
% 1I6°0% 26°22% ‘9L 80°6806°2S 69°%0Z 0T 00°TEE’62T 00'TEE'6ZT €8 T6E'0ST XeL >u..HH..nuD. - DTIJ09TH O00T-%TE-T0
% 9T°0% 00°69€'1TY 00°6%L'LT 96°0€G'S 00°8TT'69 00°8TT'69 TE'02T°LY xel, sen CO._”unwO Ted0T MN OTIP-CTE-TO
% LL'6E ZB 6% ‘S9 8T ESC €Y 0Z°9€9'L 00°68%L'80T 00°8%L'80T T10°'998'S0T XBeL Sed EO._HUQO Ted0T 00F-ZTIE-TO
5% LT %E 88°9LE‘ZT T %Z¥%’'9 LY S6%°T 00°T0B'8T 00°T08'8T 96°T9T'S XeL SeH JudD Yie Q0E-ZTE-TO
% LB8°96 06°GLE'TY 0T T95‘8LZ"'T 9L P¥0’'ST 00" LE6'6TE’T 00'LEE'6TE’T 56 %01°002'T SHXVYI WAHIOTYA ¥ 00T-TTE-TO
aazITEd IID1Id3a/ (e830x4d) ANNIATSY JLR FONIATY INIIIAD TIHLYdIDILNY SNNSASY @ILVAIDILNY | IONIASE ¥X J0IRd NOILJI¥DEEA INOODDY
HOVINIDYAE | ¥Z0T $Z0¢ ¥Z02 oay 1 441}4 €202 /9
€/ ¥20T :1BaA [e9SId 104 9)3|dwo) IA % 00°0S
SANNIATY ANNL TVEINTD
] R STVIONVNId ATHLNOW ¥Z0Z HOUVI 9825} :oN qor/dud'6d 10saqb

ALID NT70d 40 ALID

21:91 ¥202/L0/v0




% T8°Z9 Z2E"EZ9'G68'T 89°%20°221°2 L8 E0B'HLT 00°8%9°'LT0’% 00°8%9°LTO'Y €€ POV’ PEE’E STYLOL INAWLIYdHA
% 00°0 00°0 00°0 00°0 00" 0 00°0 00°000°00T pung MW._”HQHWUEW woxg I3ISueA 00%-T8E-TO
% ST'EZ ¥S°B89L 9y "T1EC 00°'0 00°000°T 00°000'T v 8691 XBJ, SeD 93els JO pungay Q005-69E-TO
% 0070 (00" THL'S) 00" TPL’S Q0°0 00°0 000 00°G6L'¥ g9p®8D0Ig sdueansul Q0¥-69£-TO
2 00°'0 00°0 00°0 000 00'0 000 00°s0z2'¢e abersac) Teijusy Aandag - swoduIl O9TW 09T-69E-TO
% 00°0 00°0 00°0 Q00 00°'0 00°0 Q0" 00T U9SMOTTEH - 2WODUI OSTW OQET-69tE-T0
% 00°0 0070 0070 00°0 00°0 000 00°00T SewlsSTAYD - SWodUI OSTW 0ZT-69E~T0
%-9E ETT 05°098°€ (05°0%0°'C) 9t 07 00°008°T 00°008°T 8% 8IE € SOUBMOTTY UOTIDITTOD -~ SWODUI DSTW ZO0T-63t-10
% 00°0 ($9°0) #¥9°0 00" 0 00°0 000 LG E saxed pue mw._nn.mOU - JWoduI OSTW TOT-69€-T0
% CTELYPT (19°9€2) T9°9¢€L 00°0 00°009 00° 009 $9°296 SWONUI "OSTW 00T-69€-TO0
% 00°0 00°0 00°0 Q0" 0 00°'0 00°0 00 18T \A.H.M.HD._H.H - suorjruc(Q ajealtild OTT-92€-T0
% 00°S¢C 00°0SL 00° 09T 00°0 00°000°'T 00°000'T 00°'SLB'T USSMOTTEBH - SUOTJIRUOJ 83eATId ZOT-99¢-T0
% 00°9C 00° 0S4 00°052 00°0 00°000°T 00°000°T 00°s21’2 SBPWASTIYD - SUOCTILUOJ DIRATId TOT-98€E-TO
% 00°0 Amm.omN.Nv S€£°082°'2 00°0 000 00°0 00°0 KAjzedoag snidang Jo saT®S 00T-S9€-T0
% LS LL 00°00Z°T 00°0ST'¥ 00°0ST'T 00°0SE’‘S 00°'0SE’S 00'05€’'8 BlUSY IA23JUSD >u._“ﬁ3EEOU uosuoxg pleUOd (00Z-Z9€-TO
% 98°B% 00°0sT'z 00"0ST‘2T 00" 0S¢ 00°00%’'% 00°00%'% 00°008°S s1ejuay a83us) >U._”>._HU04 Q00T-29¢-T0
% €8 ETT ﬁmm.b¢.n~¢v S6"LFT'¥E 9Z°908'S 007"000'0€ 00°000'0¢€ ST°GTIS’9S HAYS T4 - mﬂﬂwﬁ.ﬂ\rﬂﬂ\ummumuﬂH 00Z-19¢-T0
% €6°2% ¥6°TISC'¥% 90"86T'€E 00°0 00°05% 'L 00°0S%'L $T°160'T [woduIl 3IsaxX23UI 00T-T9E-TO
% 0C°6% 00" LZT 00" €CT Q00 00°0s2 000582 01" ¥6¢E sg8q 33T 00£-65E-TO
% 00°0 (00°0L) Q0" 0L 00'0 00°0 000 00°'1E g99IN3T33104 .HO\ﬂﬁ.m gauTqg A9Yi0 O00T-6SE-TO
% 00°0 {TT°8S%) TT°8s% 6L°60% 000 00°0 GE£'92Z0'LT S9UT4 JUSAWIDIOIUY 3POD O00E-TSE-TO
% ¥9°0S 6V 8F6 '€ 1§°TS0'Y 000 00°000'8 00°000'8 $0°Z9L°6 njrsjyaoq pue ‘gaTaTeusd ‘S9uUTld SO0T[ed 00Z-TSE-TO
% LE'BT 09°6€6°¢E 0%°09S'T 0L 68T 00°00S°S 00°005'S 9GS FET ‘0T [WOodUT >HNHQ._”1H 00T-L¥E-TO
aQIZITVIEY IIDIARA/ (88950XH) ANNAAHY GLX SONSATN INIJIND AIIVIIDILNY SANSASY ILVSIDIINY | EONIASY ¥X ¥OIdd NOILAI¥DSIA INAODDY
SOVINSDYEd | $202 yZ02 1 241X4 pay 202 €202 1/
€ / 20T :1eaj [edsid 104 233[dwo) A % 00°0S
SANNIATY ANN4 TVIINTD
2o TR STVIONVNIZ ATHLNOW ¥20Z HONVI el laRp b P

ALID M10d 40 ALID




% 00°0 00°00S’T 00°0 000 00°00S'T 00°005'T 00°0 sI9TD A3JTD - €993 1°4yl0 I burproosy Zev-Z1S-T0
% 00°'0 00°000'% 00°0 00°0 00°000'% 00°000'% LT CL SATINOSXE - sabieyp JuaIIND ISYIO0 06¥%-TIS-T0
% 00'0 00°000°'T 00°Q 000 00°000°'T 00°000°T 00°0 Jnosxd - SpPyY TebeT I SSTITATIOY owoad 0B¥%-ZIS-TO
% 6T ETT (6%°L29) 6% L2ZS'¥ 00°0 00°000'¥% 00°000'% 00°SLT'T 2ATINOSXH - uoTionpoadsy pue Butiutid 0L¥-TIS-TO
% Te"ve QE'TS0’T 0L BFE 0070 00°00%°'T 00°00%'T 8E HLT T SATIMDSXH - S9DTAISS UOCTIRDTUNWIOD QOT¥-TTIS-TO
% SZ°8T §2°922'T SLTELT 86°%6 00°005'T 00°005°'T 0E°9%¥ 9ATINO9XE - 9ouemoTTY esusdxd BurlssW 80Y-ZTS-TO
% SE'PT 00°92%’¢€ 00°¥LS 00°'SL 00°000'% 00°000'% ¥%°920'C aaTinoaxy - Burureil S0¥-gTIS-T10
% L0°E £L79%8'% LT EST 000 00°000°Ss 00°000°S ZE'SCE’'E 9ATINOSXY - sosuadxm [3ABIL 00%-ZTS-T0
% 62769 ¥6 ETT 90" LSZ 00°0 00 'TLE 00°TLE ¥¥°992 aaTInoeXm - uoljesuaduwod S!EE#IIINAIOM 0%Z-2TS-TO
3 80°¢€V %096 L 65°520'9 £5°LBT T 00°986 ‘€T 00'986'€T 89°'558°S¢ SATINDIXH - dOURANSUI YITESH ¥ SITT 0€Z-2T5-TO
% 9L767% 0T '8LZ 'TE 06°6L6'0E 80"68L % 00°852'29 00°852°'29 T9°0LZ'SS SATINOSXE - UOTINGTIIUOD JuswaaTiI=yd 02T-ZTS-TO
% Sb'e¥ €EP°LFO‘TT LS ®OL'TT PETILE'T 00°CZE€B €T 00°Z€B €T 9% LSS'TT SATINDSXT - S8XeL edTd QTC-ZTIS-TO0
% 22601 (2€'66T'€) ZE'668'LE 00°0 00°00L'%E 00°00L'¥E 80'0€6°95 noaxd - Aed 3TISW UON pue Aed wntwsad 09T-¢IS-T0
% 0070 00°0 00°0 00°0 000 00" 0 26 6TL'Y SATINDSXY - SWTJASAO 0PT-CTS-T0
% 00708 $6°66E°C 90°00%°2 vZ'69¢€ 00°008'% 00°008'% ZT'008'% aatranoeoxy - sabem pue sstieles I9YI0 0€T-ZTS-TO
% TC'S? 50°988'92T §6°TOL'%0T Zy %18 ‘91 00°88S5'TEC 00°885'T€C 88 68E'¥1Z aatTInoexy - sobem - Azetes aeInbay 021-215-10
HAILNOEXH
% 18°'St 8% %9602 TGS 969'TT T6°S0L 00°T99'CE 00°T99'CE €6°9L7 ‘82 TYLOL ILNHWILIVIHA
% YE"S6 Q0" LLT 00°€29'€ 00°0 00°008°€ 00°008'€E 00°%¥95'€ o1 - sdrysaaquel ¥ ‘"dqns ‘-qnd ‘s}ood 0pS-TIS-TO
% 0070 00°00L 00°0 00°0 007004 00°'00L 89°60€ SAT3BTSTDOT - swioyTun STS-TT1S-TO
% 68°C v22V6 T 9L LS 000 0070002 00°000°2 00°0SL aaTyeTsTBe] - se1rddng BuTtjexsdo 0ZS-TTS-10
% 00°0 00°00¢ 00°0 00°0 00°'00¢ 00°00¢ vz oc aatyersTbey - seT1ddns 95TIJ0 01S-TTIS-T0
3 92'T 08 ¥%L6'T 0S¢ 00°0 00°000°2 Q0000’2 (1) A R4 aATleTSTBRT - sebreyp JusazIND ISYI0 06%-TIS-TO
% 00701 007006 00°00T 00°'0 00°000°T 00°000°'T 00°0Té 1sTBo7 - spy TeBeT ¥ SSTITATIOY owoad 08%-TIS-T0
% 00°0 00°00¢ 000 00°0 00°00¢ 00°00¢E 0S°"PLT taersthaT - uorionpoadsy pue buriutiad 0LF-TTIS-TO
% 00°CT 00'088 00°02CT 00°09 00°000°'T 00°000'T S¥°C18 TleTsT6aT - 9ouemolTy 2suadxy Buri=™®W 8O¥-TTIS-T0
% 0070 00'000'€ 0070 00°0 00°000€E 00°000°'€ 00°SLS AAIIVISIDAT - ONINIVIL SO0v-TTS-TO
% 00'0 00°000°'% 00°0 000 00°000'% 00°000'% LT TLO'T aaTjeIsTbBeT - Bututexy pue [9ABIL 00%-TIS-TO
% 09709 88°L 2T’ ¢t 00°'0 00°0¢ 00°0¢ 6 0T TieTsTbaT - uotjlesuadwo) S!EEHTISNIOM 0¥Z-TIS-TO
3 EV' VY 997689 PETTSS T6°SP 00" T%C'1 00°T%2'T 0S5 %2%'T aaTje[sTbeT - sexel ®OTA Q0TZ-TIS-T0
% BZ 80T {0ot*L02) 0T LOL'Z 00°0 0070052 00°005°2 ST 121’8 s1haT - 87eDTITIAD 1JTH pue Sesnucg 09T-TIS-TO
% L9°TY 00°00E‘9 00°005'% 407009 00°008°'0T 00°008°'0T 00°005'0T aATjeTstbey - gebem - Azefes Tetnbay 0ZI-TIS-T0
HAILVISIDAT
AIAZITVEE IIHang TIVAY SHSINIAXE ALX S8ESNI4AXR ALK 1I0ang rav LEDINY qILIOAY STYALOY NOILIINOBIAA INOODDY
HOVLNIDOHEA | 20T %202 yzoz vzoz yzoz E£T0Z 1/9
€ / $Z0T :1ed |easl] 104 9)a|dwo) JA % 00705
sainypuadx3y pung [e1ausn
ANYORSEn STVIONVNIZ ATHLNOW ¥20Z HONVI il g e s

ALID X104 40 ALID




% LO"6F S9°8LL'L SEE6T L 8€°89T'T 00°ZL2’ST 00°ZLEZ’ST ZL ZOE'ET ujooy ¥ UTd - UOTINTIIIUOD JUSWIATISY 022-9TS-T0
% 6E°TE 6L °T65'S TZ°1e6'¢ ELT65Y 00°€25°'8 00°€25'8 vL FEBR’S pujooy ¥ UTH - SIXeL BOTA 01Z-91S-10
% T6°09 ge"0¥%e 29" ¥PLE Q0" 0 00°ST9 00" 919 98 °%6T°'C Pujooy 3 UTA - SWTIISAO 0%T-9TS~TO
% €677V £€1°286°'T9 LB 295°0S 20°0T9'8 00°'G%5°2TT 00 S¥PS’'CTT SL°TBZ'%0T Pujooy ® utd - sabeM - Axetes zernbay (0ZI-9T5-10

ONILNAODOY ANV HDONYNIA

% €££°8S5 00°008°LT 00°00S8°LT 00°0 00°000°‘SE 00°'000°0€ 00°000°‘0€ TYLOL LNIWLAYIEQ
% £€°8S 00°005°LT 00°00S8°LT 00°0 00°000°'SE 00°000°'0¢ 00°000'0€E Butuuetd dwop - seDTAZDS TRUOTSS®IOId O0TE-STS-TO

ONINNYId ZAISNIFHAIIWOD

TYLOL INIWLIYAEA
% E0°TP 0L°98%'9 QE"E1S'T §5°99 00°000'TT 00°000'TT 07" 098°L TeboaT - Spy [ebaT ¥ SSTITATIOY Oowoad 08%-%1S-T0
% 58°0% 0T 9%% '8¢ 06°€55°9¢ £€5°L06'S 00°000°S9 00°000’S9 ZS 119 '%% Tesuno) TeHsT - SIDTAISS [PUOTSSIIOId OTE-FTS-TO

ESNOOD M¥DET

% 00°0 000 00" 0 00" 0 00°0 00°'0 00" 0 TYLOL LNIWIIYIIA

AIIATO ALID

% LO°0S T0° LTIV 002 66°LT0'TOT 65°08L % 00°SEP'TOF 00°SEP ' TOV 1% 2CE'96E IYLOL INIWLYYIIA
% 00°0 00°0 00°0 00°0 00'0 c0° 0 00°0S89'T BATINDIXY - Jusudinbg ¥ AzsutyoeW 0%9-21S5-10
% 90°¢€2Z 06°269°C QT"L08 PT°L 00°'00S°€ 00'00s’¢ 09°T0S’'T xq - sdTysisquwaW ¥ ‘"gus ‘-qnd ‘Syood 0¥S-TTIS-TO
% S1°6 BO LIB'T Z26°ZBT 00°0 00°000°2 00°000°'€ EN AR N4 SATINOIXH - so1Tddns butyersdo 0z5-2TS-T0
% 21°9 69°L68°T TE 20T 9899 00°000°2 00°000°T §99°LZ6 SATINDIXH - sot1ddng 80T330 0T1S5-ZTS-T0
EAZITVE IEDQNg TIVAY SHASNIJIXT ALX SASNEJIXE ALK IIpang ravy 13IDIN8 qALLOTY STYALOY NOIl4IdDE3q LNAODDY
AOVINIDNES | $202 $202 $Z02Z yzoz vzoz €202 1/9

€ / ¥Z0T :1e3 A [e9S!] 104 8)9|dWO) JA % 0005
sainjpuadx3 pung |eJduldn
MVYNNVOF :¥3SN 9825 :oN gor/dyd-6d— 05898
8l Jo p 9bed STIVIONVYNId ATHLNOW ¥20Z HOYUVIN ZL:9} ¥Z0Z/L0/V0

ALID M10d 4O ALID




% LT°9% 90°€59'6S ¥6°8ST TS 96 €EPS’8 00°2I8'0TT 00°2TI8'0TT 8% 65T'90T utuoz » bprg - sabem - Axeies xe(nbsy 021-vES-TO
ONINOZ ANV ONIATING
EEEEEEeees EESEEEESEsEsssEmEE SESSSSCEEEEEEESSSs SEEEEEEEEEERASSNEE EEEASSSSSSSEEEEENS SESSSCSSNEESESSEES SEESEEEssssSEREEES
% 8% £V 0S5°062'€2T 05°'958'%6 00°8¢5'€ 00'LPT'8TC 00 LPT BT 0Z°SSL'T6T IYIOL INIWINYIAd
% 00°0 0070 00°0 00°0 00°0 000 0L LEL jug me] - sa11ddng Burjeizado 02S-TZS-TO
% 00°0 00°00S 000 000 00° 00§ 00°00§ 000 Jug me] - @oueusjurel pue satedsdy 09%-1TS-T0
% LO"LE 00°L96°LY 00°€E0'0% 00°825°¢€ 00°000°80T 00°00080T 05'09% ‘€8 Jum me] - S®DTAIdF TRUOTSSDIoad 0TE-TES-TO
% 00°0§ 09 ' €28'HS 05°£28°'%S 00°0 00°L¥9°60T 00°L¥9'60T 00°L6%'LOT Jug meq - IOQET 3IDEeIJUCD SO0E-TES5-TO
INTFWIOYOINT MY'T
sze=zssszssssssss== msssss=sss== E——
00°TI8'6TT TS '0TB'6TT IVLOL INIWIAYAHA
% 08°Th v0'TST'8T 96 €85 €T 00°0 00 GEL'TE 00°SEL'TE €0 TIS'¥E squd SOTAISS 3gad I¥ED - 3ISSISIUI 0ZL-LTS-TO
5 92 1% T6°BEL’'TS 60 LEE’9E 00°0 00°9L0°'88 00°9L0°'88 67v'66C°'S8 sjug 90TAISS 1490 I¥ED - TedTOUTId OTL-LTIS-TO
AOIANES 143d
e cemEEEE SEEEEEEEEEEEEESSSs SSSSESEEESSSSSSSss SESSEEEESSSSSSSSSS SCSEEESSSSSSSSISSs SEsEESSSssSSSSISSs ssssssssssssooans
% 6€° €D 0€°599°20T 0L S0L8L 95-0Tg’eT 00 TLE'TIBT 00 TLE'TST 6E°S6%'€9T TYLOL INAWLNYAAQ
% 00°0 00°0 000 00°0 000 00°0 00 06% '€ T4 - Burprrng ueyl I9y3l0 sjuswdsoxdur 0E£9-9TS-TO
% LT PE ZT'09¥% 8B 6EC 000 00°00L 00°00L TL'5S8 14 - sdrysasquan ¥ ‘°"qns ‘'qnd ‘sS}ood 0%S-9TS-T10
% 90°T vZ2'896'C 9L'TE 000 00°000°€ 00°000'€ 19°%92'2 BPujooy 3 utd - sofrddng burjeaado 025-9T1S-T0
% ST'CE €0°GGE’T L6 %9 98°LT 00°000°2 00°000'2 6L°SeL pulsoy ¥ urd - s=77ddns 997II0 015-9TG-TO
& 9L°9T 8z %29 zZL'STT 000 00°0SL 00°0S5¢L TT 8L ooy § uTd - uorionpoxdesy pue ButijuTid QLP-915-T0
% §5°T¢ £8°999 LT €8T 00°0 00058 00058 TL €99 Bujooy ¥ UTd - SOOTAISS UOTIRDTUNUWMOD OT%-9T1S5-T0
% €9°9T 00°T05'T 00°66% 000 00°000’€ 00°000°€ 00°0 soueutd - ButureRal S0%-915-T0
% TU'T 96°TLY ‘T v0'82 00°0 00°005°Z 00°005'¢ £%°L09 Buiooy 3 urd - sosusdxd TSABIL 00%-9T1S-T0
% PYEE 00°005'T 00°000°T 00°0 00°005'% 00°005'¥ 00°08L’'E Bulooy ¥ UTd - 99D0TAIDS T[BUOTSSdFOAI QTIE€-916-TO
% $€°89 TE'LS 69°¢£2T 000 00° 18T 00° 18T G5 62T ooy § utrd ~ uoriesusadwod S!EHIIASYIOM 0¥Z-9TS-T10
% 00°0S 85 L9F’'ET 7V LIV ET LS vvz'e 00°'5€6°'92 00°5€6°92 BE'982'ST U300y ¥ UT4 - SOURINSUT YITESH ¥ SITT 0€Z-91S-T0
qIZITVIY 1E0a08 TIVAY SHINHIXE QLX SABNIIXT QIR 1I0a0s Lay 180008 A8LI0aY 8TYAIOY ROILATHYOBEA INONODDY
TOVINEDYH] | $¥Z02Z ¥Z02 (2414 [ 2414 $Z0Z €202 1/
€ / $20¢ :4e3 A [easid 104 aj8|dwo) JA % 00°0S
sainjpuadxy pung |eidusn
MVYNNVOF :¥3sn 98Z51 :oN qor/dyd-6d™1058qB
gl J0 G ebeg STVIONVNId ATHLNOW 202 HOYVYIN Z1:91 $Z0Z/L0/Y0

AlID M170d 40 ALID




NOILVYLINYS/ZSNaad

R ———— S SRR S DS SRS SRR S LS i

% BT°SE €Z E60°0% LL"SSL'TE [ 34 A0 00°6%8'T39 00°6%8'T9 0L'8%T'99 TYLOL LNAWLIYIEA

% 6T°8¢E TL°T9 627 8¢ 6C° € 00°00T 00°00T 00°08T op - sdrysaaqusy 3 ‘"qns ‘-qnd ‘sHOOH 0¥%5-6ZS-10
% LL'VOT (LB"€T) LBTETS 00 0 00°00S 00°00S £6°68 Jug apopy - sa17ddns Hurjersdo 025-62S-T0
% ¢TSS L5768 £V O0TT 000 00°00¢2 00" 00¢ §8°5¢¢ Jug opod - sofrddns @0TIFO 0TS-62S-10
% $9°1C §9°LZ9 SECLT 00°0 00°008 007008 €L TES Jug °poD - SODTAISS UOTIeDTUNWUWOD 0T¥-625-TO
% 00°0 00°00L 00°0 00°0 00°00L 00°00L 00°"T90°T INAWEOJYOANZ HAOD - ONINIVYL S0¥%-62S-TO
% 0070 00°00S 00'0Q Q00 007005 007005 TE'SCE jug spop - sosusdxd TeaeIl 00¥%-6Z5-T0
% 8L 00'0S%’'% 00°0SS '€ 007005 00°'000’'8 Q0000’8 00°00% ‘9T Jum Spod - SIVTAIDF TPUOTSSSIOAd 0TE-625-T0
% 60789 99" €S2 YETTPS 00°0 00°56L 007964 8L°9%S Jug 9poed - uoTjesuadwod S!EEHIISHIOM 0%Z-6T5-TO
%{(09°¢L) 9T "S9E‘'%T (9T %T0°T) YTyl 00°'TSE’ET 00°TSE'ET 56 ¥¥S‘CT Jug Spop - sdueInsul YITeSsH ¥ SITT 0€Z-62S-T0
% ¥C°1IS 2Z°%10'T 8L'9TT'2 89762t 00" TET'® 00" TET'® T6°PLS'E Jug SpPOD - UOTINQTAIUOD JUSWSITISY 0ZZ-62S-TO
% 6%°0G ET"€ST'T L8"SLT'T 26" 08T 00°'62E'C o0-6ze'e §9°981°¢C Jug SpeD - S9xBL ©DTd 01Z-62S-TO
% 00°0 Q00 a0 0 00°0 00°0 00°0 9Z°50¢ Jug SpoD - SWIAISAQ 0%T-62S5-TO
% SL°LY 00'2Z06'ST 00 T®S'PT 00°00%'T 00'E¥¥’0E 00" €% ' 0E €E°LOT'BT jug spop - sabem - Axeres zernbsy 0Z1-625-10

LNIWIDYOINE HAOD

% v 9T 08 6EE'8LT 0Z°8%0'00T T5°L09°'2T 00°G8E'8LE 00°SBE'BLE 8% ¥19'122 TYLOL INIWLIYAHEA

% 00°0 007009 000 000 007009 007009 0070 bpTd - STeTisleW Azeiqrl 3-qnd ‘sS)ood 099-%ZS-TO
% 00°0 00'0 00°0 000 00°0 000 00°SHL'T 1€ - BurpTINg ueyl 1sylo sjuswsaoxdwI 0£9-%ZS-10
% 00'0 (ET" €2T) €T €T 6T € 000 000 88 6LS 169 - sdTysaisquaW ¥ ’°qns ‘°"qnd 'SOOH 0%S-¥T5-T0
% EE€'LTT (66°18) 66" 18¢E 000 00°00€ 00°00€ Z9°LbC'T futuoz » Epra - sat1ddnsg burjeaado 025-%2S-T0
% T6'€9 LT 2L €8°LZT 00°0 00002 00002 ¥Z 59T Butuoz 3 Bpig - so11ddns @2TIFO 0T1S-%25-TO
% 00°0 00052 00°0 00°0 00052 00°0S¢T 000 putuoz ® BpId - sosuadxd T2ABAL 00%-%TS-T0
% 0070 00°000'T 00°0 00°0 00°000'T 00°000'T 00°SLP'T Putuoz % bpig - seoTaxzag burissutbum TIE-¥%25-TO
% TZ°0T SLTTITS ‘06T 52°859'1Z 00°0 00°0LT'ZIT 00 0LT ‘2T €8 LLE'6S Butuoz 3 Bplg - S®OTAI®S [BUOTSS®IOId QTE-¥2S-T0
% GT°69 18°8LS 6T L6T T 000 00°9L8'T 00'9L8'T LT 06€'T oz 3 bprg - uoriesusdwo) S!EELHIASYIOM 0%Z-$2S-10
% 0€70S 8% 9BE'€T 2S5 0GS'€T zvresc’e 00°L£6'92 00°L£6'92 62°99%'SZ Tuoz ¥ Bprg - Soueansur Y3ITedH ¥ SITT 0€Z-9T5-TO
% TL 6D €€'209°L L9 STS'L TH 69T'T 00'8TT'ST 00°8TT'ST ST L9G'€T Tuoz ¥ BPTE - UOTANQTAIUOD JUBWSITIAN 0ZZ-HZS-T0
% 98°8% 6L'8SE'Y T2 %9T'% £%°Z%9 00'€EES’8 00'€25'8 S.L°€9Z'8 Butuoz 3 Bprd - S°xXey eOTA 0TZ-¥25-T0
% §T°TT £€9°TES LE"LY 00°0 00°665S 00665 L0 BLT’T putuoz ¥ BpPTH - SWTIX3A0 0%T-$TS-TO
QI ZITVE 130aad TIVAY SESNIAXT dLX BISNIAXE QLK 1Ipans Lay Igodnd aILIOTY 9TYOLOV NOILdINDNBEA INNODDY
HOVINED¥E] | ¥202 $202 vz02 [ 4411 124014 €202 1/

€ / ¥T0T 129 [BISI4 104 9)9]dWOD JA % 00705
sainypuadxy pung |esauan

MVYNNVOP :¥3SN 982Z5| :oN qor/dyd-fidL05eqb
g8l jo 9 efied m._<_oz<ﬂ__uu_v »..__._.._m_. w_ooﬁ_w POZHOUVA Z1:91 ¥20Z/L0/0




a0

0070 00°000°T 00°0 00°0 00°000°T 00°000'T 86" €6 3!6e§mn0p usp - sabieyp jJusaIND ABYI0 06¥-6ES-TO

% 9L°98 86565 Z0'%06°€ 000 00°005'% 00°00S8'% TI"LEE'T usp-JjurteW ¥ sairedsy-I93us) A3TUNUWOD PIF-6ES-TO
% 0070 00°005°T 00°0 00°0 00°00S'T 00°00S'T SE"BIS INIYW 3 SYIVJAY -aIINdE HSOduNd-TILOW €9%-6€S-TO
% EE°BL 00°0S9 00°05€’'2C 00°0 00°000'€ 00°000'€E 6L°06% D - jurew 3 sartedey - I9qus) AJTATIOV CT9P-6ES-TO
% 99°6ST (ST°959'8) Z8°8L5'6 60°6CE 000009 00°000°9 62°059'¥% Aop uep - jured 3 saredsy - TTeH A3TD T9%-6€S-T0
% TT'Z6 88°88t ZT TT9'% 06°¥¥L 00°000'S 00°000'S LE"TEB'6 18 3!6E€#3A0D USH - SISEIT pue STRIUSY 0%¥-6ES-T0
% 09'¢tt TT°086'% 68°6TG'T 80'S%C 00°00S8°L 00°00S’L 99°19€'9 £#TAODH USD-SITITTTIN-ADIUSD AJTUNWWOD FEF-6ES-TO
% T0°ES PLOPLT'T 97" STE'T 097¢L 0070052 00°005'2 §6°208'2 N9 - SHILITIIA - QIINg JS0d¥Nd-ILTON E£EF-6E€E5-T0
% 08'8¥% Z1°08Z°T 88°6TC'T 0868 00°005°'2 00°005'T T%'L02°C AODH UBH - SOTITTTIN - I23u8) AJTATIOY CZEP-6ES-TO
% 9L"ER SO'TI8'TT S6°88T1°6 0T 8%L 00°000°12 00'000°12 GT'ZHT 61 J!6EHRAOD USD - SOTITTTIN - TTeH AITD TEP-6ES-T0
% ev' 1y ZETOLT'T 89°628 00°0 00°'000°2 00°000°2 9€°659°T 09 usH-uOTIEDTUNWWOD-IDFUS) AJTUNWWOD HTF-6€5-T0
% 0070 (60°2€T'T) 60°ZET'T 00°0 0070 00°0 z9790L°T 09 uUsH - UCTIEDTUNUMO] - SYIOM OTTAnd ETH-6€5-T0
% 9e°'1¥ 6€°6ZE€ L 13°0LT’'S 00°0 00°005‘2T 00700521 9% ' %2291 #3409 u2p - uUOTIEDTUNWWOD - TTBH A3ITD TI¥-6£5-T0
% 00°0 00700001 0070 00°0 00°000'0T 00°000'0T 00°5SS 5 U39 - ASYIQ - SOOTAISG TRUOTSSIIOId CTE-6ES-TO
% 65°9LT (€8°859'L) €8°859'LT v€'82S'T 00'000°0T 00°'000°0T Z6°€96°¢€2 1!{GEHINOD UID - FIDTAISS TPUOTSIIIOIJ O0TE~6ES-TO

SONIQTING L:iAOD TYIENED

TYLOL LNIWLIYIEA

% 007009 (00'00%) 00°00S 00°0 00°00T 00°00T 00°00T 35 - sdrysiaqusy ¥ ‘°qns ‘°qnd ‘SY00d 0%S-8E€5-T10
% 00°0 00°0s¢ 00°0 00°0 00°0s¢2 00°0s¢ 00°0 IejemuIols - s994 I9Y3lo ¥ Burpioosy ze¥-BES-TO
% 0070 007000°0T 00°0 a0 0 00°000°0T 00°000'0T 00°0 I93EeMUIO]S - 9DuPUSIUTEW pue siTedsy 09%-8ES-TO
% 09°L8 00°¥vCT 00°9L8 00°0 00°000°T 00°000'T 00" 0 Is3emuwIols - Bututely S0¥-8€S5-T0
% 0070 007000°T 00°0 00°0 00°000°T 00°000'T A4 I33eMUIOlS - S3susdxy [9ARIL 00%-8€S-TO
% 0070 (00°5L6°0T) 00°SL6'0T 00°0 00°0 00°0 0S°2E0'0T I93BMWIO]S - SIDTAISS Purasaurhbud TIE-BES-TO
% 00°0 007000 '€Z 00°0 000 00°000°€2 00°000°€2 06°29%"1 YAIYMAPOLS - SHDIAYES TYNOISSHIO¥d OTE-BES-TO
AHLYMWIOLS
o= =esas as== ssamases sEEs s=sapamssss = EnnEsEsESESS SSSSSEIEssIEEESSSSE SESSSSINSFSSSSSSSS SSSSEEREERSSSSssSs
% vE€°6% 207198861 86 " ¥69°€6T 8T"LEQ'ET 00°295°26¢E 00°295'26¢E ST°0TE'¥9E TYLOL INIWLIVIIA
% 16°9% LL* 112 69 €2'%ST’'T9 00°0 00°99€'0ET 00°99€£'0€T 567556 '8ET osnzey - TeToIswwo) - Tesodstq 8sngoy ZyE-vES-T0
% §59°0§ 52559621 SL0PS'ZET BT'LEO'EZ 00°961°292 00°96T'29¢C 0z ¥SE’'SzTe sngey - [eTiuepTsey - TesodsTq 9sngey THE-PES-TO
qazZITvEd LIDAN] TIVAY STINIIXT ALX BIONIIXE QALK Lgpang orav LADANE qQIALLOaVY STYALOY HOILJI¥OBEA INOOODVY
HOVLNIOHAL | $202 vzoT | 4411 veoz veoz €zaz /9

€/ bZOT 123 |edsid 104 @1e1dwo) JX % 00°0§
sainjipuadx3 pund |eiousn

MVNNVOF :¥3sn 98251 :0oN qor/dyd-6d 105896
81 4o . obed STVIONVNI ATHINOW b20z HOHVIN 2194 ¥Z02/L0M0




% 0€°8 S6°9LL'89 50°€2Z'9 00°0 00°000°'SL 00°000°'SL L9 LELZ'S s 3 speoy - sar1ddng ¥ s{etaojel peody Q€S-T¥S-T10
% 00°0 00°00S sl ] 00°0 00005 00°00S 000 5399135 ¥ SpEOY - STEdTWSYD $T5-T1¥S-10
% LB ZE T0ETL'9 667982 € §9°6ST 00°000°0T 00°000°0T 0L ¥89°L s399135 ¥ speoy - sat11ddns butiezado 025-T¥S-TO
% 96°8E TZ'S0€ 6L V61 [4 a8 44 00°005 00005 (40 114 5392135 3 Speoy - saT1ddng 3°TIFO OTS-1¥S-TO
% 0070 00°000°¢€ 00°0 000 00°000°'2 00'000°¢2 95" ETO0'T s399135 3 Speoy - Tejusy juswdinby €69-THS-T0
$ 00°0 00'002 0070 00°0 00° 002 00002 £9° €% s3je@ax3s - uorjonpoadey pue HuTIUTIg OLP-T¥S-TO
% €276 TE'BES 'Y 69°19% Qo0 00°000'S 00°'000°S S6°LLE'T doy - A3JTTTORd SOTITTTIN/SHIOM DTTANd 99%-1¥S-T0
% 81°2¢C 89 BEE’E zE'199'¢ 0070 00°000°2T 00°000'eT €€°5E6'8 §399135 3 SPEOY - SDURUSJUTE[ ITDTYSA S9%-T1¥S-T0
% 6T°8S BT TLT'¥ z8°828°'S 00°0 00°000°'0T 00°000'0T 78 009'L §19913§ ¥ SpecYy - 1904 S11PTYSA $9%-195-10
% 98°%€ 99 ETS ‘L PET98F%'C 000 00°000°0T 00°'000°0T TLLLE'RT woy - juswdrnbg-soueusjutey ¥ sitedsy T9¥-T¥S-TO
% 9T°ST Lz 9TL'TT gL eLe'’'e €L €T 00°000'ST 00°000'ST €8 ¥SL'Y 135 ® speocy - @oueuajurel pue satedsy 09%-T1¥S-TO
% 00°0 (€8 5T) £8°5¢ 00°0 00°0 00°'0 000 s19913S ¥ Speoy - g9sed] pue STeJusd 0vy-TI¥S-T0
% YT €€ SE"HOL’92 §9'66Z €T 90 T0L'T 00°000'0% 00°000'0% 15°22€'92 8399135 ¥ Speod - S9TITITIN 0EP-T¥S-TO
% 1£°8 BT 691’6 z8 ' 0€8 00°0 00°000'0T 00°000°0T £€'G8E‘¢E 91718 3 SPEOY - SOOTAISS UOTIBOTUTWWOD O0TH-THS-TO
% 00°0 00°000°T 000 000 00°000'T 00'000'T 00" 8EY 91991315 - BuTureIl S0%-T¥S-TO
% 00°0T 00 0S¥ 000§ 00°0 00005 00° 00§ Qo' 08 5392135 % Speoy - sesuadxd [IAeLL 007-T¥S-TO
%5 00°0 00°000'S6 00°0 000 00°000'S6 00°000°S6 LL"GBE'EE 199135 ¥ Speoy - 990TAIas Burtassutbudg TTE-T¥S-TO
% 0Z° €T S§9°8IL'PE GE'T8Z'S 00°SZT 00°000°'0% 00°000'0% 8L 69612 98138 ¥ SpeOY - SODTAISS TPUOTSS33IO0Id 0TE-THS-T0
% ET"LS GE'0ES'9 §9 HEE’ET 00°0 00°598'6T 00°698'61 9L°TTT'02 s ¥ gpeoy - uotjesudduo) S!EEHITINIOM 0¥Z-THS-TO
% T1°6€E €8°€00°'TH LT Z%E’'9C 8€ TET’9 00" 9%€’'LY 00°9%€'L9 G§9°0€E0 ‘6% 1315 ¥ gpeoy - 2DuUBRINSUL YITESH I SITT 0€Z-T%S5-TO
% €57 €Y ¥2 L99 LT 9L°0Z9 €T so-sLe’'e 00°882°TE 00882 1€ 68°LES'ET I35 ¥ Speoy - UOTANTIIUOD JUSBWSIATISY 0TT-T¥S-TO
% GB°LE 06 E8%'TT 0T €66'9 (IS 22481 00" LLY'8T 00" LLY'8T LT LLT'HT 5399135 ¥ SpeOY - SOXEBL ©OT4d 0TIZ-1%5-T10
% ST°5% $6°128'T 90" E£ZE'T S0 €9T 00°SPT’S 00“SPT'S 60°88L L 53198135 ¥ SPEOY - SWIIISAQ O0FT-THS-TO
% 00°0 (99°502) 99°50¢ 99° 0% 00°0 00°0 00°S0T 15 ¥ speoy - sabeym pue soTIRTES ISYI0 O0E€T-T¥S-TO
% 67" 8€ 8L 20V ’'S¥T 22 586'06 LS 8ZE'LT Q0 8BE’'9€EC 00°88€'9€T 98 ¥S¥'9LT 8115 % speoy - sabem - Axeres I1B[nboY 0ZT-TI¥S-T0
SIAFULS ANY SAVOU

e semEEEEE EESESEEEESESEEaEEE SEESSESSSESEEEEEENE SSSSSSSSSSSSESEESEY SSSSSSTSSSSSESNEEE SASSSSSSSSSSENNEEN SESssssssssan

% TL°9% 69 %90 '%L 86 LSt 69 06°260'S 00°005’8%T 00°005'8%T z9 L5920t TYLOL INIWI¥YAAA

% 00°0 00°000°se 00°0 00°0 00°000°s2 00°000°'s2 00°0 o usp - juswdrnbg 3 ‘yoBW - TT®H A3ITD 1%9-6£5-T0
% 00°0 00700052 00°0 00°0 00°000°SZ 00°000°s2 00°0 sBpTE 1!6E#3A0D USD - SBUTPTITNE 029-6ES-TO
% 0070 00°000'T 00°0 00°0 00°000°T 00°000°T 00°'0 1tng - sor7ddng 3 syeriajey sdedspue] TES-6E£G-TO
% £6°9% 9 €LZ'T 9€'92T'T gL ve 00°00%'T 00°00%'T 66 ¥IT'Z o-sot11ddng Butjexsdo-aejusd AJTUnUWC) HTS-6E£S-T0
% EP 6ET (EZ 6ET) £V 6ET 0070 00°00T Q0 00T z0'008 1ddng burieasdo - prind ®50dand-TITNH €ES-6€S-TO
% 6T°TTT (z6°112T) Z6°1IC'T 65°669 00°000°T 00°000°'T LO'TPT'T got1ddns Butrjexsdo - x83us) AITATIOY TZS-6£5-TO
% Z8°SHT (z1°162°2) T 162'L z9' €09 00°000°'S 00°000'S TV TI6'Y uen - seoryddns Butiexzado - TTeH A3TD T25-6€5-TO
qEZITVES 135008 TIVAY gIgNIdXa QLXK SESNIAXE QLK 1Ipang ray 1Epang aILIOqY STYOLOY NOIIJIYOSAT INOODDY
HOYINIONE] | 202 vzoz 202 $207 vzoz €202 /P

€ 1 bZ0Z :1ed) [edsi Jo4 939|dwoD IA % 00°0S
sainjipuadx3 pund |eiaudn
ARSI S0 STVIONVNI4 ATHLNOW $20Z HONVIN L DR L s

AlLID M170d 40 ALID

Z1:91 $202/10/%0




coEssEEEREs SSSSSESENEESSESsSSS EENEES

ss=ssmwE

% TL'EY 68°669'T0T TT TTI0‘6L 0T 0LT'6 00°TTL'08T 00°TTL’'08T L6°LE6’6ST TYIOL INIAWLIVAIA
% LB 8T 85°62Z €T TP OLE’S 0€°6GE 00°009'8T 00°009’8T €5°T9T 8T aqTT - STeTI®IeN AxeaqrT 3°qnd ‘SYO08 099-TLS-TO
% 00°0T ZI0ER ‘T 887692 000 00°o0L’'T oorooL'e 80°L92'T 11 - sdrysasquswW ¥ ‘°qus ‘'qnd ‘SHO0H 0¥%S-TLS-T0
% 00°0 00002 000 000 00°002 007002 9€° 82 1q1T - sotrddns 3 sTetadjen =deospueT TES-TLS-TO
$ 98°SE ST°LOZT'E S8°Z6L'T T 8T 00°000°S 00°000°S L9°LT6'T Azexqr - sat1ddns Buraeasdo 02S-TLS-TO
% L6°0T 0S 9TV’ T 0S°SLT 00°0 00°009°T 00°009'T 50°299 Azxeaqr - so17ddng 80TIFO O0TS-TLS-TO
% 00°0Q 00°00¢ 00°0 00" 0 007002 00°'002 00°'0 AxexqtT - sebaeyp Jul3IIND ASYIQ 06¥-TLS-TO
%791 00°855°C 00°¢¥ 00°0 00°009°2 00°009'T 08995 1e1qTT - SPY TeBoT 3 SSTITATIOY owoxd 08%-TLS-TO
% 0070 00°00€E 00°0 00'0 00°00€ 00°00€ 00°0 Azeaqry - uotjonpoadsy pue BuTIUTAd OLP-TLS-TO
% €7 EVE (58°8EE"T) 58°888°T 00°0 00°0SS 00°0SS $5°89% Azeaqr1 - sourudjutel pue satedsy 09%-TLS-TO
% T 82T €9°080'% LE'6T9'T €L°62T 00°00L'S 00°00L’S ¥0°066°C Azeaqrl - SSTITLTIN 0€¥-TLS-TO
% 9€°¢E 08" 96€'% 0Z'€0T'Z 0% 9LT 00°005’9 000059 86 EEL'E AzeIqTT - S9OTAISS UOTILOTUNUMIOD OT¥-TLS-TO
% 0070 00°000°T 000 00'0 00°000'T 00°000°T 00°0 AzexqiT - Butureal SO0¥-TLS-TO
% 00°0 00°0S§ 00°0 00°0 00°0S§ 00°0Sg 00'0 AzeaqrT - sosuadxd TSABIL 007-TLS-TO
% 00°0 00°002°€ 000 00'0 00°002'¢€ 00°002'€ PSTLL8'T ®IQTT - ISY3l0 - S9DTAISS [PUOTSSIIOId ZIE-TLS-TO
% 0L°SPT (TL°6L2'T) TL'6L0'Y 05°L6T 00°008°C 00°'008°2 S%'209°¢e AIeIqQTT - 990TAIIS TRUOTSSDIOAd OTE-TLS-TO
% LOTLI (56°56) S6°0€T 00°0 00°'SET 00°SET £0' %S¢ Axzexqry - uotaesuadwod sS!EEHIISHION 0vZ-TLS-TO
% 56°T% 90°Te9 ST $6°88C'TT 8 8% 00°0T6'92 00°'0T6'92 LT S9%'sT Azezqr - SoueInsul Y3ITedH ¥ ©ITT 0€Z-TLS-TO
% 6€°2S 00°S¥%’S 00°266°S 85" €26 00 LEV'TT 00°LEV'TT S6°2€EZ'0T Azexqrl - UOTINGTIFUOD IJUBWSITIDI 0TZ-TLG-TO
% IS'1S 85°921 € Ty TTE‘E 197 0TS 00°8%%'9 00°8%%'9 09°5LT’'9 Axeaqrq - soxel edTd 01Z-TLSG-TO
% 00°0 00°'91S 00°0 00°0 00°9T5 00°91TS zT 91 Azeiqrq - SWIIISA0 0%T-TLS-TO
% SL°8Y 86°8C6'CY Z0°9€E8 0% 00°908'9 00°S9L’€EB 00'S9L’'€8 98 LO% €8 Axexqril - sabem - AxeTes rernbsy 0TI-TLS-T0
AYTIEIT
i EmEsa EEEEEEEEEESEESSSEE EEEESSSSSSSSESNEEE ERSSSSSSSSSSSEENEES SESSSSSSSssSSESEES SSSSSSSSEEENEEESSES SESSSSSEREEEEEs==s
% 80°%T 1S°%19°212'T 6% v¥9 ‘86T LT €EE’'6T 00°6SZ'TTV'T 00°652 'TT?'T £5°068'€ES TYIOL INAWLIVAHA
% 00°0 00°0 00°0 00°0 00°'0 00°0 00°0TS peoy - sTetraeleW AxeaqrI 3'qnd ‘SYOO0H 099-T¥S-T0
% L0°0 00°055'6%9 00°05% 00°0 00000059 00000 ‘059 00°0 15 3 Speoy - sgaaboid UT UOTIONIISUOD 059-THS-TO
% 60°0 6Z°000'€S L 6% 00°0 00°0S0‘€S 00°'050'€S LE 920'%9 @o13s ¥ speoy - Jjuswdtnby 3 AISUTUOBW 0%9-T¥S-TO
% 00°0 (8L 6ET'T) BL 6ET'T 000 00°0 00°0 00°2Z08'6E oy - BurpTTng ueyl I9YA0 SIudwoAoIduI 0E€9-THS-T0
% 00709 00°'002 00°00€ 00°0 00°00§ 00°00§ 86°L8 og - sdrysasqusy ¥ ‘'qns ‘-qnd ‘S300€ 0%¥S-T¥S-T0
% 00°0 00005°2 00°0 00°0 00°00S'2 00°00S‘C ¥8°589 peoy - sor(ddng 3 sTerxsien adeospue] TES-T¥S-T0
QEZITYEY Igoand TIVAY SEENEaXE QLA SISNIAXE ALK 1gpang La¥ IZoang aILdoav STYALOY NOIL4INDSEQ INOODDY
HOYINZONEL | $202 [ 241 [ 24114 vz02 vzoz £202 /0
€ / YZ0T 183 |2IS1] 104 939|dWOD IA % 00°0S
saJinjipuadxy pund |eJauag
ANNVOIEen STVIONVNI4 ATHLNOW $20Z HONVIN 9951 :ON qor/dud'6d 105890

ALID M170d 40 ALID

Z1:91 $T02/1L0/V0




% 0T°0 05°86% T 05°T 00°0 00°005'T 00°00S'T 08°205'T 1deq-uoN - 3Be3sod 825-065-10
$ G6° 9P PYULLY'T 9572202 ¥8° 095 00°00S'¥% 00°00S'% 6L°GLO'F 3daq uoN - SwIoITUn STS-065-TO
% 57'8 0LZIL'ET 0E"LEZ'T 00°0 00°000°ST 00°000’ST L9 EOD'TT Tqexadp - sorousburjuc) 3 sarousbrawd 125-065-10
% BO'LET (6% 21T T) 6v'ZTT'¥ zs'0zT 00°000'€ 00°000°€ €8 LIV T sjdag-uoN - sat11ddns Hurieasdo 025-065-T10
% 9%° %S 6E°S5Y 19" %95 zZ TET 00°000'T 00°000'T 90°620'T Tejuswiredsq-uoN - sa9T1ddns 99TII0 0TS-06S-T0
% 00°0S 00°000°T 00°000'T 00'0 000002 00°000'2 00°0 3deq uoN - ssBreyD JuaIIND ISYI0 06¥%¥-065-TO
% G0°9T L6°8L9°T €0'TZE $0'LTE 00°000'2 00°000°'Z 0T"L60'T ejuswiredag-uoN - SOUBUDIUTEW STITYSA S97-065-T0
% £6°SL 6€°2ET 19" LTY 00°0 00°'0SS 00°0SS 6€£°859 Tejuswizedaq -uoN - TeNd STOTUSA $9¥-065-10
% 9€°60T (05°8L0°6) 05°8L0°'90T 00'0 00°000°L6 00°000°L6 05°85L°08 1dsg-uoN - soueinsul AITTIeTT 0S%-065-T0
% L0'8 T€7950°S 69 €%V €L°88 00°00S°S 00°00S'S 00°0 a1deg-uoN - sesesT pue S{ejusy 0¥¥-065-T10
% zL'ze T6°95% €T 60°€E¥S ‘9 000 00°000°02 00°000°02 L6°TTT 8T adag-uoN - Butitpny pue BUTiunoddy 0ZE-065-T0
% 0070 00°000°0T 00°0 00'0 00°000°0T 00°000'0T 05" LLL g-uoN - I8Yl0Q - S9OTAISS [BUOTSH8I0Id ZIE-065-T0
% 6T E¥ G8°'T186°6T ST'8TT'ST 00°520'T 00°000’SE 00°000°SE 5Z°T0E'8T 3jdeg-uoN - S9DOTAISS TPUOTSS330aId 0T€-065-T0

TYINHWIEYIRA - NON

......... —= == S E======—=== ==== [ SR S

% 8% PTI ($G°L80°TT) ¥5°LBE’'9S 00°0 00°00€’S¥ 00°'00E’SY LT L6E'6E TYLOL INHWINYAEA
% 89708 92°2SE'T ¥LOLF9'S 00°0 00°000’L 00°000’L LY Z6E'Y squeag oadg - so11ddng buraexado 0¢S-¥LS-TO
% 95782 0S°TLS 0s' 822 00°0 00°008 00°008 00°0 sjusag osdg - sabIey) JUSIIND ISYI0 06F-¥LS-TO
% 00°0 00°000°T 00°0 00°0 00°000"T 00°000'T 00°0 g peds - spy TebBoT 3 SSTITATIOV OwWord 08%-¥LS-TO
% L6°LYT (0E°TTE'9T) 0E"TTE'0S 0070 00°000'%E 00°000'¥E 08°588'2¢ sjusag oads - S9ses] pue sTejuay 0%¥-¥LS-TO
5 00°8 00°00€E'2 007002 00° 0 00°005°'2 00°005'2 00°6TT'T sjusag oadg - S9DTAISS [PUOTSSaJOAd OTE-¥LSG-TO

SINIAZ TYIDAAS

S ————————— SRR RS S S S L S

4 98°8% L5°9T8'6T €% €E6 8T Ly ZLL 00°05L'8E 00°'0SL‘8€ $9°G6T'ZE TYLOL INININYdEa
% Tv 86T (90" v86) 90°%86'T 6L°8SE 00°000°T 00°000'T 98°0LE s)zed - sottddng Burjexado 025-ZL5-TO
% 00°0 00'0SL 00°0 00°0 00°0SL 00°0SL 8E"T0% ssied - rejusy juswdinbm €6%-TL5-TO
$ %9°0L 08°L9V'T 02 ZES'€E 00°0 00°000‘S 00°000°S 69°ST6'9 sx1ed - soueusjuTen pue sateddsy 09%-2LS-TO
% ELTED 0579956 0S €€V 'L 8T°TST 00°000’LT 00°000°LT T0°L00'2T s)Ieg - SOTATTTIN 0EH-ZLS-TO
% 68°6€ £€°9T0'6 L9°€86'S 05°292 00°000°ST 00°'000'ST 0.°006'TT S)Ied - S9OTAIDS TRUOTSESTOId 0TE-ZLS-TO

sy¥vd
QIZITVE 185008 TIVAY S4SN=dX= QLR BISNIIXT QIR 1=pana rav 1IpaN8 qILL0aY STNOIOY NOIL4INDSEA INOODDY
HOVINEDNSA | #202 12414 $Z02 1 2414 1241]4 €202 1/

€ | $20T :1eap |easld Jo4 9391dwod IA % 00°0S
sainjipuadxg pund [eJauss
MVNNVOr :¥3sn 98Z5) :oN qor/dyd-6d~1058q6
2110 01 sBeg STVIONVNI4 ATHLNOW ¥20Z HO¥VI Smatrere

ALID M170d 40 ALID




TS - LAB BEL—

TR 'SsLE‘gEL

PL 6b0 0P

00°0

100

Qe LER BT L

s3A0] 1PUadYd "SA InU3IAIY Tejol

ELC "GO €5 005 ‘FER'E
BT " LE CETEE9'SSET

LOGFT’ERE T
fa'LZTOEETE

CT*"$CL“FET
LB ED8"HLT

00 RER“LTOF
0O SERLIO'E

OO QE2YLTO b
OO g LTO

LE-OTR’SLR’T
EE€"FSF’'FSE’E

TP40l S23103IPUSIEd pung TPI1DUR)
Tvgol, SOUUDADYY pumg Tei1DUDD

Sssssssssss EEssssSsSsSssSSSSosa SSoosSSsSssssss Sscsmm========nusas SSSSsssSsssTTEmEss SSSSSsssoonsasa

% T9°S9 6€°9GE'CTT T9°202'8%T €5 818'€F 00°655'092 00°655°S9¢C TYIOL INIWLAYdIT

% L6°0C L T06°L 92°L60°C 2T° 582 00°000'0T 00°000'0T SE'9PL'E g-uoN - soBaeyp butieiado-uoN - ISUIO 666-065-T0
% 0070 TT°68T (117 682) 000 00°0 000 L0°S9T'T 1deqg-uoN - 3920 PeE 966-065-T0
% 00°0 00°000'T 00'0 00'0 00°000°T 00°000°T 00°06€ sjuswAedraaQ JO punyad S66-065-T0
% 00°0 00°000'€ 00°0 00°0 00°000°€ 00°000'€ §9°L8TZ'1 3dog-uoN - suterd Juswhordwaun 266-06S5-T0
% LSBT 00°00s‘2 007000°'T Q07008 00°005°€ 00°005°€E 00°000°T g-uoN - suotijeztuebip ®71eaTAd 03 SPTY T66-065-T0
% 00°0 00°60%'ZE 00°0 Q00 00°60%'2CE 00°60%'LE 00°0 ON - S9AI9S9Y Po3IDTIISAIU(] - SSAIISAY 0%6-065-TO
% 50°88 8Z°6LT ZL"0zZE'T 00°0 00°00S‘T 00°005'T T9°9L0°T asuutq AepTioH seAoTdwd $55-065-10
% ¢9°1T LL €88 £C79T1T g0°0 00°000°T 00°000°T 88°LTL spremy/Butisan esAorduy €55-065-T0
% 00°0 00°000°'T 00°0 00°'0 00°000'T 00°000'T 00°0 Butissl LOad 2S5-06S-TO
% L9769 00°Z8T 00°8T% 00°0 00°009 007009 00°'80% sesfordug - SuUOTIRZTUMMMI TS5-06S-T0
% 00°0 00° 009 00°0 000 007009 00°005 05°69 3831 Bnag/wexy juswhoTdug-91d 055-065-T0
% TE'€9 20°TO0E’E 86°869°S 298818 00°000°‘6 00°000°6 Z0°659'8 NON- sdtysasqusW{ % ’‘-qng '"dnd ‘sS)00€ 095-065-TO
qAZITEN LEOANT TIVAY SFSNAIXE AL SH8NIdXE QIR 1I5ane rav 13DaNs aIL4oav STYAIDY NOILATHOBEA LNAODOY
FOVLNIDIEL | ¥202 veoe vzoz vzoz yeoz €202 1/D

MVNNVOr :¥3sn
81 Jo || ebed

€ / $Z0T 1183 |BISId 104 8)a|dwo) JA % 00°0S
sainjipuadxs pung [eJaudg

STVIONVNI4 ATHLINON ¥202 HOMVIA
ALID)TOd 40 ALID

98Z51 ‘oN qor/dyd-6d— 105896
Z1:91 ¥20Z/1L0/H0




CITY OF POLK CITY

%@Jf}ﬁf;:.;?fob No: 15285 Simple Balance Sheet 52"5%? .?(f)lskNNAK
For Fiscal Year: 2024 thru Month: Mar
Fund: 05 ENTERPRISE FUND

Account Account Ending Net
Numbex Title Bal Amount
05-101-100 Cash - Checking 3,014,827.96
05-101-900 Cash - Water Impact Fee Account 150.00
05-101-913 DEP Loan - Sinking Fund 87,104.04
05-101-916 US Bank - Sink Fund 801,012.56
05-101-917 US Bank - Renewal & Replacement Series 200,994.11
05-101-918 DEP Loan WW531400 - Sink Fund 985.06
05-101-919 DEP Loan WW531402 - Sink Fund 28,6295.89
05-101-920 Cash - Customer Deposits 366,180.00
05-101-936 FDEP 531402 Sinking Fund 11,931.67
05-115-100 Accounts Receivable - Utilities 256,442.86
05-115-130 Accounts Receivable - Readiness to Serve 20,138.43
05-115-200 Accounts Receivable - Year End 9,938.00-
05-117-100 Allowance for Bad Debt 327.41-
05-117-200 Allowance for Uncollectible A/R 20,389.46-
05-151-100 Investments - FL SAFE EF 647,825.65
05-151-902 Investments - FL SAFE EF Reserves 135,969.48
05-155-300 Prepaid Insurance - Deferred Bond Series 2017 29,013.62
05-159-100 Deferred Outflows - Related to Pension 147,954.23
05-159-200 Deferred Outflows - Loss on Refunding 629,103.39
05-160-902 Reserve Account 100,000.00
05-160-903 Reserve Bcct - Emergencies & Contingency 48,044.00
05-161-3800 Fixed Assets - Land 2,762,913.00
05-164-100 Utility Plant in Service 16,445,594.67
05-165-900 Acc.Dep. - Improvements Other than Build 5,029,784.42-
05-166-900 Equipment & Furniture 930,832.90
05-167-900 Accumulated Depreciation - Equipment 447,067.54~-
05-169-300 CIP - Construction Costs 49,6495.61

** TOTAL ASSET** 21,207,790.30
05-202-100 Accounts Payable 84,008.18
05-202-200 Accounts Payable - Year End 89,579.00
05-202-900 Customer Deposits 362,780.00
05-203-100 Accumulated Interest Payable 49,329.17
05-203-600 SRF Loan WWS51201P 1,674,524,85
05-203-610 SRF Loan WW53140/SG531401 Effluent Disposal 30,495.24
05-203-615 SRF Loan WW531402/SG531403 778,037.50
05-203-710 US Bank 2017 Bond Note 7,410,000.00
05-203-910 Unamoritized Bond Premiums - US Bank 468,166.37
05-208-305 Taxes Payable 19,502.85
05-216-100 Accrued Payroll 19,512.31-
05-218-320 Supplemental Insurance Payable 2,002.98-
05-223-100 Deferred Revenue 1,364,325.00
05-225-100 Deferred Inflows - Related to Pension 13,560.19
05-234-100 L-T-D - Current Portion 438,421.72
05-234-901 Less: Current Portion of LTD 438,421.72-
05-235-800 OPEB Liability 14,350.51
05-235-900 Net Pension Liability 344,376.14

*+ TQTAL LIABILITY** 12,681,559.71
05-243-100 Encumbrances Placed 51,113.25
05-245-100 Reserved for Encumbrances 51,113.25-

*% TOTAL ENCUMBRANCE** 0.00
05-250-100 Contributed Capital 598,715.40
05-255-100 Change in Fund Balance 36,514.20




CITY OF POLK CITY

04/01/2024 16:09 . Page 3 of 5§
gb614_pg.php/Job No: 15285 Simple Balance Sheet USER: JOANNAK
For Fiscal Year: 2024 thru Month: Mar
Fund: 05 ENTERPRISE FUND
Account Account Ending Net
Number Title Bal Amount

05-271-100 Fund Balance Unreserved 6,797,039.09
05-271-150 Fund Balance - Restatement 12,428.57-
05-271-200 Net Asset Adjustment Account 10,071.23-

05-272-100 Retained Earnings 734,552.82

** TOTAL EQUITY**

** TOTAL REVENUE**

*%* TOTAL EXPENSE**

TOTAL LIABILITY AND EQUITY

8,144,321.71

1,374,998.35

993,089.47

21,207,790.30




% 00°LE 00°Z0T'9TL'E Z1°895'9LL'T STYLOL LNIWLYYIHEA

% 00°0 00" %%L’CLE 0070 00°0 00°%¥L'ZLE 00°P¥L'CLE 00°0 paemzod Axxe) ysed 006-TI8E-S0
% 0070 00°0 00°0 00°0 00°0 000 vy 0oL 90TOAUI - JUSWSSANQUTSY - SWOdUT OSTW 00L-69€E-50
% 00°0 00°0 00°0 00°0 Q070 00°0 8576¢CS swrer) - SPuRINSULl T0P-69€-S0
% 00°0 0070 00°'0 00°0 00°0 00°0 €67 E€9T'TT o9y jued - SbersaQ I9mMEIQ YSeD CIT-69E-S0
% 00°0 (007009 %) 00°009'% 00°000°Z 00°0 0070 00°0 swooul ‘OSTW 00T-69t-50
% Pv°¥9 90°S09'TT v6'TE0'TT ZI'9LS'E 00°LE9'CE 00" LE9'TE 00°808'%E q4¥S 1d - SPUIPTATQ/IS2I93UI  00Z-T9E-SO
¥ 99'LY 00°06L €T 00"8SS‘TT 05°890°'¢ 00°8¥%€'9¢C 00'8%€'9¢C 05" ¥PE ‘92 s984 83eT 00€-65€-50
% 89'8¢ 00 SEP'T 007506 00°09T 00°0%E’'2 00°0%€E‘2 00°0¥9'2 spund JuSTOTIINS UON 00Z-65E-50
% €87°6F 00°SE¥ 0T 00°S2S ‘€T 00°SE¥’'2 00°096°€€ 00096 '€€ 00"SPE'ZE saanijTejiod I0/pue SaUTd ISYI0 00T-65E-S0
% ¥P 09 99°0€EE’'ZS9 PE'8T6 €99 60°%00'9TT 00°6%2'9TE"T 00"6%Z'9TE’T 06" TISV'662'T snuaasy A3TTTIN ASM3S 005-0%E-SO
% 8L767 ZET00E'099 89'86% '¥S9 LE FILETT 00°66L'PTE’T 00°66L'PTE'T 9L TPT’'8TE’T snusAay¥ A3ITTTIN I938M 00€-0PE-S0
% 00°00T 00°0 007009 00°0 00°008 007009 69°€05'T 93TWI8g/S993/ 'OTT I9YI0 00Z-62€E-SO
%-06"4L I8°10T'2C (I8 €ST) 00°0 00°8%6'T 00°8%6"'1 86°L¥0'PT as3eM - 9breyD saxes 0] SssuTpedy TTZ-5ZE-S0
%-6C°L 0E“¥6S'Y (0€"2TE) 0070 00°282'% 00'282'% T8°92L'%T aamag - SbxeyD) sAIS5 01 SgauUTpesy 0T1Z-5Z€-50
% €9'BE 2T LST'9 89°Z¥8'¢E 96°55S 00°000°0T 00°000'0T 09768E'6T sTseg yse) - I93eM - S994 UOTIDIUUO) TIT-5ZE-SO
%-68°L 8E'0TC (BE-ST) 00°0 00°S6T 00°S6T €6 %07 T I ALQ %0T A3TD - SI¥ TOE-%I€E-S0
QIZITVEY LIDIZAQ/ (BSADXH) AONFATY QLA HONIATY INI¥YNO QALVGIDILNY SONSASY QIIVAIOIINY | SANIASY ¥X JOTIUd NOILAINOBIA INAODDY
OVINIDIEAL | 202 ycoz yeoz oay 1444 €202 1/

€ | $Z0T :1ea [easid 104 ajejdwio) JA % 00°0S
INN3IAIY ANNL 3ISRIdYILNT

AVNNYOILHRSN STVIONVNI4 ATHLNOW $Z0Z HONVIN B

ALID M170d 40 ALID



% LOTTC 0L VIE’'9 0€°989'T 00°0 00°000'8 007 000’8 0s°09Z'S 13dp 193EM - SOOTATISS UOTIBDTUTWMIOD JT¥-££5-S0
% 00°0 00°0SL'T 0070 00°0 00°0SL'T 00°05L’T 05°90€E'T 1sdo x23eM - BUTUTRIL SO0P-E€€5-S0
% ES°69 ¥8°08€E 91698 00°0 00°0sT'T 00°0S2'T 8BS 06T'T zado 133eM - sosuadxd TPARIL 00¥%-£€5-50
% Z8'¥T 00°65L'€E 00°T%2'T 00°'0 00°000'S 00°'000°'S 00'T%¥’'C sorduwes - SaDTAISS TRUOCTSS2FOAd HTE-EES-S0
% $5°6% 0€°600°T 0L 066 00°0 00°000°'2C 60’0002 €0°96T'T TeuoThsy }TOd - S2DTAIIF TEUOTSSIIOId ETE-EES-SO
% S9°T% ST 0L9°TT 58°62€’8 £€'8EB 00°000'0Z 00'000°'02 ZI'ZEE'S I93eM - ISYI0 - SIDTAIDS [PUOTSSSIOId ZTE-EE5-S0
% 96°'8T Sz*9€0'18 GL E96°'8T 00°0 00°000°00T 00°000'00T SLTELZT'TS xado 133eM - S90TAIDg Hutisaurbud TTE-£E€5-S0
% 68°07% 08'998'8 0T €ET'9 0S°ZIT 00°000'ST 00°000°'ST 6% %879 zadp 193eM - S9DTAISS TeUOTISS33J0Id OTE-EES-SO
% LO"ECT (00°168) 00" €SL'Y 000 00°798°¢ 00°2Z98'€ €€ TP6 'Y odo zo93em - uoiljesuaduoc) s!ECRPAIAIOM 0FZ-£E£5-SO
% 0Z°LY ¥0°65% T2 96 0BT ‘6T 9L°960'€ 00°0%9'0% 00°'0%9°0% ¥Z TLS'EE aedp x93EM - 9DPURANSUI YITBSH ¥ ©ITT 0€T-€E€S-50
% T9°58 £€9°52€'C LE'6EB'ET 69°00Z°¢ 00°S9T'9T 00°G9T'9T 96°'LST'SL zadp a93BM - UOTINQTIIUOD JUBWSITISY 0ZZ-£ES5-S0
% ¥9°€9 €7 SSE’ ¥ LL'TTY'L 6z 122’1 00°'8L6°TT 00°8L6’TT 6L° 505 €T aado 193eM - SOXBL ®DTI4 0TZ-€£€£5-50
% $T°9% 61°Z¥8'E T8°062°€ g€ 98L 00 EET'L 00‘€ET L 59°89¢'8 I9dp 193BM - SWTIISA0 0FT-€ES5-S0
% 0070 (€8°20T) £8°201 £€°0T 000 000 05'2S a9dp 197eM - sobey pue soTIETES I9YIQ O0ET-EEG-SO
% zZ"z9 81°259%'95 Z8°686°'C6 65'5Z%'ST 00°2¥%'6¥T 00'THH ‘67T 79 €£98'%9T 19dp z93eM - Sabeym - Axeres aeInboy 02ZT-£€S-S0O
% $9°TE €67 LSL'TST LY 0ET'OL TE ELL'ET 00886 ‘TZT 00°886°'12¢ VL VOT'ELT TYLOL INAWLIYAHEA

% 00°0 000 000 000 00°0 00°0 00°086'9 eM - ButpTing ueyl isyijo sijuswssordwl 0€9-8TS-SO
% 00'0 00°00€ 000 000 00°00€ 00°00€ 88°6€EZ ey - sdrysiequsy ® ‘"qns ' qnd 'SYOCH 0%¥S-8TS-S0
% TL'P9 L1628 £8°0L6 [ lAk44 00°005'T 00°005’'T €1°5CE’T utwpy Is3eM - s317ddng Burjeiado 025-815-50
% €77 FE €V E6E L5°90¢ 6L° %8 00°009 00°009 $9°€6¥ utwpy I93eM - s2T1ddns 0T3O 0T5-8BTS5-S0
% 0070 00°00S 000 00°0 00° 005 00° 00§ 0070 uTWpY xajeM - s3b1ey) JuSIIND IIYI0 06%-BIS-S50
% 00°0 00 00% 00°0 000 00°00% 00°00% 00°0 wpy z33eM - uorionpoxadsy pue BUTIUTId O0LP-BTS-SO
% £5°99 00°'1S2 00°66% 00°0 00'0SL 00°0SL 00982 UOTIeIISTUTWPY Iojey - BurtuTtell S0v-8TS-SO
3 00°0 00'05L 000 00°0 00°0SL 00°0SL 00°0 uTwpy isjem - Buturexr pue 19ARAL 00¥-815-50
% 00°0 (097966 'TT) 097966 'TT 9% 8L8'E 00°0 000 %L 9Z¥%’'ST I23BM - I9YJ0 - SOOTAIDS [BUOTISSSJOId ZTE-8TS-SO
% 6270 00"0EE’'%T 00°0L 00°Q 00'00%'¥Z 00°00%'¥T 00°0 uTWpY IS3eM - SIDOTAASS [PUOTSSDIOId 0TE-8TS-S0
% 00°0 00°T0T 00°0 000 00102 00°10Z 00°'0 wpy z27eM - uoriesuadwod S!EEHPIINIOM 0%Z-BTS5-50
% 6€°LY TT €12’ 1T 88'TITT 6T 8T TLE'E 00°sze’‘0¥ 00 SZE'O¥ vE'ZEB 'ZE uTWPY I93eM -~ IDURINSUI YITEIH F 2ITT 0€Z-BTS-S0
% €8°6C 0T'096°TT 06°%80°S 98 8TL 0075%0°LT 00°S%0°LT £€°92€’9¢T uTwpy I93eM - UOTINQTIFUOD JUSWSIATISA 0ZT-8TG-50
% 68'6CT 99'9€L'9 pE"ZLB'T €€ 66€E 00°609'6 00°609'6 $6'288'% uTwpy I8jeM - 99XeL BOT4 01Z-815-S0
% 00°0 00'866 00°0 00°0 00°866 00866 2Z°'8L8 UTWPY I93EM - SWIIISA0 0%T-8TS-S0
% T9°€C S9°T6T'S6 SE'8TY 6T 0% L62'S 00'019°%eT 00°0T9'¥%CT zZS'EER’EL utwpy 133eM - sobem - Axeres xernbe¥ 0ZI-8T5-S0

I93eM
qEZITYEY 1a9aad TIVAY SHENEAXE QLA pESNIAXE QLW lzoang oay 1900nE a91doaq¥ 6TYALOY NOIILJTH¥O6HEA INOODDY
IOYINADYES | 202 vzoz [ £4114 [ 44:14 [ 44114 EZOZ 1/0
€ / #2702 1129 |edsld 104 aja|dwod JA % 00°0S
sainjipuadxg pund asudiajug
AUNNY OIS STVIONVNIZ ATHLNOW ¥Z0Z HO¥VIN 99254 :oN qoriud B4 Logead

ALID M170d 40 ALID

Z1:91 ¥202/10/70




% BV €V €8°8TT'¥ LT 69T'€E s0°0¢€2 00°882°L 00882 L 6 °T¥9'9 Iadp 13M8g5 - SWTIISAQ 0PT-5€5-S0

% 0070 (zB"20T) 287201 Ze'0¢ 000 00°0 052§ 12dp I9mag - sabem pue SaTIRTES IS3YIO O0fI-SES-S0
% 99°C¢t LO"0%% 20T £6°589 ‘6% 9E"9T% '8 00°921'2ST 00°92T'2ST 98°088'%0T 13dp zoMdg - sobey - Axeres Iernbsy 0¢I-S€5-S0
a3mMas
e EEEEEEEES SEEECEESEEEEERSSSE SECENEEEENEEESSARs IEAESEESSSSSSSSSsS CIEEEESSSSSSISSSES ENENNSSSSSSSSSEEEN EESESSSSSSSaERRSss
% 66°S% 9T ' 6%Z'B¥Y $8°STE 98¢ LS 9ST'TE 00°G9¢'¥¥8 00°S9€'¥%¥8 v8°2CT €18 TYLOL INIWLAYIHA
% 0070 (05°298 €%T) 057298 €%T Q0’0 00°0 00°0 0S5 TH#S'LY zadp I®3®M - 3ISSASIUI OZL-EES-50
% 00°0 00°659'S9 00°0 00°0 00°659°S9 00°659°S9 00°0 370 Aeq puog T10Z I21BM - Tedroutad TIL-€€5-S0
% 00°0 00°968°€9 00°Q Q00 00°968'€9 00°968°€9 00°0 aodo xe3jeM - TedIdPuUTAd O0TL-£E€5-S0
% 00°0 00°0 00°0 000 00°0 00°0 00°0TS otiexadp ae3eM - 91958V Teatded 194310 099-€£€5-50
% 00°0 000 00°'Q 00°0 00°0 00°0 S5 9TE'%T za2dp x93eM - jusudinbg 3 AIdUuTyDBEW OP9-€E€5-S0
% 00°0 {(00°052'¥%) 00°0S52'% 0070 00°0 00" 0 00°S2T’'T eM - ButpTTtng ueyl Isyao sjuswsnoxdul 0€9-£€5-50
% L9°C 00 QEL 0002 000 00°0SL 00°0SL £L°85% eM - sdTysaaqueW ® ‘‘qns ‘"qnd ‘sSY00d 0vS-E€ES-S50
% %z°C 6% LSL'LE 15°zZ%2’e 15°2Z%2’'¢C 007000 00T 00°000'00T 00°869°2ZT oueusjuTey ¥ sitedey - soTTddns I93I9W LTS-EE€S5-SO
% 00°0 00°000'0T 000 Q0°0 00°000°0T 00°000°‘0T 85°G96 ‘0€T 193eM - STTe3sul moN - sot7ddng I1939W 925-€€5-50
% 96°SL 0L"€91’¢C 0€°9€8'9 08°L¥8 00°000'6 00°000'6 8L°LOS'TT 22dp x@3BM - STEOTWAYD ¥HZS-€E€S-S0
% 0¢°¢ £0°8L6 L6°TC 00°0 00°000°'T 00°000°T 89 EC¥ 1ddns Butrjeasdo - 4IM SWETTTTM 3IBW'A €TS-€ES-SO
% 0070 00°000'T 00°'0 00°0 00°000'T 00°000'T 85 ECY sot1ddng burjexado - 4IM YITELPMUOWNOD ZZS-EES-SO
%5 0070 00°000°2 00°Q 00°0 00°000°2 a0°000°C (A4 S M - satrddns Burjexsdo - 4IM SATTO'3IW TZS-€€5-S0
% BS°CS L1°862°8 €8°T0Z'6 8€°993 00°005'LT 00°00G8‘LT L% 115’92 xadp z93eM - satiddng Burjexsdo 02S-€ES-SO
% €€ 8% LE " BSC €9°1%C LETOF 007009 00°'009 9z 9¢t aadp 193eM - soT1ddng 905TFI0 0TS-€E€S-S0
% 00°0 00°0%% ¥ 00°Q 00°0 00 0%%'¥% 00 0%%'¥% 00°00€’'% zadp ae3eM - sesd I9YlQ ¥ DBUTpIoday TE¥-€ES-S0
% 00°0 00 00% 00°0 00°0 00°00% 00 00¥ z8°1¢ adp 1s3eM - uotjonpoadsy pue Butjurad OLP-£E€5-S0
% 9571t 68°G6E'T TT°%0T'T 00°0 00°00S°E 00°005'€ 91" TCE’E Jem - jusudinbg-soueusjutel ¥ sITeddy L9%-€£5-50
$ 00°0Q 00'00S 'L 000 000 00°005'L 00°0058°L ST L9S'S doy - A3tTToRg SSTITTTIN/SHIOM DITAnd 99%-€€5-S0
% 62786 L6 6TT €0°088°'9 8L 0% 00°000'L 00°000°L ST €SE€'% aadg x3]eM - 9DOURUSIUTIRW STOTUSA S9F-EES-SO
% 0T°6C 09°%£9°0T 0% S9¢€' ¥ 000 00°000°ST 00°000°ST vy 189 'CT xadp x8jeMm - TINJ STOTY2A $9P-EES-SO
% 00°0 00°000'8 000 000 00°000°8 00°000‘8 68 16T TRl pue saTedsy - 4IM SWETTTTIM IIBW A E9P-€£E£S-S0
% 0070 00°'000°C 00°0 00°0 00°000°'2 00°000'2 9% L0S'T jurel pue satedsy - 4IM YITEdMUOWUO)D ZI¥-E€ES-SO
3 €T°TE IL 8EV‘E 62°T9S°'T 000 00°000°S 00°000'S LE'256'T M - Juter pue sxTeday - 4IM SATTIO "IN T9P¥-€££5-S0O
% $T°GQT 62 %8L°'68 TLSTH'LT S9°T0E'Z 00°000'STT 00°000°STT IT1°8%9°¢2 aado xe3eM - @oueusjuTe pue siTedsy 09%-€ES-50
% B9°Z% TT°'8L8°9 68°'T2T’'S T6'L08 00°000'2T 00°000'2T L?%°0S6 0T JeM - SSTITITIN - JIM SWETTTTM I3BW'A EEP-€ES-SO
% 69°v% 247628 8Z°0LS 96°LOT 00°005°T 00°00S'T 69°9%T'T I93eM - S9TATTTIN - 4LM YITesSMuowwo) Zev-£€5-50
% 00°SS LB 6FT’'E €1°0S8°¢€ 0L 99¢ 00°000°L 00°000°L €% TOE’'9 adp zs3eM - SSTITTITIIN - dIM SATTO "IW TEP-€ES-S0
% IT°LT 9z'2z8’'1 VLT LLY ¥9°C¢ 00°00Ss’'2 00°005°¢ 6% °S82'T JeM AJTTTOEBA SOTITITINA/MA - SSTITITIN 0EP-E£ES-S0
ZITVEY LIOa0g TIVAY STENE4XI ALX SHASNAJXH QLK 13oang rav IIDANE JILIOqY STVAIOV NOIIdI¥DS3a INNOODVY
FOVLNIDYHS | $202 1 24114 ¥202 24114 peoz €202 1/e

€ / ¥Z0T :1e3 A [eIsld 104 9jejdwio) JA % 00°0§
sainjipuadx3 pund asudiajuy

MVYNNVOr :¥3Sn 982Z51 :oN qor/dyd-6d™}o58qb
8l 1o v obed STVIONVNI ATHINOW 202 HONVIA 21:91 ¥Z0Z/L0/V0




2 2C°L 9€ T06'6ET $9'%99'8T $9°%99'8T 00°995'85¢ 00°995'8S¢C ¥5°9€8'99¢C 29dp 1omMDg - IS8I9JUI  0TL-SES-SO
% 0070 00°9L0'LT 000 00°0 00°9L0°LE 00°9L0°LEZ 00°0 eo] TesodsTg JuSNTIFE 49Q - [edTdUTId ZTL-SES-SO
% TS'6T 09°L5€°98¢C oY ¥Z% ‘69 0% 2%’ 69 00°'THL'SSE 00°ZBL'SSE 000 12do aomeg - Tedroutrad 0TL-SE5-50
% 00°0 00°q 00°0 000 000 00°0 00°0TS ot3ezado 19mag - s3sssy Te3Tded 1910 099-S€5-S0
% SO°E £T°602°0Z9 LL7605'6T 00°0 00 6TL’'6€E9 00°6TL'6E9 0T %89°'SH aadp 1amas - sso1boig Ul UOTIONIISUOD 059-5€5-S0
% 0070 00" 0 0070 000 00°0 000 S ¥6E'8T za2do xemas - Jusudinbm 3 AISUTYORW O0V9-SES-50
% 00°0 (BL'6ET'T) 8L 6ET'T 00°0 00'0 000 00°'58L'8C s - BurpTtng ueyl asyjo sijuawssozdwl 0€9-S€S-SO
% 00°0T 00° 006 00°00T 000 00°000'T 00°000'T 66°0€E8 os - sdrysioqueaW ¥ ’'qng ‘‘qnd ’'S}OCCH 0¥S-SES-S0
% §5°L9T (0% S5L‘9) 0%'SSL'9T 09°%TIL'T 00°000°0T 00'000°0T 0¥ 0LE 6T 22do a9M9s - STEOTWSYD $ZS-SE€5-50
% LO°LE 00°L20°'2C 00'€L6'TT Qo0 00°000'SE 00°000‘SE 0T LBE'SE furiney oBpnIs - dIMM TTTH TRUTPI®D TZS-SES-S0
% 00°0 00°000°0T 00°0 00°0 00°'000‘0T 00°000°0T SL°GLT t7ddng Butjeasdo - 4IMMm TTITH TeUTPA®D TZS-5€5-S0
% 697 €T £6°292'ST LO'LEL'Y 00°62¢ 00°000°02 00°'000°0Z 65°'LY6’ST zado asmes - set1ddns burjerado 025-S£5-50
% 69°LT T6°9%C 80" €S LETOF 00 00€ 00 00€ 0€°TES aadp xemeg - saTTddns 90T3I0 015-5€5-S0
% 00°0 00°005°T 00°0 000 00°005'e 00°005'¢2 000 1odo xomas - Tejusy JuswdinbE £6%-S€5-50
% 00°0 (00°005) 00°00S 00°'0 000 00°0 000 1ado xemds - 5994 I9U3I0 ¥ BuTpIodsy Z6¥-S£5-S0
% 00°0 00°000°2 000 00°0 00°000°'2 00°000'2 00°0 zado 18mMds - S9bIeYD JUSIIND IDYA0 06%-SE€5-S0
% 00°0 00°00T 00°'0 a0 0 00°00T 00°00T 18°1¢C adp 1smag - uorjonpoxdey pue Buriurid 0LY-SES-SO
% zg9 ITI (95°56¢2) 95°G6L'T 0070 00°005°2 00°005'2 zZS'¥65°T mes - juswdrnbg-soueusjuteW ¥ satedsy L9¥-SES-SO
% 00°0 00°000'S 00°0 00°0 00°000'S 00°000°'S 12 €12 dey - AJTTTO®RA SSTITTTIN/SHIOM OTTANd 99%-5E5-S0
% 91" ¢TIl (TE"62L) TE62L'9 78 TTH 00°000°9 00°000'9 TE 1E8'% 19do I9MSS§ - SOUBUSIUTEW STDTUIA §9P-5€5-50
% ¥ST €9 TP 2S5°C 65 LYY ' 00°0 007000 'L 00°000°¢L 66 T6T'L xadp IeMS - [ONd S[DTYDA ¥9P-SES-S0
% SL°0T S9'TET'LYE 01°'ST6'TH 000 00°000'06E 00°000'06€ £0°Zhz'8T s - jurey pue satedsy - TTTH TBUTPI®D T19%-9€S-50
% T6°6T S% €£99'T9 §5°9.8'ST vh6L 00°000'0€T 00°000'0€ET 90°ZheE’S8E 19do aemag - SoueuUSIUTEW PuR sITedS¥ 09%-SES-S0
% LT 6% Z1'995'% 88 EEV ¥ ¥9°SES 00°000'6 00°000'6 PT LYV '8 do I9M3S - SSTITTTIN - 4IMM SATTO "3IW CEP-S€S-S0
% 9T°2S 9T €66 '8T 8°90L°'0C 68°955'¢ 00°00L'6€E 00°00L’6E 00°50T’'2¥ 9Mas - S9TATITIN - dIMM TTTH TRUTPI®D TEP-SES-SO
% 80°66 zS°0S 8% 6% 'S S0°692 00°005°S 00°005'S E0"ET6'S M5 AJTTTo®md SOTITTTHI/MA - SSTITITIN O0EF-SES-5S0
% 80°T% 0T ELY'T 06°920'T 000 00°005'Z 00°'005'2 08 ES0'C O IoM3S - SOAIS UMOD - JLMM SATTO "3IW ZIP-S€S-50
% L0°%C 59°62%'C SE 0LL 0070 007 00Z'€ 00°00Z'€ LT 068'T MG - SOAIS wWWO) - JIMM TITH TRUTPI®D TT%-S€S-50
% TV 0¥ 08 9LT'E 0z €zT'T 00°0 00°005°S 00°005’S €6°652°S 12dp a2M35 - SIDTAIDS UOTIEBOTUNWMMOD OTH-SE5-S0
% 00°T 00°086'T 0002 go'o 00°000'2 00°000'Z 05 9€§ 18dp aamas - Burturell S0P-SES-SO
% 97T S0 BLY'T S6°1C 00°0 00°00S'T 00°00S°T L9°968 12dp xomag - sasuadxyg TaARIL 00%-S£5-S0
% 6%'S% 00°966'S 00°%00'S 00°0€T 00°000°'TT 00°000°TT 00°9%€'8 soTdwes - S20TAISS [RUOTSSSIOAd PTE-GES-SO
% 6T°SL 5.°789°'8 SZ'L1IE'9T €€ €9€’€E Q0°000°S€E 00°000’'SE 95°008'SE I9M3S - I2Y30 - SODTAISS TRUOTSS2aIoad ZTE-SE€S-SO
3 16°6T ST 9ST %91 SLE¥8 ‘ST 000 00°000°08T 00°000°08T 00°005 1adp asmag - SsoDTAISS butrassutbum TTE-S€S5-50
% €T°LT S¥LLT'8 ssrgeL't 0s°ZTT 00°000'0T 00°000°0T 05 zee'e a2do I9MI§ - SS9DTAISS TRUOTSSOIOId 0TE-SEG-S0
% 00°0 00 LE6‘E 00°0 000 00 LEG'E 00 LEG'E 000 odo xsmes - uoriesuadwod S!EEHIIIION 0%Z-S€5-S0
% 98°TE TL ETL LT 62°856'TT St 9L6'T 00°2L9°'0% 00°zL9’'0% TE'9FL'¥T x9do TOmMSg -~ 9oueinsul YITeSH ¥ SITT 0€Z-5E€5-50
% 99°LY I8°199'8 6T°888'L z€'822'1 00°'055'9T 00°'055°9T $5°L99°TE 29d0 1OMSS - UOTINQTAIUOD JUSWSITISY 0ZT-5€G5-50
% L9°SE 8E°S¥8'L 29 6VE'Y L0889 00°56T'2T 00°S6T'TT £5°182'8 xadp 1omag - S9XBL BOTA 0TC-5€5-S0
qQaZITYEY 136008 TIVAY SZgNAIXH dLX SISNIAXE QLK 13pane oay 130008 qALIOTY STYAIOY ROIIdT¥OSad INAODDY
FOVINTONEG | 202 {2414 [ 24114 | 24114 yz02Z €202 /9
€ / 20T :1e3 ) [e9Sl4 104 8)9|dWOo) IA % 00705
sainjipuadx3z pung asudiajug
D LR STVIONVNI ATHLNOW ¥20Z HONVIN St RLESE) e T St

ALl M10d 40 ALID




$TL AT
$00°LE

58 IER‘THE-

SE ATH TEE

KT "ETD’Z8

[S1e e

on-o

so4n] Lpuadxy

os geo’ezL’z-
S £0T'THE’T

s===s=a=

€2 6LL'08

ns eac’css—
GE 666 HLE'T

ERNSSSSS sEEEssEESSEESEaans

LL"90T'LTT

CECTSS/GeT-

B3 F35‘ 0BT

00 20T /aTL’e-
00" eoT’9TL’E

00" Z0T*9TL’S-
00'TOT*2TL’E

9b"HBEEED
A cge’ZrT’E-

TT §9672LL T

EEEESEESSSSSSSENNE IRSSSSSSSSSASIEERS SCSSSSSENENEESSESS SEANAREESSSSSSSSEn

8Z°0€0'2

00°986 “L0T

66°529'20¢E

-sa suuanay [e3o]

TPq0] $2Iny 1puadyqg pung astidiaquyg

1e30] SouusAsy pung astadisjuyg

TYLOL INIWIIYAId

% 6978 99°695'¥% VETPEY L9558 00°000°S 00°000°S (S %T) g-uoN - sabaey) butiexasdo-uoN - I3YI0 666-065-50
$(9L"L) LT 88E’S (L1°88¢€) 00°0 00°000'S 00°000'S Ly vZT'1e Jded-uoN - 3990 PBH 966-065-S0
% 00°0 00°000°'T 00°Q 00°'0 00°000°T 00°000°T 00°0L8 3deg-uoN - sjuswAedasap FO pPunNIdY S66-065-S0
% 00°0 00°CZLE'T 00°0 00°0 00°2LE'T 00°2LE'T T0°0%S jdeg-uoN - s34 Jued ¥66-065-S0
% 00°0 00°000°2 00°0 00°0 00°000°2 00°000°C §9°06T 3deg-uoN - swrteld Juswiordwsun z66-065-S0
% 00°0 00" %12 LT 00°0 00°0 00 %TZ'LE 00 %12 LE 00°0 -NON S®AISS3y DPe3DIilsauf - S2AILSY 0%6-065-S0
% 0070 00°0 00°0 00°0 00°'0 00°0 00°000'00T jdsq-uoN - pund TeIdUsH 0] IX9FSUBL] 0T6-065-S0
% 00°0Q 00°'0 00°'Q Q00 00°0 000 T6°I8€’'9S 9380D 9DTAIDIS 3IQSQ IIYIO 0€L-065-S0
% 00°0 00°'0 00°0 0070 00°0 g0° 0 ($0'85E'6€) ansgl (T0Z puod - 398I87UI 0TL-065-5S0
% 66°29 617599 T8 ¥¥6 00°0 00°00S'T 00°005°T ¥1° 226 asuutqg AepTToH 92fotdud $55-065-50
% 16° vV £6°08S LO 6%Y 00°0 00°000°'1 00°000°'T €7 SLE gpIemy/butjasy ssAotdud £55-065-50
% 00°Q Q000§ Qo-a 000 00°00S 00°00S 00°0 Butissl 10d ZS5-065-90
% 0T°9 00°6¢€6 00°19 00°0 00°000°'T 00°000'T 00°60S'T soakordug - SUOTARZTUNMWI TS55-065-S0
% 0070 00 Q0% 00°0 Q0" 0 00°00% 00°00% 05 €8T qs91, bnag/wexy juswloTdug-21d 0§5-065-50
% 89°8LS (21 065'€) ZT 0%E‘¥® 00°'0 00°'0SL 00°0SL L9 TVE NON- sdTysisqusi 3 '°dng ‘"qng ’'sS)00d 0%5-065-50
% T0°¢ 06°6L6 0T 02 S68°¢CT 00°000°T 00°000°T 65 TPT’'C 1deg-uoN - =bBe3lsod 825-06S-S0
% 06729 90" €IT'T ¥6°988°T 28 ECT 00°000'€ 00°000'€E 28°91¥%'¥% 3deg uUON - SwWIOITUN STS-065-S0
% 00°0 (62°698'T) 62°698°'T 00°0 00°0 00'0 €0°L6L'6 T3exadp - sstousburjuop # soTousbiawg T125-065-5S0
% 0Z°22s (00-222'%) a0°222's 8% '8TT 00°000'T 00°000°'T LS %60'T 3deq-uoN - seoT11ddng butieiado 0€5-065-S0
% L9797 69°00% TE 6%¢C CT CET 00°0SL 00°0SL GG E90'T Tejuswizedsqg-uoN - s2T7ddng S9T3IFO 01S5-065-50
% 0£E°C6 0S°0LY 'L 05°625'68 00°0 00°000°L6 00°000'L6 05°85L'08 3dag-uoN - ®oueinsul A3ITTTARTT 0S¥-065-S0
% £€0°9S 0% 8T% ‘T 09°T80'E ye-ees 00°0058°'S 00°005°S 2Z°096'% 1ds@-uoN - S3Sea7 pue sTRIUSW 0%$-065-S0
% PYLY 65 STL'FT v #8Z €T 00°0 00°000'82 00700082 §6°T9E'SE adag-uoN - But3iTpny pue BuTjunoddy 0ZE-065-S0
% 0070 00°0 00°0 0070 00°0 000 00°005°‘¢ G-UoN - ISYI0 - SIDTAISS TPUOTSSSIOId ZTE-06S-50
% 6% %2 §6°LLB'BT s¥ 221’9 00°520°T 00°000°SZ 00°000°s2 92 E9E’LT 7dag-uoN - S9OTAISS TRUOTSS330Id 0TE-065-S0
Tejuswixedsq-uoN AH

EEEESSSESSe SEmmmsmmmEESSSSSSs EEsSso—omESEEsESSSSS SSSnEsssosauEEsSSs SS=ssszszsEsa=zEas SSoSSSSEsSSSSSoSoEE SsosssssssssSsoss=Ex

% 89°9T €E"9ET'T66'T Zv STE'LOY 82 T65'TITT 00°S9L'T¥¥'T 00°S9L'T¥7'T 6%°0€8 €58 TYLOL INAWINYIIA

% 0070 00°%55°T 000 00°0 00°'%SS'T 00°%9S'T 90°8B09'T ueo] TesodsTg IUSNTIFE JHQ - ISSISIUI  TTL-S5€S-S0
QAZITVEY LIDANE TIVAY SHSNE4XE QLX SASNAIXE QIR LI5ang rav 1E5ang gIaLgaoav 8TYALDY NOILAINDSHA LNAODOY
TOVLNZON¥Ed | $T02 ¥20Z [ 444 vzoz ¥20Z €202 1/9

MVNNVOr :¥3sn
81 Jo 9} abed

€/ $Z0Z :1e3 |eISI] J04 8jajdwo) JA % 00°0S
sainypuadx3y pung asudiajug

STVIONVNId ATHLNON 9202 HOYVIN
AlLID M170d 40 ALID

98251 :oN qor/dyd-6d™ 05996
T1:91 $20Z/1L0/v0




CITY OF POLK CITY Paged of 5

04/01/2024 16:09 .
gb614_pg.phplJob No: 15285 Simple Balance Sheet USER: JOANNAK
For Fiscal Year: 2024 thru Month: Mar
Fund: 08 SPECIAL REVENUE FUND - GF IMPACT FEES

Account Accgunt Ending Net

Number Title Bal Amount

08-101-100 GF Police Public Safety Impact Fees 16,167.06

08-101-101 GF Fire Public Safety Impact Fees 8,950.58

08-101-102 GF Recreation Impact Fees 32,640.22

08-101-103 GF Gen Gov't Facilities Impact Fees 57,121.86

08-151-100 Investments - FL, SAFE GF Police Public Safety 231,299.57

08-151-101 Investments - FL SAFE GF Fire Public Saf... 146,189.50

08-151-102 Investments - FL SAFE GF Recreation 437,157.87

08-151-103 Investments - FL SAFE GF Facilities 483,400.87
** TOTAL ASSET** 1,412,927.53
+*% TOTAL LIABILITY*+* 0.00
** TOTAL ENCUMBRANCE** 0.00

08-271-100 Fund Balance Unreserved 1,374,384.78
*% TOTAL EQUITY** 1,374,384.78
** TOTAL REVENUE** 38,542.75
** TOTAL EXPENSE*¥* 0.00

TOTAL LIABILITY AND EQUITY 1,412,927.53




STTETO LY SL"THS'BE 01" TT6’S 0ot o 00" q ?E' 960766 ssanjIpuadxXy "Sa SNUSASY Te3l0L

3000 00 €8L‘TET 00°0 no"0 00" £8L°CET— nn'esL’‘cee- LT BLL E- e300, seanjrpuadxy pung 293 joedur J9
$96°'93T SZ'0%C‘F6RT SL°CFS‘8E DT TT6'S 0O0*€8L 2ET Do EsL’TET TL HL8'20T Te30) sonusAsy pund =33 3oedml J9
00°€8L'CET b 00°0 00 €8L'TET 00" €8L'CEC LZ'BLL'E STYLOL INIWLIVIAA

% 00°0 007005 ‘€ 00°0 00°0 00°00S'€ 00°005'¢€ 00°0 SPUSPTATQ/IUI O3y % S3IBd - 99AISS9A T€6-C°LS-80
% 00°0 00°20%'0T 00°0 0070 00°20%'0T 00°20%'0T 000 soag JoedwI D8y ¥ S)IBd - SOAISISIY 0E6-CLS-80
% 00°0 00°0 Q00 00°0 00°0 00°0 9T 0%0'T DaY ¥ g3Ied - PUNIDY IBWOISND JTWIBJ 6Z5-CTLS-80
% 00°0 00°000°0T 00°0 00°0 00°000°0T 00°000'0T 00°0 SpTATA/3ul A3ITT[To®d OTTqNd - SSAIST8Y T€6-6€5-80
% 00°0 00°08%'LT 00°0 00°0 00°08%'LT 00°08% LT 00°0 294 joedur A3TTToRd OTIANd - S3AISS9Y 0f£6-6€5-80
% 00°0 00°0 0070 00°0 00°0 00°0 T0°8%L'T 1To®d 2TTANd - PUNFay ILWOISN) JTWISd 625-6E€5-80
% 00°0 00°0SL 00°0 00°0 007054 00°0SL 00°0 ATQ/3ul A3SFes OTIqnd SITd - F9AIS93W T€6-22S-80
% 00°0 00°90T €8T Q00 00°0 00" 90T €8T 00°90T €81 000 joedul Ajejes OT(qnd 2ITJ - SDAIISSY 0E6-2CS-80
% 00°0 00°0 00°Q 000 00°0 000 TT°S¥E OTTQNd 9aATd - PUNIsY ISWOASN) JTWISJ 625-2€S5-80
% 00°0 00°0SL 00°0 00°0 00°054 007054 00°0 a/3ul A3eges OTTqnd 9OTIOd - SIAIISIY TE6-TTS-80
% 00°0 00°S6L'9 00°0 00°0 00°S6L'9 00°S6L'9 g0 0 cedw] A3sjes oTITqnd SOTTOd - S3AI8SdY 0€6-T12S-80
% 00°0 00°0 Q0°0 00°0 00°0 00°0 66" V¥9 TTqnd 821704 - PUNISY ISWOISN) JTWAId 6TS-TZS-80
SHINLIANIdXT
S NEEEERES SEEESSEEESaEEEEEEE EEEERSES NN EEANSY S S EEEEEEEEES CESECSSSSSEITSESSS SSSSSCSSSENINNNESESS SSESERLSEESTEE===s
% 95791 SZ° 0% '¥6T SL'ZPS'BE 0T TT6°S 00°€8L°CZET 00°€8L'2ET TL %L8'20T STYLOL ILNIWLIVIIA

% 00°0 00°000'08BT Q00 00°0 00°000'08T 00°000'08T 00°0 sos3 joedwl gD piemxod AITeD HSYO 006-T8E€-80
% 9L°TET (8% 9L '6T) 8% 9L ' VE OT"IT6’S 00°000'ST 00°000'ST LY SES'LS qAYS Td - SPUSPTATQ/3IS3I93UI 00C-TIE-80
$ 00'0T 66 TEL'ST TO"8%L'T 00°0 00°08% ‘LT 00°08%'LT Z1°9L6'02 994 3oedwl SdTITTIORd DTTAnd O0TL-¥ZE-80
% 00'0T 78 T9€’6 9T 0%0 T 00°0 00°20% QT 00°20% 0T 26°T18% ‘2T 993 10oedwul UOTILIAOSY I SYARd 01I9-%ZE-80
% TT°11 68°09L'T TT°Sve 00°0 00°90T'€ 00°90T'€E TZ'96L'E o4 1oedwy Ajages o1Tqnd - SNOSSY/SITI 0TI-HTE-BO
% 67°6 TO°0ST'9 66 ¥¥9 00°0 00°S6L'9 00°56L'9 667808 994 joedur A3lsges OTTgnd - 9OTTOd 00I-¥ZE-80
SHANIATY

a3azZITvaEs IIDIXEA/ (SS4OXE) ANNIATY QLA FONIARY INIYENO QAIVAIDILNY ANNAARY CILV4IDILNY | ZONHASY ¥X ¥OIEd NOIL4TUDS2d INOODDV
HPVINAOVAL | 202 ¥202 yzoz rave 1 44'k4 €z02 1/

€ / Y207 :1e3A |edsld 104 9)9|dW0 JA % 00705
SaNuUaAdy jabpng

SaNUaAaY |e1dads 4149
MVNNVOF :¥3sn 98z51 :oN qor/dyd-6d~Logeqb
81 Jo 1| abed w._<_oz<E& »uﬁ.... m_ooﬁ_w LOSHIEVI ZL:94 ¥20Z/LOV0




CITY OF POLK CITY Page 50f5

04/01/2024 16:09 .
gb614_pg.phpiJob No: 15285 Simple Balance Sheet USER: JOANNAK

For Fiscal Year: 2024 thru Month: Mar
Fund: 09 SPECIAL REVENUE FUND - EF IMPACT FEES

Account Account Ending Net
Number Title Bal Amount
09-101-800 EF Sewer Impact Fee Account 454,525.04
09-101-900 EF Water Impact Fee Account 127,240.57
09-151-800 Investements - Sewer Impact 1,770,091.99
09-151-900 Investements - Water Impact 287,816.07
09-169-900 CIP - Construction Costs 28,872.10
** TOTAL ASSET** 2,668,545.77
% TOTAL LIABILITY** 0.00
*% TOTAL ENCUMBRANCE** 0.00
09-271-100 Unreserved Fund Balance 2,682,074.25
*% TOTAL EQUITY** 2,682,074.25
** TOTAL REVENUE** 77,605.09
*+ TOTAL EXPENSE** 91,133.57

TOTAL LIABILITY AND EQUITY 2,668,545.77




8% "RTS'ET 8 "RZS'ET- L£0°EnT'TT 60" 0 nosn TH'BORTIOT s2an3 IpUadXy 'SA SNUaASY Te10.

:TS ' CF CF"TEE'BTIT- LG EET ‘T 060 00258507~ 00"9%% ‘s0C- 06 6FT“CT- Tey0] sainyipuadeyg pung 233 3oedul I3
350" LE 16 0S8 'TET 507903 'LL L0 EOT'TT 00" 35% ‘60T 00°25F ‘50T TH 895 °"STC Telo)] Senusasy pund eod 3Ivedul Jd

STYLOL INIWLYVYAAA

% 00°0 00°000°0T 00°0 00°0 00°000'0T 00°000°0T 00°0 SPUSPTAT(Q/IUL ISMIG - SOAIDISY TE6-SE€5-60
% 00°0 00°00S'LS 00°0 00°0 00°00S°LS 00°00S ‘LS 00°0 goeg 3oedul I9mM3S5 - SOAISIRY 0E6-SES-60
% 00°0 00°0 00°0 00°0 00°0 000 00°'STH'V qoedw] ISMSS - PUNISY IBWOISND JTWISd 625-5€S-60
% 00°0 00°5ZL'T 00°0 00°0 00°92L'T 00°52L'T 00°SLB'T 993301d I9YJ0 - H9OTAISS T[BUOTSSIIOAd CTE-SES-60
% 00°0 00°000 'L 00°0 00°0 00°000°L 00°000'L 00°0 soa] TBbST - SIDTAIIS TPUOTSSSJOId 0TE-SES-60
% 00°0 00°000°S 00°0 00°0 00°000'S 00°000'S 00°0 SPUSPTAT(Q/JUI I93BM - SDAIIT9Y TE6-LES-60
% 00°0 00°296°LT 00°0 00°0 00°296'LT 00°296'LT 00°0 soag joedwl I9jeM - SOAISSIY 0E6-EES-60
% 99766 £V 0TY LS EET'T6 0070 00" %95 'T6 00°%%¥S'T6 00°0 5 41 I93EM - ssaxboxd UI UOTIONIISUOD (059-€E€5-60
% 00°0 00°0 00°0 00°0 00°0 00°0 00°LPL'T Joedul I=23jeM - PuUnisy ISWOISTD JTWIBd 6TS-EES-60
% 00°0 00°SseZL'T 00°0 00°0 00°S2L'T 00°S2L'T 00°sL8‘e $5930Xd I3YJ0 - SOOTAISZ TPUOTSS2J0Ad ZTE-EES-60
% 00°0 00°000'L 00°0 00°0 00°000°L 00°000°L 057 LET'T s993 TePT - SIDTAISS [RUOTSSSIOId (QTE-EES-60
SHANLIANIIXE
R EEEEESESS SESESsEEESSIEENNEE SESESSSSSCSSEICOSE EEAFESSSSSSSssssSS SO EEEENENEEESEESS SESSCCSSENEEEEENSSY SESSSSSSSaESEEDENS
$ S0°LE T6°0S8'TET 60°509'LL LO"EOT'TT 00°95%'602 00°95%'60¢ Z6'856'STC STVYLOL ILNIWLYYdEA

% 00°0 00°%¥S° 16 0070 00°0 00" ¥¥S’16 00" %%S 16 000 seog joedwl i premiod Axixed HSYD 006-TBE-60
% €£8°99¢ (60°920°'0%) 60°S20'SS L0°95E'6 00°000°ST 00°000'ST 76'990°16 HAYS Td - SPUSPTAT(Q/3I82I83UI 00C-T9E-60
% 00°0¢ 00°086°2S 00°s¥27€T 00°0 00752299 00°52Z'99 00° 0LV 6L sbiey) uorjosuuoc) [eitded I9]1eMITIeM 02Z-¥TE-60
% ¥¥°SC 00°TSE‘LT 00°SEE’6 00°LPL'T 00°L89'9¢€ 00489 '9€ 00°22¥%'S¥ abzeyp uoriosuuo) Teitded I93eM 01Z-¥ZE-60
% 00°0 00°0 0070 0070 00°0 00°0 00°0 g¥ TYLOL

SHANIATA
QEZITVEY LIDIAAA/ (E5IDXA) SNNIATY QLA JONIANY LNSTIOD CELYdIDIINY EONIATY QEIVIIDILINY | IONTATY YX ¥OINd NOILJI¥DBEEA LNOOCDDY
SOVINIDTAG | ¥20T yzoz ¥zozT rav vzoe €T0Z 1/

£ ] ¥Z0T 1183 |e9s]] 104 9)9]dW0D JA % 00°0S
SNU3A3Y [e193ds 4143

MVYNNVOP :u3sn 98251 :oN qor/dyd-6dLo5896
g8l jo g| ebed w._<_oz<ﬂ__uu_u »..__n_.._....__. w_ooﬁ_w COCHIHVIN Z1:91 $202Z/10/70



POLK COUNTY SHERIFF’S OFFICE
DEPARTMENT OF LAW ENFORCEMENT

STATISTICAL DATA

West Division
f

Date: April 8, 2024 Northwest District
To: Patricia Jackson, City Manager
From: Deputy Christina Poindexter #7376

Subject:  Statistical Report for March 2024

ACTIVITY
FELONY ARREST
AFFIDAVITS FELONY
MISDEMEANOR ARREST
AFFIDAVITS MISDEMEANOR
OUT OF COUNTY/STATE
WARRANT ARRESTS
PROCAP WARRANT ARREST
TOTAL ARRESTS
SEARCH WARRANTS
FIELD INTERROGATION
REPORTS
TRAFFIC CITATIONS 9
INTELLIGENCE REPORTS 1
STOLEN PROPERTY $17,000 stolen trailer
RECOVERED located for Orange Co.
HRS. TRANSPORTING/ 0
AGENCIES/DIVISIONS
OFFENSE REPORTS 30

NARCOTICS SEIZED

ASSETS SEIZED
PATROL NOTICES
FOXTROT REPORTS
TOW-AWAY NOTICES
COMMUNITY CONTACTS 344
TRAFFIC STOPS 15
TOTAL DISPATCHED CALLS 86
FOR SERVICE

o|oMO|O;

||o|N|O

O|IN|O|O|O

PCSO FORM 327 (REV 12/20/07) Page lof 2



In March 2024, there was one (1) PROCAP captured crimes as compared to zero (0) in March
2023. There was one incident of a reported catalytic converter theft reported 815 Lakeshore Dr.
During the investigation, video surveillance from neighbors was obtained and determined the
theft did not happen at the reported address. This case was closed due to it did not occur in our
jurisdiction as reported. A stolen dump trailer from Orange County was located and recovered
from Sandy Pointe Subdivision. The $17,000.00 dump trailer was later returned to the registered
owner. So in March we are sitting at 0 Pro-Cap crimes. In all for 2024 we are sitting at 7 Pro-Cap
related crimes compared to 4 Pro-Cap crimes reported by this time in 2023. In an attempt to
eliminate ny further increase in crimes, myself and the Detail Deputies are showing extra
attention to the trend related crime areas such as Van Fleet Trail Head, and Gas Stations. Several
traffic stops are being conducted on Berkley Rd., due to “No Thru Trucks” sign recently

installed.

UNFOUNDED
13 PCSO- 2024-03-04/ |2024-03-04/ |Mon |&15 LAKESHORE DR Unk susp attempted to cut the catalytic converter off the viets Chevy
240009302 |0104hrs 0222hrs truck which was faund to be hanging from the bottom of the truck /
no entry was made to the veh / further investigation revealed that
the exhaust pipe was cut, but possibly at a different time frame that
what the vict thought due to no video of incident, the cutin the
exhaust pipe was a few inches from the pipe with a slight amout of
rusting, the catalytic convereter was not damaged Unfounded
closed
Departmant of Law Enforcement
Polk Clty - 20123 - 2024
2023 [ 2074 | 2020 | 2004 | 7623 | 2034 | a0 | 2024 | 2003 [ 2034 | 23| 202 | 2003 | 2024 [ 2003 2024 2005 {20 | 2001 2004 2023 L2941 300 2024 | 203 2024 | Change | 2023 | 2024 |
Robbery [ [ D ] [ [ 0 | 00
Business ] '] o 0% ¥ o3
. Rezidance o 0% 0 00
- Struciure ] 0% L] a
Burg. Cot 0 -100% 3 i
Vahicls Thafl 1 0%
Grand Thalt i [] o
[Eelt Thefl 1 1] ] 0%
(Mad Theft a 0 o ] s o1
Retad Thall a ] 0 1 ] 1 0 % 13
Crimunal Meschiel L) (] ] o 0 ] 0 1 0% o3
Tatale 2 1 Q 1 a 3 ] 4 ~100% | 13 | 23 |
% Change —200% 0% iR WA itk WA iR WA A WA iR iR 75% T
3
[ERs [l TFTsTelslelolelolrlelsleloilolaloTololijolelolsiel 4 YIoAR_ ]
PCSO FORM 327 (REV 12/20/07) Page lof2



Public Works & Utilities Report

March 2024
Public Works Department- Work Orders: Total 237

BUILDING MAINTENANCE: 68

Custodial services A/C: 2

Custodial services Freedom Park: 2
Custodial services utilities dept.: 1
VEHICLE/EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE: 56
EVENT SET UP- INSPECTION: 5
LANDSCAPING, MOWING: 39
PARKS AND RECREATION: 11
procurement: 3

Stormwater: 8

Street signs: 11

Repairs: 1

TRASH PARKS AND FACILITIES: 11
TRASH ROADS AND STREES: 14

Streets Rep and maintenance: 2

Utilities Department- Work Orders: Total 190

TURN ON: 28

Temporary TURN OFF: 16

TURN OFF: 40

Turn back on from shut off list: 13
Install water: 2

LOCATES: 1

METER MAINTENANCE: 66

LIFT STATION MAITENANCE: 17



LIFT STATION REPAIR: 3

WWTP REPAIR AND MAINTENANCE: 1

METERS READ: 3,363

MISREADS: 139.

WATER LEAK: 5 (4935 Northshore DR.125 Sunset Dr. 5153 Island view Cir. 9107 Golden Gate Blvd)
Sewer Manhole Backup Rindge Rd.

BACK FLOW TESTING & Repair.



Utility Billing Report

March 2024

New Accounts Established: 17
Final/Terminated Service: 19
Bills Processed: 2726

Email/ Bill Customers: 2005
Work Orders Processed: 131
Lock off for Nonpayment: 19
Nonpayment fees (550): 42
Billed Consumption: 12,790,000
Billed/Revenue: $289,792.27
Residential Billing: 2617
Irrigation Billing: 585
Commercial Billing: 93

Building Rentals Activity/Bronson Center/Freedom Park: 15

On Going Projects
-Process Deposit Refunds

-Working with the Utilities Department in Diamond Maps to verify that all meter
information is correct.

-Process monthly Adjustment Reconciliations, Zero Charge Reports and Cycle D
(Debt Consolidation).

-Meter Replacement Program
Staff Objectives

Reroute meters into walking order. Continue to work with staff to write procedures
for Utility Billing. Continuing efforts in auditing accounts.

Respectfully Submitted by:
Chasity Guinn
Utility Billing Supervisor



City Commission Meeting
April 16, 2024

PRESENTATIONS: Proclamation for Water Conservation Month

INFORMATION ONLY
“X_ACTION REQUESTED

ISSUE: This proclamation is in recognition of Water Conservation Month

ATTACHMENTS: Yes

ANALYSIS: N/A
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Recognize April 2024 as Water Conservation Month




Proclamalion

WHEREAS, water is a basic and essential need of every living creature; and

WHEREAS, The State of Florida, Water Management Districts and Polk City are
working together to increase awareness about the importance of water conservation; and

WHEREAS, Polk City and the State of Florida has designated April, typically a dry
month when water demands are most acute, Florida’s Water Conservation Month, to
educate citizens about how they can help save Florida’s precious water resources; and

WHEREAS, Polk City has always encouraged and supported water conservation,
through various educational programs and special events; and

WHEREAS, every business, industry, school and citizen can make a difference when it
comes to conserving water; and

WHEREAS, every business, industry, school and citizen can help by saving water and
thus promote a healthy economy and community; and

NOW, THEREFORE, be it resolved that by virtue of the authority vested in me, Joe
LaCascia, Mayor of Polk City do hereby proclaim the month of April as

Water Conservation Month

Polk City, Florida is calling upon each citizen and business to help protect our precious
resource by practicing water saving measures and becoming more aware of the need to
save water.

Polk City

joe LaC_a_s_cia, Mayor

ATTEST:

Patricia R. Jackson, City Manager/Clerk



City Commission Meeting
April 16, 2024

AGENDA ITEM #1: ORDINANCE 2024-03 — City-Initiated Text Amendment to the Land
Development Code

INFORMATION ONLY
ACTION REQUESTED

ISSUE:

ORDINANCE 2024-03 — AMENDING ARTICLE 2 — REGULATIONS FOR SPECIFIC DISTRICTS,
SECTION 2.04.01, “ZONING DISTRICT SUMMARY TABLES” OF THE UNIFORM LAND
DEVELOPMENT CODE; CHANGING MINIMUM DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS IN TABLE 5 FOR
THE R-1 SINGLE FAMILY ZONING DISTRICT & REDUCING THE MINIMUM REQUIRED LOT SIZE,
LOT WIDTH AND SIDE YARD SETBACK REQUIREMENTS WITHIN THE POLK CITY EXEMPTION
AREA OF THE GREEN SWAMP AREA OF CRITICAL STATE CONCERN; REPEALING ALL
ORDINANCES IN CONFLICT; PROVIDING FOR A BUSINESS IMPACT ESTIMATE,
SEVERABILITY, CODIFICATION AN EFFECTIVE DATE. First Reading

ATTACHMENTS:

Ordinance 2024-03
CFRPC Staff Report

ANALYSIS:

City staff has identified the need for a City-initiated text amendment to the Polk City Land Development
Code (LDC) to reduce inconsistencies between the R-1 Zoning District Minimum Development
Standards and the lots developed in the R-1 Zoning District. See full CFRPC Staff Report attached.

On Monday, April 8, 2024, the Planning Commission voted to forward the proposed Text Amendments
to the City’s Land Development Code to the City Commission for approval.

Polk City’s Business Impact Statement is attached.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

Approve Ordinance 2024-03 on First Reading.



ORDINANCE 2024-03

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COMMISSION OF POLK CITY, FLORIDA;
AMENDING ARTICLE 2 — REGULATIONS FOR SPECIFIC DISTRICTS, SECTION
2.04.01, “ZONING DISTRICT SUMMARY TABLES” OF THE UNIFORM LAND
DEVELOPMENT CODE; CHANGING MINIMUM DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS IN
TABLE 5 FOR THE R-1 SINGLE FAMILY ZONING DISTRICT & REDUCING THE
MINIMUM REQUIRED LOT SIZE, LOT WIDTH AND SIDE YARD SETBACK
REQUIREMENTS WITHIN THE POLK CITY EXEMPTION AREA OF THE GREEN
SWAMP AREA OF CRITICAL STATE CONCERN; REPEALING ALL ORDINANCES
IN CONFLICT; PROVIDING FOR A BUSINESS IMPACT ESTIMATE,
SEVERABILITY, CODIFICATION AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ENACTED BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF POLK
CITY, FLORIDA:

SECTION 1. COMMISSION FINDINGS AND INTENT. In adopting this Ordinance
and modifying the Polk City Code and the therein-incorporated Unified Land Development
Code, the City Commission of Polk City, Florida, hereby makes the following findings:

(1)  Section 163.3167(c), Florida Statutes, empowers the City to adopt land
development regulations to guide the growth and development of the City.

(2)  The Act authorizes a local government desiring to revise its Unified Land
Development code to prepare and adopt amendments.

(3) The City has prepared a text amendment to the Polk City Land
Development Code to amend the development standards in Table 5 for the R-1 zoning
district in the Polk City Green Swamp Exemption Area. The proposed amendments
reduce the minimum lot size from 15,000 square feet to 12,000 square feet, the minimum
lot width from 100 feet to 80 feet, and the minimum side setback requirement from 15 feet
to 12 feet. These amendments are proposed to lessen nonconformities of existing lots
within the R-1 zoning district. The amendments will reduce the number of non-conforming
lots due to lot size from 43 percent to 7 percent and non-conforming lots due to lot width
from 21 percent to 12 percent.

(4)  Although exempt under the statute, the City has nevertheless in its sole
discretion performed a business impact estimate pursuant to § 166.041(4)(c), and
determined that adoption of this ordinance:

(a) serves a public purpose by serving the public health, safety, morals, and
welfare of the City,
(b) has no direct negative economic impact on private, for-profit businesses in the
city,

|



(c) will not result in direct compliance costs by businesses,

(d) does not impose any new charge or fee or businesses for which businesses
will be financially responsible,

(e) does not create any additional municipal regulatory cost which is not recovered
appropriately and lawfully by the City.

(5) Pursuant to Section 163.3187, Florida Statutes, the City Commission held
a meeting and hearing on this Unified Land Development Code change, with due public
notice having been provided, to obtain public comment, and considered all written and
oral comments received during public hearings, including support documents.

(6) The meetings were advertised and held with due public notice, to obtain
public comment; and having considered written and oral comments received during public
hearings, find the changes necessary and appropriate to the needs of the City.

SECTION 2. AMENDMENT TO ARTICLE 2, REGULATIONS FOR SPECIFIC
DISTRICTS. Article 2, Section 2.04.01 Zoning District Summary Table is hereby
amended to read as follows:

Text that is underlined is text to be added and text that is shown as strikeeut is to be
removed.

2.04.00 Establishment of Districts
2.04.01 Zoning District Summary Tables

Table 1 - Table of Development StandardsError! Bookmark not defined.



Max. Min. Min. Min, Setbacks Max. Max.
Zone Density Lot Size Lot s.f.  of | (feet) Lot Bldg.
(units/ac) | (sq.ft.) Width dwelling Covg. Height
(feet) unit (%) (feet)
Front Rear | Sides
AG-1 1/10 acres 10 acres 250 width 40 50 30 5% 45
400 depth (3 stories)
AG-2 1/1 acre 1 acre 150 30 20 15 30% 40
R-1 2.5 155000 100 1,200 30 20 15 45% 40
12,000 80 12
R-2 3.67 10,000 75 1,000 30 20 10 45 % 40
R-3 4.65 7,500 SF 75 950 30 20 10 45% 40
8.7 8,000 Duplex 80 750/unit 30 20 10
R-4:
SF 5.8 6,000 60 950 30 20 10 45% 50%*
Mobite Home 6.000 50 750 30 20 10 45% 40
Duplex 8.7 8,000 80 750/unit 30 20 10 o
MF 3+ 10 13.000 100 450/unit 30 20 20
R-5:
SF 10 6.500 65 950 20 10 75 55% 40
MF 3+ units 10 13,000 100 450/unit 30 20 20 45% 50%*
MH:
MH Park 10 4,000 single wide 40 14 x 60 20 20 75 45% 40
MH Park 10 5,500 dbl wide 55 28 x 60
RV Park 10 3,000 for MH 30 N/A
RV Camp 10 2,500 pull-thru RV 25 N/A
RV Camp 10 3.000 Park Model RV 30 500 sf

SECTION 3. BUSINESS IMPACT ESTIMATE. Pursuant to Section 166.041(4),
Florida Statutes, the City is required to prepare a business impact estimate for certain
proposed ordinances. This proposed ordinance amends the City’s Unified Land
Development Code as to certain performance criteria. Such an minor amendment to the
City’s Unified Land Development Code (1) serves a public purpose by serving the public
health, safety, morals, and welfare of the City, (2) has no direct negative economic impact
on private, for-profit businesses in the city as it will be applied to all similarly situated
applicants, (3) will not result in direct compliance costs by businesses, (4) does not
impose any new charge or fee or businesses for which businesses will be financially
responsible, and (5) does not create any additional municipal regulatory cost which is not
recovered appropriately and lawfully by the City. Thus, it is estimated that neither
residents nor any business will incur additional costs. The City does not seek to impose
any additional user or regulatory fees or charges, nor are any direct compliance costs




expected. The Business impact Estimate form for this ordinance is on file with the City
Clerk.

SECTION 4. CODIFICATION OF ORDINANCE. This Ordinance shall be codified
in the Code of Ordinances of Polk City, Florida, and incorporated into the Unified Land
Development Code which is a part thereof. A certified copy of this enacting ordinance
shall be located in the Office of the City Clerk of Polk City. The City Clerk shall also make
copies available to the public for a reasonable publication charge.

SECTION 5. SEVERABILITY. If any section, subsection, sentence, clause,
phrase, or portion of this ordinance is for any reason held invalid or unconstitutional by
any court of competent jurisdiction, such portion shall be deemed a separate, distinct and
independent provision and such holding shall not affect the validity of the remaining
portions thereof.

SECTION 6. CONFLICTING ORDINANCES AND RESOLUTIONS. All existing
ordinances and resolutions of Polk City in conflict with this ordinance are repealed to the
extent necessary to give this Ordinance full force and effect.

SECTION 7. EFFECTIVE DATE. This Ordinance shall become effective
immediately upon its passage.

INTRODUCED AND PASSED on FIRST READING, this day of
, 2024.

POLK CITY, FLORIDA

Joe LaCascia, Mayor

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM AND
CORRECTNESS
Patricia Jackson, City Manager/Clerk Thomas A. Cloud, City Attorney

PASSED AND DULY ADOPTED ON SECOND READING, with a quorum present
and voting by the City Commission of Polk City, Florida meeting in Regular Session this
day of , 2024,

Joe LaCascia, Mayor

ATTEST:

Patricia Jackson, City Manager/City Clerk



Business Impact Estimate

This form should be included in the agenda packet for the item under which the proposed ordinance is to
be considered and must be posted on Polk City's website by the time notice of the proposed ordinance
is published.

Proposed ordinance's title/reference:

ORDINANCE NO. 2024-03
AN ORDINANCE OF POLK CITY, FLORIDA; AMENDING THE POLK CITY LAND
DEVELOPMENT CODE BY AMENDING ARTICLE 2 — REGULATIONS FOR SPECIFIC
DISTRICTS, SECTION 2.04.01, “ZONING DISTRICT SUMMARY TABLES” TO CHANGE THE
MINIMUM DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS IN TABLE 5 FOR THE R-1 SINGLE FAMILY
ZONING DISTRICT REDUCING THE MINIMUM REQUIRED LOT SIZE, LOT WIDTH AND SIDE
YARD SETBACKS WITHIN THE POLK CITY EXEMPTION AREA OF THE GREEN SWAMP
AREA OF CRITICAL STATE CONCERN; REPEALING ALL ORDINANCES IN CONFLICT;
PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING FOR CONFLICT; PROVIDING FOR
CODIFICATION; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

This Business Impact Estimate is provided in accordance with section 166.041(4), Florida
Statutes. If one or more boxes are checked below, this means Polk City is of the view that a
business impact estimate is not required by state law' for the proposed ordinance. If no boxes
are checked, the Business Impact Estimate Requirements Section will be completed. Polk City
may, in its own discretion, determine to perform a Business Impact Estimate for ordinances
exempted per Florida Statutes. This Business Impact Estimate may be revised following its initial
posting.

REASON EXEMPTED FROM BUSINESS IMPACT ESTIMATE REQUIREMENTS

Ol The proposed ordinance is required for compliance with Federal or State law or
regulation;

Ol The proposed ordinance relates to the issuance or refinancing of debt;

Cd The proposed ordinance relates to the adoption of budgets or budget amendments,
including revenue sources necessary to fund the budget;

| The proposed ordinance is required to implement a contract or an agreement, including,
but not limited to, any Federal, State, local, or private grant or other financial assistance
accepted by the municipal government;

] The proposed ordinance is an emergency ordinance;

] The ordinance relates to procurement; or

The proposed ordinance is enacted to implement the following:
a. Partll of Chapter 163, Florida Statutes, relating to growth policy, county and municipal
planning, and land development regulation, including zoning, development orders,
development agreements and development permits;



b. Sections 190.005 and 190.046, Florida Statutes, regarding community development

districts;
c. Section 553.73, Florida Statutes, relating to the Florida Building Code; or

d. Section 633.202, Florida Statutes, relating to the Florida Fire Prevention Code.

! See Section 166.041(4)(c), Florida Statutes.



BUSINESS IMPACT ESTIMATE REQUIREMENTS

In accordance with the provisions of controlling law, even notwithstanding the fact that an
exemption noted above may apply, Polk City hereby publishes the following information:

1. Summary of the proposed ordinance (must include a statement of the public purpose, such as
serving the public health, safety, morals and welfare): There are three proposed text amendments to
the Development Requirements for the R-1 Zoning District.
o Amending the required minimum lot size from 15,000 sf to 12,000 square feet.
o Amending the required minimum lot width requirement from 100 feet to 80 feet.
e Amending the required minimum side setback from 15 feet to 12 feet.
These amendments are proposed to help lessen the non-conforming of existing lots within the
R-1 zoning district.
Although exempt under the statute, the City has nevertheless in its sole discretion performed
a business impact estimate pursuant to § 166.041(4)(c), Florida Statutes, and determined
that adoption of this ordinance:

(1) serves a public purpose by serving the public health, safety, morals, and welfare of the
City,

(2) has no direct negative economic impact on private, for-profit businesses in the city,

(3) will not result in direct compliance costs by businesses,

(4) does not impose any new charge or fee or businesses for which businesses will be
financially responsible,

(5) does not create any additional municipal regulatory cost which is not recovered
appropriately and lawfully by the City.

2. An estimate of the direct economic impact of the proposed ordinance on private, for- profit
businesses in Polk City, if any:
(@) An estimate of direct compliance costs that businesses may reasonably incur.
(b) Any new charge or fee imposed by the proposed ordinance or for which
businesses will be financially responsible; and
(c) An estimate of Polk City's regulatory costs, including estimated revenues from any
new charges or fees to cover such costs.

This change is for residential land uses only and will not affect any business.




3 Good faith estimate of the number of businesses likely to be impacted by the proposed

ordinance:
None, this change will only affect land within the R-1, low-density residential, district.

4. Additional information the governing body deems useful (if any): The proposed change will
impact non-conforming lots by amending the required minimum lot size from 15,000 sf to 12,000 square
feet and bring them into conformance with the Code. The number of non-conforming lots for lot siz

would be reduced from 43 percent to 7 percent.




TEXT AMENDMENT TO POLK CITY LAND DEVELOPMENT CODE
MINIMUM DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS IN THE R-1 ZONING DISTRICT

OVERVIEW

April 16, 2024

TO:

FROM:

SUBJECT:

Polk City City Commission
Central Florida Regional Planning Council

Text Amendment to the Land Development Code:

City-initiated text amendment to the Polk City Land Development Code
Article 2- Regulations for Specific Districts, Section 2.04.01 “Zoning District
Summary Table” Table 5 to reduce the minimum lot size, lot width and side
yard setbacks for the R-1 Single Family Zoning District. This change reflects
existing conditions of past development in the R-1 Zoning District.

ORDINANCE NO. 2024-03

AN ORDINANCE OF POLK CITY, FLORIDA; AMENDING THE POLK CITY
LAND DEVELOPMENT CODE BY AMENDING ARTICLE 2 -
REGULATIONS FOR SPECIFIC DISTRICTS, SECTION 2.04.01, “ZONING
DISTRICT SUMMARY TABLES” TO CHANGE THE MINIMUM
DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS IN TABLE 5 FOR THE R-1 SINGLE
FAMILY ZONING DISTRICT, REDUCING THE MINIMUM REQUIRED LOT
SIZE, LOT WIDTH AND SIDE YARD SETBACKS WITHIN THE POLK CITY
EXEMPTION AREA OF THE GREEN SWAMP AREA OF CRITICAL
STATE CONCERN; REPEALING ALL ORDINANCES IN CONFLICT;
PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING FOR CONFLICT;
PROVIDING FOR CODIFICATION; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE
DATE.

AGENDA DATE:

Planning Commission Meeting: April 8, 2024, at 6:00 PM
City Commission Meeting (First Reading): April 16, 2024, at 7:00 PM
City Commission Meeting (Second Reading): May 21, 2024, at 7:00 PM




POLK CITY PLANNING COMMISSION ACTION:

On Monday, April 8, 2024, the Polk City Planning Commission voted unanimously to
forward the proposed text amendments to the City’s Land Development Code to the City
Commission with recommendations of approval.

CITY COMMISSION MOTION OPTIONS:
1. Approve Ordinance 2024-03 on First Reading
2. Approve Ordinance 2024-03 with changes on First Reading
3. Deny Ordinance 2024-03 on First Reading

ATTACHMENTS:

e Map: R-1 Properties in Polk City Exemption Area of Green Swamp Area of
Critical State Concern

e Map: R-1 Properties in Polk City Exemption Area of Green Swamp Area of
Critical State Concern — Lot Area Less Than 15,000 SF

e Map: R-1 Properties in Polk City Exemption Area of Green Swamp Area of
Critical State Concern — Lot Width Less Than 100 Feet

OVERVIEW:

City staff has identified the need for a City-initiated text amendment to the Polk City Land
Development Code (LDC) to reduce inconsistencies between the R-1 Zoning District
Minimum Development Standards and the lots developed in the R-1 Zoning District.

Per Section 2.04.02.03(B) of the LDC, the purpose of the Single- Family (R-1) Zoning
District is:

To establish areas which are uniquely appropriate for low density residential
neighborhoods with ample open space and outdoor living areas; and to
establish development standards appropriate to ensure proper
development and a low-density residential environment.

As shown below, the R-1 Zoning District requires a minimum 15,000 square foot lot size
with a minimum 100-foot lot width and 15’ side yard setbacks. The R-1 Zoning District
requirements are included in the table below.




Polk City Land Development Code — Table 5: Table of Development Standards

Zone Max. Min. Min. Min. Setbacks Max. | Max.
Density | Lot Size Lot s.f. of | (feet) Lot Bldg.
(units/a | (sq.ft.) Width | dwellin Covg. | Height
c) (feet) g unit Front | Rear | Sides (%) (feet)
R-1 2.5 15,000 100 1,200 30 20 [ 15 45% 40

Staff performed an analysis of all parcels located within the R-1 zoning district within the
Green Swamp Area of Critical State Concern Exemption Area to see how many parcels
meet the minimum Iot size requirement and the minimum lot width requirement. As shown
on the attached map series, approximately 43 percent of the lots do not meet the minimum
15,000 square foot lot size requirement and approximately 21 percent of the lots do not
meet the minimum 100-foot lot size requirement.

PROPOSED TEXT AMENDMENTS:

There are three (3) proposed text amendments to the Development Requirements for the
R-1 Zoning District.

o Amending the required minimum lot size from 15,000 square feet to 12,000
square feet.

e Amending the required minimum lot width requirement from 100 feet to 80
feet.

o Amending the required minimum side setback from 15 feet to 12 feet.

These amendments are proposed to help lessen the non-conformity of existing lots within
the R-1 zoning district.

The attached map series shows the impact to non-conforming lots by amending the
required minimum lot size from 15,000 sf to 12,000 square feet. The number of non-
conforming lots for lot size would be reduced from 43 percent to 7 percent.

The attached map series shows the impact to non-conforming lots by amending the
required minimum lot width from 100 feet to 80 feet. The number of non-conforming lots
for lot width would be reduced from 21 percent to12 percent.

The amendment to the side yard setback requirement from 15 feet to 12 feet is proposed
because the change is proportional to the change in lot width requirements. A 15-foot
side setback requirement for a 100-foot-wide lot provides 70 percent of the property
frontage in the building envelope. A 12-foot side setback requirement for an 80-foot-wide
lot provides 70 percent of the property frontage in the building envelope.




e 100 feet— 15 feet — 15 feet = 70 feet; 70 feet/100 feet = 70% front building envelope
80 feet — 12 feet — 12 feet = 56 feet: 56 feet/80 feet = 70% front building envelope.

The proposed amendments to the Land Development Code (LDC) are provided below.

Text that is underlined is text to be added and text that is shown as strikeout is to be

removed.

Article 2 Regulations for Specific Districts

2.04.00 Establishment of Districts

2.04.01 Zoning District Summary Tables

Table 5 - Table of Development Standards

Max. Min. Min. Min. Setbacks Max. | Max.
Zone Density | Lot Size Lot s.f. of | (feet) Lot Bldg.
(units/a | (sq-ft.) Width | dwellin Covg. | Height
3 o,
c) (feet) g unit Front | Rear | Sides ( /o) (feet)
AG-1 1/10 acres 10 acres 250 width 40 50 30 5% 45
400 depth (3 stories)
AG-2 Vacre | 1acre 150 30 20 15 30% 40
R-1 25 15,000 160 1,200 30 20 |15 45% 40
12,000 80 12
Rep 3.67 10,000 75 1,000 30 20 10 45% 40
R-3 4.65 7,500 SF 75 950 30 20 10 45% 40
8.7 8,000 Duplex 80 750/unit 30 20 10
R-4:
SF 58 6,000 60 950 30 20 10 45% so**
Mobile Home 6.000 50 750 30 20 |10 45% o
Duplex 8.7 8,000 80 750/unit 30 20 10 =
MF 3+ 10 13,000 100 | 450/unit 30 20 |20
R-5:
SF 10 6,500 65 950 20 10 7.5 55% 40
MF 3+ units 10 13,000 100 450/unit 30 20 |20 45% spt*
MH:
MH Park 10 4,000 single wide 40 14 x 60 20 20 75 45% 40
MH Park 10 5,500 dbl wide 55 28X 60
RV Park 10 3,000 for MH 30 N/A
RV Camp 10 2,500 pull-thru RV 25 N/A
RV Camp 10 3,000 Park Model RV_| 30 500 s




ZONING MAP
R-1 Properties - Exempt Zone - Area Less Than 15k Sq. Ft.

bnp-sT- ; /" 28,
Ry s

_§-—4$r-s:r 3
[]
‘6 m u ARFIELD.RD—

i B

e St (et it

"7

?é Q Legend
B D R1 (Exempt) - Area < 15k h
s Parcel Boundaries

E Polk City Boundary

'--.

._-‘ Rk Green Swamp Boundary

0.2 Polk City Zoning
1 Miles

3\10
au

a3

Lake Agnes

e
®

0 0.1

(Clearwater Lake R-1 Single Family Residential

—




ZONING MAP

R-1 Properties - Exempt Zone - Area Less Than 12k Sq. Ft.

ST-ST-

P

FASHLEY-RD

|

-AIANO

e’i—

o
o
-

3 g
§ ﬁ__!f

T y

/

8

I.-.-.E--.- D

mrpum.
n
=
©
£

T\

e T
ﬁml w

oW

559
ARE|ELD-RD—
% o L —
8o, 3
‘&?r/ )
Lake Agnes
- - - =y

(

0.2

71 Miles

[ learwater Lake

Legend

D R1 (Exempt) - Area < 12k I

Parcel Boundaries

D Polk City Boundary
L T |

J Green Swamp Boundary

PoIk City Zoning
R-1 Single Family Residential




ZONING MAP
R-1 Properties - Exempt Zone - Width Less Than 100 Ft.

-
SEESE . £ 559

. e

OAK
(£
()

.
AYBERRY-D

‘E-M*'-R:I‘I.E-I-N
—-ASHLEY-RD

2
e
m a Lake Agnes

CF H
6 P

=
——‘ L. ...J Green Swamp Boundary

0 0.1 02 Polk City Zoning
I 1 Miles R-1 Single Family Residential

( learwater Lake

Legend
R1 (Exempt) - Width < 100 ft

Parcel Boundaries 1

Polk City Boundary

—_—




ZONING MAP

R-1 Properties - Exempt Zone - Width Less Than 80 Ft.

—
E 5 gq
F P4 R,
JZN b <r 404,,4*
o= /
! ", b
3 ST-57- Q
.‘EE } 3 3/ 559
ARFEIELD-RD—
AR —
a‘?oo ;‘9
"‘5‘-@// &
AYBERRY-BR
E-r.w-R-‘n.E.t.NJ
I ASHLEY-RD I D
o
—xﬁ
to Lake Agnes
Im----%--- e et P b L = oo am g
LATFUR.L%»
£
&
§ Legend
N E D R1 (Exempt) - Width <80 ft. ||
z Parcel Boundaries
Polk City Boundary
‘—_\ L-:j Green Swamp Boundary lf
0 0.1 02 Polk City Zoning
‘learwater Lake —Miles R-1 Single Family Residential




City Commission Meeting
April 16, 2024

AGENDA ITEM #2: ORDINANCE 2024-04 — City-Initiated Text Amendment to the Land
Development Code

INFORMATION ONLY
_X _ACTION REQUESTED

ISSUE:

ORDINANCE 2024-04 - AMENDING ARTICLE 2 — REGULATIONS FOR SPECIFIC DISTRICTS,
SECTION 2.04.01, “ZONING DISTRICT SUMMARY TABLES” OF THE UNIFORM LAND
DEVELOPMENT CODE: CHANGING MINIMUM DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS IN TABLE 5 FOR
THE R-2 SINGLE FAMILY ZONING DISTRICT & REDUCING THE MINIMUM REQUIRED LOT SIZE
WITHIN THE POLK CITY EXEMPTION AREA OF THE GREEN SWAMP AREA OF CRITICAL
STATE CONCERN: REPEALING ALL ORDINANCES IN CONFLICT; PROVIDING FOR A
BUSINESS IMPACT ESTIMATE, SEVERABILITY, CODIFICATION AN EFFECTIVE DATE. First
Reading

ATTACHMENTS:

Ordinance 2024-04
CFRPC Staff Report

ANALYSIS:

City staff has identified the need for a City-initiated text amendment to the Polk City Land Development
Code (LDC) to reduce lot size/area inconsistencies between the R-2 Zoning District Minimum
Development Standards and the lots developed in the R-2 Zoning District. See full CFRPC Staff Report
attached.

On April 8, 2024, the Planning Commission voted to forward the proposed Text Amendments to the
City’s Land Development Code to the City Commission for approval.

Polk City’s Business Impact Statement is attached.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

Approve Ordinance 2024-04 on First Reading.



ORDINANCE 2024-04

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COMMISSION OF POLK CITY, FLORIDA;
AMENDING ARTICLE 2 - REGULATIONS FOR SPECIFIC DISTRICTS, SECTION
2.04.01, “ZONING DISTRICT SUMMARY TABLES” OF THE UNIFORM LAND
DEVELOPMENT CODE; CHANGING MINIMUM DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS IN
TABLE 5 FOR THE R-2 SINGLE FAMILY ZONING DISTRICT & REDUCING THE
MINIMUM REQUIRED LOT SIZE WITHIN THE POLK CITY EXEMPTION AREA OF
THE GREEN SWAMP AREA OF CRITICAL STATE CONCERN; REPEALING ALL
ORDINANCES IN CONFLICT; PROVIDING FOR A BUSINESS IMPACT ESTIMATE,
SEVERABILITY, CODIFICATION AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ENACTED BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF POLK
CITY, FLORIDA:

SECTION 1. COMMISSION FINDINGS AND INTENT. In adopting this Ordinance
and modifying the Polk City Code and the therein-incorporated Unified Land Development
Code, the City Commission of Polk City, Florida, hereby makes the following findings:

1) Section 163.3167(c), Florida Statutes, empowers the City to adopt land
development regulations to guide the growth and development of the City.

(2)  The Act authorizes a local government desiring to revise its Unified Land
Development code to prepare and adopt amendments.

(3) The City has prepared a text amendment to the Polk City Land
Development Code to amend the development standards in Table 5 for the R-2 zoning
district in the Polk City Green Swamp Exemption Area. The proposed amendments
reduce the minimum lot size from 10,000 square feet to 9,000 square feet These
amendments are proposed to lessen nonconformities of existing lots within the R-2 zoning
district. The amendments will reduce the number of non-conforming lots due to lot size
from 17 percent to 4 percent.

(4)  Although exempt under the statute, the City has nevertheless in its sole
discretion performed a business impact estimate pursuant to § 166.041(4)(c), and
determined that adoption of this ordinance:

(a) serves a public purpose by serving the public health, safety, morals, and
welfare of the City,
(b) has no direct negative economic impact on private, for-profit businesses in the
city,
(c) will not result in direct compliance costs by businesses,
(d) does not impose any new charge or fee or businesses for which businesses
will be financially responsible,

1



(e) does not create any additional municipal regulatory cost which is not recovered
appropriately and lawfully by the City.

(5) Pursuant to Section 163.3187, Florida Statutes, the City Commission held
a meeting and hearing on this Unified Land Development Code change, with due public
notice having been provided, to obtain public comment, and considered all written and
oral comments received during public hearings, including support documents.

(6) The meetings were advertised and held with due public notice, to obtain
public comment; and having considered written and oral comments received during public
hearings, find the changes necessary and appropriate to the needs of the City.

SECTION 2. AMENDMENT TO ARTICLE 2 REGULATIONS FOR SPECIFIC
DISTRICTS. Article 2, Section 2.04.01 Zoning District Summary Table is hereby
amended to read as follows:

Text that is underlined is text to be added and text that is shown as strikeeut is to be
removed.

2.04.00 Establishment of Districts
2.04.01 Zoning District Summary Tables

Table 1 - Table of Development StandardsError! Bookmark not defined.



Max. Min. Min. Min. Setbacks Mazx. Max.
Zone Density Lot Size Lot s.f. of | (feet) Lot Bldg.
(units/ac) | (sq.ft.) Width dwelling Covg. Height
(feet) unit (%) (feet)
Front Rear | Sides
AG-1 1/10 acres 10 acres 250 width 40 50 30 5% 45
400 depth (3 stories)
AG-2 1/1 acre 1 acre 150 30 20 15 30% 40
R-1 25 15,000 100 1,200 30 20 15 45% 40
R-2 3.67 Heano 75 1,000 30 20 10 45% 40
9.000
R-3 4.65 7,500 SF 75 950 30 20 10 45% 40
8.7 8,000 Duplex 80 750/unit 30 20 10
R-4:
SF 5.8 6,000 60 950 30 20 10 45% 50%F*
Mobile Home 6.000 50 750 30 20 10 45% 40
Duplex 8.7 8,000 80 750/unit 30 20 10 T
MF 3+ 10 13,000 100 450/unit 30 20 20
R-5:
SF 10 6.500 65 950 20 10 7.5 55% 40
MF 3+ units 10 13,000 100 450/unit 30 20 20 45% 50%%
MH:
MH Park 10 4,000 single wide 40 14 x 60 20 20 7.5 45% 40
MH Park 10 5,500 dbl wide 55 28 x 60
RV Park 10 3,000 for MH 30 N/A
RV Camp 10 2,500 pull-thru RV 25 N/A
RV Camp 10 3.000 Park Model RV 30 500 sf

SECTION 3. BUSINESS IMPACT ESTIMATE. Pursuant to Section 166.041(4),
Florida Statutes, the City is required to prepare a business impact estimate for certain
proposed ordinances. This proposed ordinance amends the City's Unified Land
Development Code as to certain performance criteria. Such an minor amendment to the
City’s Unified Land Development Code (1) serves a public purpose by serving the public
health, safety, morals, and welfare of the City, (2) has no direct negative economic impact
on private, for-profit businesses in the city as it will be applied to all similarly situated
applicants, (3) will not result in direct compliance costs by businesses, (4) does not
impose any new charge or fee or businesses for which businesses will be financially
responsible, and (5) does not create any additional municipal regulatory cost which is not
recovered appropriately and lawfully by the City. Thus, it is estimated that neither
residents nor any business will incur additional costs. The City does not seek to impose
any additional user or regulatory fees or charges, nor are any direct compliance costs




expected. The Business Impact Estimate form for this ordinance is on file with the City
Clerk.

SECTION 4. CODIFICATION OF ORDINANCE. This Ordinance shall be codified
in the Code of Ordinances of Polk City, Florida, and incorporated into the Unified Land
Development Code which is a part thereof. A certified copy of this enacting ordinance
shall be located in the Office of the City Clerk of Polk City. The City Clerk shall also make
copies available to the public for a reasonable publication charge.

SECTION 5. SEVERABILITY. If any section, subsection, sentence, clause,
phrase, or portion of this ordinance is for any reason held invalid or unconstitutional by
any court of competent jurisdiction, such portion shall be deemed a separate, distinct and
independent provision and such holding shall not affect the validity of the remaining
portions thereof.

SECTION 6. CONFLICTING ORDINANCES AND RESOLUTIONS. All existing
ordinances and resolutions of Polk City in conflict with this ordinance are repealed to the
extent necessary to give this Ordinance full force and effect.

SECTION 7. EFFECTIVE DATE. This Ordinance shall become effective
immediately upon its passage.

INTRODUCED AND PASSED on FIRST READING, this day of
, 2024.

POLK CITY, FLORIDA

Joe LaCascia, Mayor

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM AND
CORRECTNESS
Patricia Jackson, City Manager/Clerk Thomas A. Cloud, City Attorney

PASSED AND DULY ADOPTED ON SECOND READING, with a quorum present
and voting by the City Commission of Polk City, Florida meeting in Regular Session this
day of , 2024,

Joe LaCascia, Mayor

ATTEST:

Patricia Jackson, City Manager/City Clerk



Business Impact Estimate

This form should be included in the agenda packet for the item under which the proposed ordinance isto
be considered and must be posted on Polk City's website by the time notice of the proposed ordinance

is published.

Proposed ordinance's title/reference:
ORDINANCE NO. 2024-04
AN ORDINANCE OF POLK CITY, FLORIDA; AMENDING THE POLK CITY LAND
DEVELOPMENT CODE BY AMENDING ARTICLE 2 — REGULATIONS FOR SPECIFIC
DISTRICTS, SECTION 2.04.01, “ZONING DISTRICT SUMMARY TABLES” TO CHANGE THE
MINIMUM DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS IN TABLE 5 FOR THE R-2 SINGLE FAMILY|
ZONING DISTRICT REDUCING THE MINIMUM REQUIRED LOT SIZE WITHIN THE POLK
CITY EXEMPTION AREA OF THE GREEN SWAMP AREA OF CRITICAL STATE CONCERN;
REPEALING ALL ORDINANCES IN CONFLICT; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY;
PROVIDING FOR CONFLICT; PROVIDING FOR CODIFICATION; AND PROVIDING AN

EFFECTIVE DATE.

This Business Impact Estimate is provided in accordance with section 166.041(4), Florida
Statutes. If one or more boxes are checked below, this means Polk City is of the view that a
business impact estimate is not required by state law' for the proposed ordinance. If no boxes
are checked, the Business Impact Estimate Requirements Section will be completed. Polk City
may, in its own discretion, determine to perform a Business Impact Estimate for ordinances
exempted per Florida Statutes. This Business Impact Estimate may be revised following its initial

posting.
REASON EXEMPTED FROM BUSINESS IMPACT ESTIMATE REQUIREMENTS

Ol The proposed ordinance is required for compliance with Federal or State law or
regulation;
The proposed ordinance relates to the issuance or refinancing of debt;

O

U The proposed ordinance relates to the adoption of budgets or budget amendments,
including revenue sources necessary to fund the budget;

O The proposed ordinance is required to implement a contract or an agreement, including,
but not limited to, any Federal, State, local, or private grant or other financial assistance
accepted by the municipal government;

O The proposed ordinance is an emergency ordinance;

Ll The ordinance relates to procurement; or

The proposed ordinance is enacted to implement the following:

a. Part |l of Chapter 163, Florida Statutes, relating to growth policy, county and municipal
planning, and land development regulation, including zoning, development orders,



development agreements and development permits;

b. Sections 190.005 and 190.046, Florida Statutes, regarding community development
districts;

c. Section 553.73, Florida Statutes, relating to the Florida Building Code; or

d. Section 633.202, Florida Statutes, relating to the Florida Fire Prevention Code.

! See Section 166.041(4)(c), Florida Statutes.



BUSINESS IMPACT ESTIMATE REQUIREMENTS

In accordance with the provisions of controlling law, even notwithstanding the fact that an
exemption noted above may apply, Polk City hereby publishes the following information:

1. Summary of the proposed ordinance (must include a statement of the public purpose, such as|
serving the public health, safety, morals and welfare): There is one proposed text amendment to the
Development Requirement for the R-2 Zoning District.

e Amending the required minimum lot size from 10,000 sf to 9,000 square feet.

This amendment is proposed to help lessen the non-conformity of existing lots within the R-2 zoning district.

Although exempt under the statute, the City has nevertheless in its sole discretion performed
a business impact estimate pursuant to § 166.041(4)(c), Florida Statutes, and determined
that adoption of this ordinance:

(1) serves a public purpose by serving the public health, safety, morals, and welfare of the
City,

(2) has no direct negative economic impact on private, for-profit businesses in the city,

(3) will not result in direct compliance costs by businesses,

(4) does not impose any new charge or fee or businesses for which businesses will be
financially responsible,

(5) does not create any additional municipal regulatory cost which is not recovered
appropriately and lawfully by the City.

2. An estimate of the direct economic impact of the proposed ordinance on private, for- profit
businesses in Polk City, if any:
(@) An estimate of direct compliance costs that businesses may reasonably incur;
(b) Any new charge or fee imposed by the proposed ordinance or for which
businesses will be financially responsible; and
(c) An estimate of Polk City's regulatory costs, including estimated revenues from any
new charges or fees to cover such costs.

This change is for residential land uses only and will not affect any business.




3. Good faith estimate of the number of businesses likely to be impacted by the proposed
ordinance:

None, this change will only affect land within the R-2, low-density residential, district.

4. Additional information the governing body deems useful (if any): The proposed change will
impact the non-conforming lots by amending the required minimum lot size from 10,000 sf to 9,000
square feet and bring them into conformance with the Code. The number of non-conforming lots for lot
size would be reduced from 17 percent to 4 percent.




TEXT AMENDMENT TO POLK CITY LAND DEVELOPMENT CODE
CONCERNING DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS IN THE R-2 ZONING DISTRICT

OVERVIEW
April 16, 2024
TO: Polk City City Commission
FROM: Central Florida Regional Planning Council

SUBJECT: Text Amendment to the Land Development Code:
City-initiated text amendment to Section 2.04.01 of the Polk City Land
Development Code to amend the development standards in Table 5 for the
R-2 zoning district in the Polk City Green Swamp Exemption Area.

ORDINANCE NO. 2024-04

AN ORDINANCE OF POLK CITY, FLORIDA; AMENDING THE POLK
CITY LAND DEVELOPMENT CODE BY AMENDING ARTICLE 2 -
REGULATIONS FOR SPECIFIC DISTRICTS, SECTION 2.04.01,
“ZONING DISTRICT SUMMARY TABLES” TO CHANGE THE MINIMUM
DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS IN TABLE 5 FOR THE R-2 SINGLE
FAMILY ZONING DISTRICT, REDUCING THE MINIMUM REQUIRED
LOT SIZE WITHIN THE POLK CITY EXEMPTION AREA OF THE GREEN
SWAMP AREA OF CRITICAL STATE CONCERN; REPEALING ALL
ORDINANCES IN CONFLICT; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY;
PROVIDING FOR CONFLICT; PROVIDING FOR CODIFICATION; AND
PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

AGENDA DATE:
Planning Commission Meeting: April 8, 2024 at 6:00 PM
City Commission Meeting (First Reading): April 16, 2024 at 7:00 PM
City Commission Meeting (Second Reading): May 21, 2024 at 7:00 PM




POLK CITY PLANNING COMMISSION ACTION:

On Monday, April 8, 2024, the Polk City Planning Commission voted unanimously to
forward the proposed text amendments to the City’s Land Development Code to the City
Commission with recommendations of approval.

CITY COMMISSION MOTION OPTIONS:
1. Approve Ordinance 2024-04 on First Reading

2. Approve Ordinance 2024-04 with changes on First Reading
3. Deny Ordinance 2024-04 on First Reading

ATTACHMENTS:

e Map: R-2 Properties in the Polk City Exemption Area of Green Swamp Area
of Critical State Concern — Lot Area Less Than 10,000 SF

e Map: R-2 Properties in the Polk City Exemption Area of Green Swamp Area
of Critical State Concern — Lot Area Less Than 9,000 SF

e Map: R-2 Properties in the Polk City Exemption Area of Green Swamp Area
of Critical State Concern — Lot Width Less Than 75 Feet

OVERVIEW:

City staff has identified the need for a City-initiated text amendment to the Polk City Land
Development Code (LDC) to reduce lot size/area inconsistencies between the R-2 Zoning
District Minimum Development Standards and the lots developed in the R-2 Zoning
District

Per Section 2.04.02.04(B) of the Land Development Code, the purpose of the Single-
Family (R-2) zoning district is:

To locate and establish areas appropriate for moderately low density
residential neighborhoods, at a density slightly higher than the R-1 district
and with ample open space; and to establish such standards as are
appropriate to ensure proper development in a low density residential
environment.

As shown below, the R-2 Zoning District requires a minimum 10,000 square foot lot size
with a minimum 75-foot lot width. The R-2 Zoning District requirements are included in
the table below.

Table of Development Standards

Zone Max. Min. Min. Min. Setbacks Max. | Max.
Density | Lot Size Lot s.f. of | (feet) Lot Bldg.
(units/a | (sq-ft.) Width | dwellin Covg. | Height
c) (feet) g unit Front Rear | Sides (%) (feet)
R-2 3.67 10,000 75 1,000 30 20 | 10 45% 40




Staff performed an analysis of all parcels located within the R-2 zoning district within the
Green Swamp Area of Critical State Concern Exemption Area to see how many parcels
meet the minimum lot size requirement and the minimum lot width requirement. As shown
on the attached map series, approximately 17 percent of the lots do not meet the minimum
10,000 square foot lot size requirement and approximately 2 percent of the lots do not
meet the minimum 75-foot lot size requirement.

PROPOSED TEXT AMENDMENTS:

There is one (1) proposed text amendment to the Development Requirement for the R-2
Zoning District.

e Amending the required minimum lot size from 10,000 square feet to 9,000
square feet.

This amendment is proposed to help lessen the non-conformity of existing lots within the
R-2 zoning district.

The attached map series shows the impact to non-conforming lots by amending the
required minimum Iot size from 10,000 sf to 9,000 sf. The number of non-conforming lots
for lot size would be reduced from 17 percent to 4 percent.

Since approximately two percent of the lots are non-conforming for lot width, an
amendment to the lot width requirement is not proposed.

The proposed amendments to the Land Development Code (LDC) are provided below.

Text that is underlined is text to be added and text that is shown as strikeout is to be
removed.

Article 2 Regulations for Specific Districts
2.04.00 Establishment of Districts
2.04.01 Zoning District Summary Tables

Table 5 - Table of Development Standards




Max. Min. Min. Min. Setbacks Max. | Max.
Zone Density | Lot Size Lot s.f. of | (feet) Lot Bidg.
(units/a | (sq.ft.) Width | dwellin Covg. | Height
g 0,

¢) (feet) gunit | o | gear | Sides (%) (feet)

AG-1 1/10 acres 10 acres 250 width 40 50 30 5% 45
400 depth (3 stories)
AG-2 1/1 acre | acre 150 30 20 15 30% 40
R-1 25 15,000 100 1,200 30 20 15 45% 40
R-2 3.67 10,000 75 1,000 30 20 10 45% 40
9.000

R-3 4.65 7,500 SF 75 950 30 20 10 45% 40

8.7 8,000 Duplex 80 750/unit 30 20 10
R-4: /) =, i Fon | i
SF 5.8 6,000 60 950 30 20 10 45% so**
Mobile Home 6,000 50 750 30 20 10 45% s
Duplex 8.7 8,000 80 750/unit 30 20 10 =
MF 3+ 10 13,000 100 450/unit_| 30 20 20
R-5: =) i
SF 10 6,500 65 950 20 10 1.5 55% 40
ME 3+ units 10 13,000 100 450/unit 30 20 20 45% so**
MH: _ ' ¥ - Th _ 3
MH Park 10 4,000 single wide 40 14 x 60 20 20 7.5 45% 40
MH Park 10 5,500 dbl wide 55 28 x 60
RV Park 10 3,000 for MH 30 N/A
RV Camp 10 2,500 pull-thru RV 25 N/A
RV Camp 10 3.000 Park Model RV 30 500 sf




ZONING MAP
R-2 Properties - Exempt Zone - Area Less Than 10k Sq. Ft.

CLEA

BAYBERRY-OR

Lake Agnes

PUMN\j
g
E é‘. Legend
o E R2 (Exempt) - Area < Than 10k)
E Parcel Boundaries
D Polk City Boundary
===
'-_J Green Swamp Boundary
I Polk City Zoning

R-2 Single Family Residential




ZONING MAP
R-2 Properties - Exempt Zone - Area Less Than 9k Sq. Ft.

-COMMONW

L AYBERRY-OR
. ¥RT4.alN
\__ASHLEY-RD E
s % Lake Agnes
@

Legend

D R2 (Exempt) - Area < Than 9K)
Parcel Boundaries
Polk City Boundary

L]

'__J Green Swamp Boundary

Polk City Zoning
R-2 Single Family Residential




ZONING MAP
R-2 Properties - Exempt Zone - Width Less Than 75 Ft.

Lake Agnes

o

: Q
a-KIND|
e EL 6

: %
\j

I 1 e A A ————-

3
Legend |I
' KLEN--GOP D R2 (Exempt) - Width < 75 ft

Parcel Boundaries

[ pokcity Boundary l

I==Y Green s

._-J reen Swamp Boundary

Polk City Zoning
R-2 Single Family ResidentialJ]




City Commission Meeting
April 16, 2024

AGENDA ITEM #3: RESOLUTION 2024-03 — CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT

INFORMATION ONLY
_X_ACTION REQUESTED

ISSUE:

Applicant has requested renewal of a conditional use permit to allow a special events facility at 545 Orange
Blivd.

ATTACHMENT:

Resolution 2024-03

ANALYSIS:

The applicant meets the requirements for a Special Events Facility in the R-2 Zoning District. The
Planning Commission voted during the March 11, 2024 Meeting to recommend approval of the
conditional use permit with conditions listed in exhibit “C”.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

Adopt Resolution 2024-03



RESOLUTION 2024-03

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COMMISSION OF POLK CITY, FLORIDA;
APPROVING A CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT TO ALLOW FOR A SPECIAL
EVENTS FACILITY ON APPROXIMATELY 2.5 ACRES AT 545 ORANGE
BOULEVARD (PARCEL ID 252633-296500-045020); PROVIDING CONDITIONS
OF APPROVAL; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING FOR
CONFLICT; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

WHEREAS, On Monday, July 29, 2019, the City Commission of Polk City approved
Resolution 2019-03 for a special event facility at 545 Orange Boulevard with conditions. The
Resolution included an expiration of permit date of June 22, 2022; and

WHEREAS, Gary Ho Shing, (hereinafter referred to as the ‘Applicant’) has requested a
renewal of a conditional use permit to allow a special events facility 545 Orange Boulevard (Parcel
ID # 252633-296500-045020); and

WHEREAS, the property is owned by Gary Ho Shing; and
WHEREAS, the property is located in the R-2 (Single Family) Residential District; and

WHEREAS, special events facilities are a permitted use if approved as a conditional use in
the R-2 zoning district; and

WHEREAS, the Polk City Planning Commission, acting as the designated Local Planning
Agency, has reviewed the Conditional Use Permit application, held an advertised public hearing,
provided for participation by the public in the process, and rendered its recommendations to the
City Commission; and

WHEREAS, the City Commission has reviewed the Conditional Use Permit application, held
an advertised public hearing, and provided for comments and public participation in the process in
accordance with the requirements of state law and the procedures adopted for public participation
in the planning process.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF POLK CITY,
FLORIDA:

Section 1. Findings. The Commission hereby declares that the foregoing findings are true
and correct, incorporated herein by reference, and made a part of this Resolution.

Section 2. Conditional Use Permit; Conditions of Approval. The application for a
Conditional Use Permit to allow a special events facility at 545 Orange Boulevard (Parcel ID #
252633-296500-045020) as shown on the location map provided as Exhibit “A” is approved
subject to compliance with the site plan provided as Exhibit “B” attached to and incorporated in this
Resolution, the conditions of approval provided in Exhibit “C” attached to and incorporated in this
Resolution, and the Event Management Plan provided in Exhibit “D” attached to and incorporated
in this Resolution, and the overflow parking agreement provided in Exhibit “E” attached to and
incorporated in this Resolution.




Section 3. Expiration of Permit. This conditional use permit shall expire three years from
the effective date of this Resolution. Should the use change to a use permitted in the zoning
district that is not the use approved by the conditional use permit, and remain so for 180 days or
more, than this conditional use permit shall expire, and a new application will be required to
reestablish any Conditional Use Approval use.

Section 4. Effective Date. This Resolution shall become effective immediately upon its
passage.

INTRODUCED, PASSED AND DULY ADOPTED, by the City Commission of Polk City, Florida,
meeting in Regular Session on this _16th day of _April , 2024.

POLK CITY

Joe LaCascia, Mayor

ATTEST: Approved as to form and correctness

Patricia R. Jackson, City Manager/Clerk Thomas A. Cloud, City Attorney



POLK CITY RESOLUTION 2024-03
EXHIBIT "A"
LOCATION MAP
Page 1 of 1

POLK CITY
AERIAL MAP
GARY HO SHING

Owner: Gary Ho Shing L
Parcel ID: 25-26-33-206500-045020
Area: 2.00 acres




"B”
SITE PLAN
Page 1 of 2

POLK CITY RESOLUTION 2024-03
EXHIBIT

sauEpunog [92J0d

woind j3elang u

puaBe

dVINNOILV OO




POLK CITY RESOLUTION 2024-03

EXHIBIT "B”

SITE PLAN
Page 2 of 2

*%%Xfx% X Ko XK

\\“s\-t, ?C
e Vo w X

Klx o %o XKk X

0 £+ —

no —
pe \2 PARK SPOTS 3 ——
2 A —
) WV

f—
X —
¢ g—
] a—
i —— o
51 £¢ -—
=] DARN

r 5 5 Ll-\#«t Ruoom

pl 1

ORGANIZERS -
s DORS
HousS&E *

PARK ING For




POLK CITY RESOLUTION 2024-03
EXHIBIT "C”
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL
Page 1 of 2

The following are conditions of approval for the proposed use.

1)

2)

3)

4

5)

6)

7)

8)

9)

10)

This special event facility shall allow private events on the site. A private event means a social
gathering or event attended by invited guests who share a common cause, membership, business or
task and have a prior established relationship. For purposes of this definition, advertisement for
general public attendance or sales of tickets to the general public shall not constitute a private event.
These events serve various purposes, such as celebrations, commemorations, or corporate functions.

There shall be no more than 12 events per calendar year held or conducted on the property. The
applicant may request a modification of these conditions to permit an increase in the number of
events. City staff will provide a history of events and any information pertaining to
complaints/comments received to assist the Planning Commission and City Commission in deciding
on an increase in events.

The applicant shall notify the City of an event at least 15 days prior to the event via the event
notification form. The site includes a private residence. The applicant will notify the city of
personal events that will generate parking impacts or include amplified outdoor music.

There shall be a minimum of two (2) hours between events to limit the potential off-site traffic
congestion.

Hours of operation shall be limited to 10:00 a.m. to 10:30 p.m. Hours of operation include the event,
setup, and take down. Event setup and take down may occur the day before or after the event.

Outdoor music may be played between 10:00 a.m. and 10:00 p.m.

There shall be no permanent alcohol or retail sales as part of this conditional use permit. Events may
include on-site alcohol consumption for event participants (open bar or cash bar) viaa licensed and
insured bartending company. A maximum of two licensed and insured food trucks may be utilized
onsite for catering services for the private event.

Events held onsite must be consistent with the event management plan included in Exhibit “D”.
Should this plan need to be changed or modified for any reason, Polk City staff shall review and
approve any changes or modifications in writing prior to any changes or modifications being
commenced or enacted.

As shown on the attached site plan, all special events will be set back a minimum of 30 feet from the
north and south property lines.

As shown on the attached site plan, the applicant shall install and maintain a buffer along the
property line of 545 Orange Blvd and 525 Orange Blvd. This buffer shall include 92 feet of 6-foot-
tall opaque fence and 138 feet of landscaping consisting of trees that aare a minimum of 6-feet tall.



11)

12)

13)

14)

15)

POLK CITY RESOLUTION 2024-03
EXHIBIT "C”
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL
Page 2 of 2

Parking within the public right-of-way is prohibited.
The applicant shall provide adequate parking to meet the present and future demands of the use and
overflow parking designated and maintained for peak season events so as to prevent parking from

encroaching upon public thoroughfares. Prior to final City Staff permitting, the applicant shall
provide a signed and notarized parking agreement to provide accommodation of overflow parking.

Lighting to illuminate buildings, stages, open areas, or advertising shall be designed so as to shine
only on the subject property and shall be directed away from any public street or residential area.

This special events facility shall be subject to applicable performance standards provided in section
3.06.00 of the Polk City Land Development Code.

This conditional use shall expire on the date included in the expiration date section of the Resolution.



POLK CITY RESOLUTION 2024-03
EXHIBIT "D”
SERENDIPITY SPACE EVENT CENTER EVENT MANAGEMENT PLAN
Page 1 of 3

THE SERENDIPITY SPACE EVENT MANAGEMENT PLAN

CONTACT: GARY HO SHING 407 375 2733

Gcelefproductions@aol.com

EMERGENCY DIAL 911
POLICE 863 965 5555

FIRE DEPT 863 965 6372

In case of a fire emergency, all guests will be ushered cut of the venue in an orderly fashion and set
back at least 200 feet from the facilities. There is a fire extinguisher in the catering portion of the
galley. Management and event planners/coordinators are aware of its location and readily accessible
in case of a fire emergency.

The Serendipity Space may be open from 10a to 10p Sun through Sat, The venue will only be open
when there is an event taking place. All amplified music and events must conclude by 10p on any
night of the week. Vendors and customers/clients have until 1030p to cdlean up after their event.

PARKING
The great lawn has a total of 29 parking spots; 2 of which will be designated for handicap spaces.
Additional parking:

Event organizers/vendors/staff will park at the main house parking at 545 Orange Bivd. That parking
area may hold up to 12 vehicles.

The owners of Stella and Co located at 315 Broadway Bivd SE Polk City, FL 23868 has agreed to allow
guests of The Serendipity Space to utiize their parking facility if needed for overflow parking.
Notarized agreement between both parties induded. A luxury limo van such as a Sprinter will be
utilized to bring guests over from the overflow parking area.




POLK CITY RESOLUTION 2024-03
EXHIBIT "D”
SERENDIPITY SPACE EVENT CENTER EVENT MANAGEMENT PLAN
Page 2 of 3

RULES & REGULATIONS:

The following shall be upheld by customers/clients, event planners/coordinators and vendors who are
involved in the planning and execution of the special event on the premises of The Serendipity Space.

USE OF PROPERTY:
Great lawn, Open Pole Barn and Bathroom Building

Amplified music off by 10p and all events conclude by 10p. This is in accordance with the city’s noise
ordinance.

Max capacity is 100 guests.

Event Planners/Coordinators/Renters are responsible for set up, break down and final cleanup of all
areas.

All vehicles associated with the event must be parked within the parking area.

SMOKING:

Vendors and guests must smoke only in the designated smoking area. All cigarette butts must be
disposed of in the cigarette butts planter provided.

REHEARSALS:

Wedding rehearsals may be scheduled the day prior to the actual wedding. This rehearsal will not be
considered a separate event but a part of the wedding event.

PETS:

Trained dogs and cats are welcome. No other pets other than dogs or cats may be on property. If a petis
present, it is the sole responsibility of that pet’s owner to keep that pet safe and under control as well as
keeping guests, staff and vendors safe from that pet as well. The Serendipity Space is not responsible for
anyone’s pet or the behavior of anyone’s pet. If an incident were to occur between a pet and a person
or object it is the responsibility of that pet's owner to rectify that situation and make that person or
object whole as it once was prior to the situation with the pet.

VENDOR POLICY:

The Serendipity Space is not responsible for outside vendor’s services. Please review all vendors’
agreements individually. If you have selected a vendor that is not on our preferred vendors list, please
have your vendor contact us for our vendor palicies and requirements.




POLK CITY RESOLUTION 2024-03
EXHIBIT "D”

SERENDIPITY SPACE EVENT CENTER EVENT MANAGEMENT PLAN

Page 3 of 3

Alcohol:

If alcohol is being served and consumed, the customer(s)/client(s) isfare responsible for and must abide
by all city, county and state alcoholic beverage control laws and regulations. The Serendipity Space, it's
owner or staff is not responsible for a customer/client or their guests in regards to alcohol on the
property or after departing from an event at the property.

Customer or client will purchase alcohol from Tucker’s of Lakeland. A licensed and insured bartender
from Tucker’s of Lakeland will bring and serve alcohol. The bartender has the right to not serve an
individual if they feel that person has consumed enough alcohol. Last call is 30 minutes prior to the
conclusion of an event. Alcohol may not be served to minors. Illegal substances are not allowed at any
time on the premises. Drunken violent disturbances are prohibited and subject to immediate removal
from the premises and possible termination of event without refund.




POLK CITY RESOLUTION 2024-03
EXHIBIT "D”
OFF-SITE OVERFLOW PARKING AGREEMENT
Page 1 of 1

ihis dacument is berween the owneis Kyle and Sty phann: thempson of The Stellaand Co Salon located

AL 3LS INroadway Bhd SC PGk G iy, FLAIBEB and the vwnei Gary Ho Shing ot The Seiendipity Space
vvent vonue lcGated at 545 Oranye Bivd Polk City, FLOV3RGH

Kyle and Stephanic Thompson give G, ary Ho Shing permission Tor event guests to utilize

thelr parking lot
atStella and Co For overflow parking it necded for cvonts held al The Se rendipily Space

Cancollation of this agreement will be in writing and signed by both parties if eithel

T PArty wers Yo cancel
this agreement.

Sgnature and Dare_

Signatureand Date L

Stale of H.ORID%
Caunty of (=]

The foregoing instrument was acknowledg

ed before me by means of physical presence or online
natanzation, this _ R day of Egbgu_ﬂ%] 2034 by —&M—Mﬂb
who is petsonally known to me or produced SEes as idenlification and by
1 ; -

who is personally known to me or produced a

/J?M%

i as identification

iln‘m?

notary public printed name

notaty public signature
e .
I‘ll M}ﬂ;&ﬂ_




City Commission Meeting
April 16, 2024

AGENDA ITEM #4: Agreement to Provide a Utility Rate and Capital Connection
Charge Study for Polk City

INFORMATION ONLY
_X_ACTION REQUESTED

ISSUE:

Agreement to provide a Utility Rate and Capital Connection Charge Study for Polk City

ATTACHMENT:

Agreement with Raftelis
ANALYSIS:

Polk City is a member of the Polk Regional Water Co-operative for alternative drinking water. A
comprehensive Utility Rate and Capital Connection Charge needs to be done. The Rate Study will
include a financial forecast that will begin with the current budget year and estimate the water and
wastewater systems’ financial operations over the next five-year period beginning with the fiscal year
September 30, 2024. Please see attached Agreement and Exhibit for full details.

Polk City’s water and sewer rates have not changed since 2011, and the Capital Connection Charges
have not been addressed since 2011. It is imperative this study be done regarding the City’s future
and current utilities.

The primary responsibilities of Raftelis Financial Consultants, Inc. (Raftelis) will be to assist Polk City
with: 1) the development of a five-year financial forecast to review the sufficiency of water and
wastewater utility rates; 2) the evaluation of the water and wastewater capital connection charges; and
3) the review of selected miscellaneous service charges and/or policies. Based on understanding the
needs of Polk City, Raftelis has submitted the attached proposal, which will provide rate and financial
consulting services on behalf of Polk City's water and wastewater utility systems (the “System”) as well
as a detailed discussion of the proposed Scope of Services as shown in Exhibit A.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

Approve the Raftelis Financial Consultants, Inc. Agreement to provide Utility Rate and Capital
Connection Charge Study



= RAFTELIS

April 8, 2024

Ms. Patricia Jackson
City Manager

Polk City

123 Broadway Blvd SE
Polk City, FL. 33868

Subject: Agreement to Provide a Utility Rate and Capital Connection Charge Study for
Polk City

Dear Ms. Jackson,

As you requested, Raftelis Financial Consultants, Inc. (Raftelis) is pleased to submit
this proposal to Polk City, Florida (the “City”) to provide rate and financial consulting
services on behalf of the City’s water and wastewater utility systems (the “System”). The
primary responsibilities of Raftelis will be to assist the City with: i) the development of a five-
year financial forecast to review the sufficiency of water and wastewater utility rates; ii) the
evaluation of the water and wastewater capital connection charges; and iii) the review of
selected miscellaneous service charges and/or policies. Based on our understanding of the
needs of the City, we submit this proposal for your consideration, which includes a detailed
discussion of the proposed Scope of Services as shown in Exhibit A.

GENERAL CONTRACT TERMS

The contract terms regarding the project budget and scope, hourly rates for billing purposes,
and other contract terms and conditions will be as set forth in the Water, Sewer, Reclaimed
Water, and Miscellaneous Fees — Rate Study Contract (Charlotte County Contract No.
2023000004) as executed and adopted between Raftelis Financial Consultants, Inc. and
Charlotte County, Florida on May 22, 2023. A copy of the hourly direct labor rates for billing
purposes as contained in the Water, Sewer, Reclaimed Water, and Miscellaneous Fees — Rate
Study Contract (Charlotte County Contract No. 2023000004) is included in Exhibit B to this
proposal.

PROJECT TEAM AND BILLING RATES

With respect to the performance of this engagement, Murray Hamilton will be the project
director, while Trevor McCarthy will be the project manager and primary contact with the
City. Other analysts and administrative personnel will be utilized during the course of the
engagement as needed. Exhibit B summarizes the direct labor hourly billing rates relative to
this engagement which is made part of this proposal.

341N Maidand Avenue, Swoite 300
Maittand. FL 32731

www.raftelis.com



SCOPE OF SERVICES
The scope of services to be performed by Raftelis is included on Exhibit A.

COMPENSATION AND BILLING

Based on the Scope of Services as summarized in Exhibit A and the direct labor billing rates
as identified on Exhibit B, we propose to establish a maximum not-to-exceed contract for the
project in the amount of $77,800. The proposed budget is summarized in Exhibit C, which
includes the direct cost of personnel anticipated to be assigned to conduct the various tasks of
the project by Raftelis as well as an allowance for other direct expenses such as travel,
telephone, and delivery charges. The costs incurred by Raftelis for such other direct costs, if
any, will be billed based on the actual expenses. It is proposed that Raftelis would bill monthly
for services relative to this engagement based on the sum of: i) the hourly amount of time
spent by the project team members; and, ii) the other direct costs incurred to provide the
financial consulting service per Exhibit B. It is not anticipated that any subconsultants would
be required to assist Raftelis in the completion of the project.

MUNICIPAL ADVISOR DISCLOSURE

As a registered Municipal Advisor under the Dodd-Frank Act, Raftelis is required to inform
our clients of any existing or potential conflicts of interest that may be relevant to any
proposed scope of services that may include providing “advice” as that term is defined in the
Dodd-Frank Act. As of the date of this engagement letter, no conflicts of interest are known
to exist.

Under the Dodd-Frank Act the definition of “advice” includes providing any opinion,
information or assumptions related to the size, timing and terms of possible future debt issues
or borrowing. This type of information may be integrated into the capital and financial
planning components of a rate model update. This definition is applicable regardless of
whether this information is developed and used solely for planning and decision-making
purposes. For the services addressed in the scope of work identified for this engagement, any
information that is developed by Raftelis that falls under this definition of municipal advice
is not intended to represent a recommendation that the City should issue debt based on the
terms and assumptions used to develop the financial plan or forecast, or that the City will, in
fact, be able to issue debt under the exact terms and conditions assumed and used to develop
the financial plan or forecast. The information developed as part of this rate model update,
including any related municipal advice, is intended only to provide information useful in
evaluating the potential impact on the utility and future rate adjustments of one potential
course of action for the City. If the City decides at some future date to issue debt, then at that
time the City will need to engage an independent, registered Financial Advisor to assist in
evaluating the availability of different types of debt, and the specific terms and conditions for
issuing debt, which will be affected by market conditions and the City’s credit rating at the
time of issuance. At that time, as a registered Municipal Advisor, Raftelis can also provide
additional assistance related to a specific bond or debt issue, such as preparing a bond



CITY OF POLK CITY: UFICITY RATE AND C APITAL CONNECTION CHARGE STUDY 3

feasibility report or financial forecast for inclusion in bond documents, without requiring
additional oversight or supervision by the Financial Advisor.

By signing this engagement letter indicating its approval and acceptance of the proposed scope
of work and fees, the City is also explicitly acknowledging that Raftelis has provided the
necessary disclosures addressing conflicts of interest and any limitations on the scope of
Municipal Advisory services to be provided by Raftelis as part of this engagement.

The Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board (MSRB) provides significant protections for
municipal entities and obligated persons that are clients of a municipal advisor. To understand
the protections provided and how to file a complaint with an appropriate regulatory authority,
visit the MSRB web site at www.msrb.org.

PROJECT SCHEDULE

Upon notification to proceed as provided by the City, Raftelis will complete the evaluation of
utility rates and capital connection charges within 180 days. The completion of the study is
subject to the availability of information provided to Raftelis from the City that would be
necessary to conduct the evaluations. Based on preliminary discussions with City staff, we
anticipate implementing recommended rates, fees, and charges on or about January 1, 2025.

TERMS AND CONDITIONS

Standard terms and conditions, that are made part of this agreement, are outlined in the
Water, Sewer, Reclaimed Water, and Miscellaneous Fees — Rate Study Contract (Charlotte
County Contract No. 2023000004) as executed and adopted between Raftelis Financial
Consultants, Inc. and Martin County, Florida on May 22, 2023.

If this agreement is acceptable to you, please execute the proposal and send a signed digital
copy to us. We appreciate the opportunity to provide utility rate consulting services to Polk

City.

Very truly yours, ACCEPTED BY:
Raftelis Financial Consultants, Inc. Polk City, Florida
4&1\—\..

Murray M. Hamilton, Jr. Name

Vice President

Title Date
Attachments



EXHIBIT A

POLK CITY, FLORIDA
UTILITY RATE AND CAPITAL CONNECTION CHARGE STUDY

SCOPE OF SERVICES

The following sections outline the scope of service to be performed by Raftelis Financial
Consultants, Inc. (Raftelis) as it relates to the preparation of a water and wastewater user rate
and capital connection charge study (the “Rate Study”) for Polk City (the “City”). The Rate
Study will include a financial forecast that will begin with the current budget year and
estimate the water and wastewater systems’ financial operations over the next five-year
period beginning with the fiscal year ending September 30, 2024. The activities associated with
the Rate Study are summarized below by major task:

1.

Data Request and Data Gathering — Raftelis will prepare a written data request for the
collection of financial, customer billing, operating, engineering, and planning data
necessary to conduct the rate and capital connection charge study. Information requested
will include, but is not limited to, financial statements, existing rate schedules, operating
budgets and capital work plans, existing debt service schedules, summaries of fixed assets
including utility plant investment, detailed accounting records, cost estimates and detailed
customer billing data. The initial data request will be as comprehensive as possible;
however, based on review the City’s initial response, it is contemplated that follow-up
data requests may be required during the course of the study. This task will also include
attendance of a kick-off meeting to be held virtually, if necessary, to confirm study goals
and objectives, establish a project schedule, and review the study’s data requirements.

Identification of Fiscal Policies and Objectives — This task will include the review of existing
City Ordinances, financial policies, and loan agreements associated with outstanding loan
obligations. Based on this review, Raftelis will identify goals related to financial
performance indicators, capital funding practices, and reserve fund policies to provide
financial guidelines and suppott for the rate and fee setting process.

Customer and Sales Forecast — Raftelis will prepare a five-year forecast of customer and
usage requirements based on detailed customer accounting information provided by the
City for the water and wastewater systems. This task will include a review of historical
customer and usage statistics by rate classification and development of a forecast of
customers and sales based on the best available information about future growth. This
task also includes preparing a profile of billing determinants for a historical “Test Year”
and the projected period included in the financial forecast. The profile of billing statistics
will consider existing customer classes and rate schedules and reflect appropriate rate
structure criteria. The task will involve the development of bill frequency reports based
on detailed billing records and the reporting capabilities of the City’s billing system. The
first step of this task will be to work with City staff to specify the billing data to be

A-1



provided. Once the customer and usage data and reports are provided it will be assembled
for use in the five-year financial forecast and rate analysis.

Development of Water and Wastewater Customer Billing Profile — Based on the detailed water
and wastewater customer billing statistics, Raftelis will perform an analysis of customers
and water sales including the preparation of water bill frequencies and revenue
contributions by customer class. Raftelis will also perform an evaluation of current fixed
versus variable cost recovery results. The information will be used to identify appropriate
pricing policies.

Review of Capital Improvements Program — This task will involve the development of a capital
finance plan to fund the City’s water and wastewater system capital improvements
program (CIP). In addition to reviewing the City’s current CIP, this activity will also
include identification of available funding sources and fund balances and development of
a capital funding strategy for the capital projects based on project timing and the analysis
of alternative funding sources, if any. These capital funding sources typically include the
potential issuance of debt, grants, non-ad valorem tax assessments, and funds generated
internally from rates and capital connection charges. It is recognized that the initial
funding strategy developed in conjunction with the City staff may need to be modified
during the course of the rate study in order to achieve the City’s goals with respect to the
level and timing of proposed rate adjustments. These modifications or alternative capital
funding strategies will ensure that the capital finance plan supports the overall cost
recovery strategy deemed to be appropriate by the City.

Development of Projected Revenue Reguirements — Raftelis will prepare a five-year financial
forecast and revenue requirement analysis based on the City’s current water and
wastewater operating budget and CIP. This task will include analysis of operations and
maintenance expenses, capital expenditures and funding criteria, and other non-operating
costs such as debt service, renewal and replacement funding requirements, and general
fund transfers. The cost information will be compiled in a detailed manner such that costs
can be summarized and classified by utility function or service. This task will also include
the development of a forecast of revenues and income including utility rate revenues,
other operating revenues from miscellaneous service charges, and other income such as
interest income on fund balances. The forecast of utility rate revenue will be based on
applying the existing rate schedules to the customer and sales forecast and detailed profile
of water and wastewater billing determinants developed in task 3. The final step in this
task will be to compare the projected revenues from existing rates with the projected
revenue requirements in order to estimate the adequacy of current rate levels. Based on
this summary of the adequacy of rates, Raftelis will recommend any overall water and
wastewater system rate adjustments and develop an appropriate cost recovery strategy n
conjunction with the City staff. This scope of work considers preparing no more than
three (3) cost recovery scenarios.

A-2



Desion of Water and Wastewater Capital Connection Charges — Based on the City’s CIP,
existing treatment plant capacity utilization, fixed asset records, and estimated
participation in the Polk County Regional Water Cooperative (PRWC), the cost of water
and wastewater system expansion to serve new growth will be identified. These growth-
related costs, along with level of service standards appropriate for each utility system, will
be used to develop proposed water and wastewater capital connection charges. This task
will also include developing a detailed capital connection charge comparison to evaluate
the proposed water and wastewater capital connection charges competitiveness with other
utility systems in the area.

Miscellaneous Service Charge Review — Raftelis will conduct a review of the City’s water and
wastewater miscellaneous service charges, deposits to ensure that all charges recover the
estimated cost of providing each service. Examples of miscellaneous charges include, but
are not limited to, turn-on/turn-off fees, late payment charges and fees, reconnect after
disconnecting for non-payment charges, meter test fees, and after hour service call
charges. This task will also consider whether the City needs to implement any new
miscellaneous service charges. Based on discussions with City staff, at the conclusion of
the Study, once miscellaneous charges have been adopted, Raftelis will work with City
management to coordinate an on-site staff workshop with customer service and field
operations personnel to review the implementation of the adopted ordinances.

Present Rate Study Results — Raftelis will attend one (1) on-site meeting to meet one-on-one
with City commissioners. Raftelis will also attend two public meetings (one initial
workshop and one public hearing) before the City Commission to present the results of
the water and wastewater system rate and capital connection charge study to the City.
Additional meetings will be held with City staff throughout the course of the study
including two (2) meetings to gather data and review preliminary study results and
alternatives, and one (1) staff workshop to review the implementation of the adopted
ordinances as discussed in task 8. A total of six (6) on-site meetings are included in this
scope of service; however, Raftelis will also take advantage of opportunities to host web-
based or Microsoft Teams meetings when available. This task will also include
preparation of a briefing document and report to summarize the study results.

-Remainder of this page intentionally left blank-

A-3



LIST OF DELIVERABLES

The deliverables to be provided in this engagement include the following items:

o Data Request

o Five Year Financial Forecast for the Water and Wastewater Systems
. Water and Wastewater Customer Billing Profile

. Proposed Water and Wastewater Rates

° Proposed Water and Wastewater Capital Connection Charges

° Proposed Miscellaneous Service Charge Adjustments

e  Water and Wastewater Rate and Capital Connection Charge Comparisons with Other
Jurisdictions

° Briefing Document to Summarize Water and Wastewater Rate Study
° Water and Wastewater Rate Study Report

ADDITIONAL SERVICES

During the course of the study, the City may request additional services from Raftelis.
Examples of such additional services would include additional meetings above and beyond the
six (6) on-site meetings identified in the scope of services. Other examples of additional services
include providing services relating to the issuance of new debt, meeting with third parties
regarding the derivation of the rates and fees, providing litigation support services in the event
of a challenge of the rates or fees, performance of capital connection charge negotiations and
the preparation of developer agreements for the payment of such capital connection charge
with potential large developments within the City limits, requests for updated financial, cost or
rate analyses or capital connection charge scenarios after substantial completion of the initial
work, and other related issues not contemplated in the above scope of services. No additional
services are contemplated at this time and such services will not be conducted until authorized
by the City and as mutually agreed upon between the City and Raftelis.



EXHIBIT B

POLK CITY, FLORIDA
UTILITY RATE AND CAPITAL CONNECTION CHARGE STUDY

WATER, SEWER, RECLAIMED WATER AND MISCELLANEOUS FEES — RATE
STUDY CONTRACT (Charlotte County Contract No. 2023000004)

B-1



CONTRACT NO. 2023000004
AGREEMENT BETWEEN CHARLOTTE COUNTY
and
RAFTELIS FINANCIAL CONSULTANTS, INC.
for
WATER, SEWER, RECLAIMED WATER
AND MISCELLANEOUS FEES - RATE STUDY

THIS AGREEMENT, is made and entered into by and between CHARLOTTE
COUNTY, a political subdivision of the State of Florida, 18500 Murdock Circle, Port
Charlotte, Florida 33948-1094, hereinafter referred to as the “County,” and RAFTELIS
FINANCIAL CONSULTANTS, INC., d/b/a RAFTELIS, 227 W. Trade Street, Suite 1400,
Charlotte, North Carolina 28202, hereinafter referred to as the “Consultant.”

WITNESSETH

WHEREAS, the County has determined that it is necessary to retain a Consultant to
provide professional services to provide financial management consulting and utility
rate-making services; and

WHEREAS, the Consultant has reviewed RFP No. 2023000004 required pursuant
to this Agreement and is qualified, willing and able to provide and perform all such
services in accordance with its terms.

WHEREAS, the County, through a selection process conducted in accordance with
the requirements of law and County policy, has determined that it would be in the best
interest of the County to award a contract to Consultant for the rendering of those
services described in the Scope of Services.

NOW, THEREFORE, the County and the Consultant, in consideration of the mutual
covenants contained herein, do agree as follows:

ARTICLE 1.
INCORPORATION OF DOCUMENTS

1.1. RFP No. 2023000004, consisting of pages 1 through and including 17, and the
Proposal submitted by Consultant dated January 5, 2023, all filed with the Clerk of the
Circuit Court of Charlotte County, Minutes Division, as RFP No. 2023000004, are

hereby specifically made part of this Agreement as if same had been set forth at length
herein.

1.2. In the event of any conflict between the documents constituting this
Agreement, the documents shall be given precedence in the following order:




Raftelis
Contract No. 2023000004
Water, Sewer, Reclaimed Water and Miscellaneous Fees — Rate Study

1) This Agreement;

2) Work Assignments;

3) RFP No. 2023000004;

4) The Proposal submitted by Consultant dated January 5, 2023.

ARTICLE 2,
REQUEST FOR SERVICES BY COUNTY

2.1. The County may, in its sole discretion, issue an authorization to Consultant to
provide professional services for a specific project under the terms of this Agreement
and in accordance with the procedures contained in RFP No. 2023000004 (hereinafter
“work assignment’, “specific project authorization” or “work authorization”) and any
subsequent addenda thereto. Each specific project authorization shall be in writing and
set forth: (1) the scope of services for the specific project; (2) an enumeration of the
deliverables for the specific project, if applicable; (3) the time for performance of
Consultant's services for the specific project; and (4) the basis and amount of
compensation for Consultant’s services for the specific project. Each work authorization
shall be subject to all the terms and conditions of this Agreement. Each work
authorization shall be in writing in the form of a “Work Assignment” using the form
attached hereto as Exhibit A. After approval by the County Purchasing Director,
County Administrator or Board of County Commissioners, whichever is applicable under
the provisions of RFP No. 2023000004, each Work Assignment shall become an
amendment to this Agreement.

ARTICLE 3
BASIC SERVICES

3.1. The basic services which shall be performed by Consultant under this
Agreement are financial management consulting services and utility rate-making
services for the utility department, as specified in Part Il of RFP No. 2023000004. The
Consultant shall provide current and future financial feasibility reports (3-year and 20-
year plans), revenue and expenditure analysis, and multi-scenario impact studies.
Tasks shall be performed by Consultant on an "as assigned" basis and may include, but
not be limited to, projects involving one or more of the following:

e Water, Sewer, Reclaimed Water and Miscellaneous Fees Ulility Rate and
Financial Feasibility Study

e Water, Sewer and Reclaimed Water Connection Fee Study

e Analysis of existing and proposed Water Supply Agreements, Interfocal
Agreements and Amendments

e Educational presentations of utility information to County personnel and Board
of County Commissioners

e Analysis of financial data related to the acquisition, expansion or disposal of any
water/sewer/reclaimed water within the utility service area




Raftelis
Contract No. 2023000004
Water, Sewer, Reclaimed Water and Miscellaneous Fees — Rate Study

o Requests for updated analyses or additional financial or cost of service
scenarios after substantial completion of the initial work or on proposed projects

o Information and analysis required relating to debt issuance and bond coverage,
and service of senior debt

o Provide comparisons of current and projected water and sewer costs
(operational, capital improvement, bonded debt) against appropriate industry
benchmarks

e Analysis of impact to all rates based on future expansions of service

o Assistance with State Revolving Fund (SRF), US Department of Agriculture
(USDA) loan or grant funding applications and repayment options

o Assistance with establishing, operating or realigning various Fund Accounts in
order to streamline accounting with Renewal and Replacement (R&R)
programs, Capitol Improvement Programs (CIP), and such

¢ The delivery of non-proprietary multi-scenario modeling software as a
deliverable at a milestone to be determined

e General assistance with other methods of charging various fees and charges,
evaluation of funding scenarios, and other related needs.

3.2. Consultant will provide the Department a monthly status report that identifies
all outstanding projects, Consultant's progress, future plans and outstanding issues.
The Status Report shall address each specific work assignment. It is understood by
both parties that this list of services is by no means inclusive; County may require
additional consulting services not listed therein to be performed by Consultant in
accordance with the terms and conditions of this contract. A detailed scope of services
for a specific project shall accompany the Work Assignment for the project.

3.3. Consultant shall be responsible for knowledge of and compliance with all
applicable federal, state and local laws, rules, practices and regulations. Consultant
must be able to conclusively demonstrate its professional ability to represent the County
before any and all regulatory agencies and County departments as necessary.

3.4. Consultant shall have an office staffed with professional technical personnel to
prepare, assemble, and present reports to the County. These reports will include items
such as preliminary analysis and progress.

3.5. No guarantee is expressed or implied as to the quantity of services, if any, to
be procured under RFP No. 2023000004 or any addenda thereto, by Charlotte County.

3.8. The County, at its sole discretion, may expand the scope of work to include
additional requirements which shall require an equitable adjustment to the schedule and
compensation of Consultant. The County reserves the right to investigate as it deems
necessary to determine the ability of Consultant to perform the work or services
requested. Information the County deems necessary in order to make a determination
shall be provided by Consultant upon request.




Raftelis
Contract No. 2023000004
Water, Sewer, Reclaimed Water and Miscellaneous Fees — Rate Study

3.7. Consultant shall perform any services described in a Work Assignment issued
to Consultant by the County.

3.8. Consultant agrees to meet with County at reasonable times and with
reasonable notice.

3.9. Consultant agrees to perform such duties and responsibilities, and accepts
such authority, as set forth in a Work Assignment issued by the County to Consultant
and further agrees to perform any services in the time allowed for performance in a
Work Assignment issued by the County to Consultant.

ARTICLE 4.
COMPENSATION AND PAYMENT OF CONSULTANT'S SERVICES

4.1. The amount and basis of compensation, whether it be lump sum, not-to-
exceed, or some other basis, for Consultant's services on any specific project shall be
determined during negotiations for that specific project, as provided in RFP No.
2023000004 and any subsequent addenda. The amount and basis of compensation
shall be contained in the Work Assignment and calculated based upon the rate
schedule attached hereto as Exhibit B.

4.2, Consultant shall submit all billings for payment of services rendered on a
monthly basis to the County Purchasing Division. Billings shall be detailed as to the
nature of the services performed and shall refer to the specific tasks listed in the Scope
of Services that were actually performed by Consultant. Billings shall include a
summary of any amounts previously billed and any credits for amounts previously paid.

4.3. Consultant acknowledges that each billing must be reviewed and approved by
the County Director of Budget and Administrative Services or his or her designee.
Should the County Director of Budget and Administrative Services or his or her
designee, determine that the billing is not commensurate with services performed, work
accomplished or hours expended, Consultant shall adjust billing accordingly. However,
Consultant shall be entitled to payment of any portion of a billing not in dispute.

4.4. Payment for services rendered by Consultant on a lump sum basis shall be
made on a monthly basis in proportion to the percentage of services completed.
Percentage of services completed shall be subject to review and approval of County.

4.5. Payment for services rendered by Consultant on an hourly, not-to-exceed
basis shall be made monthly based on actual hours spent, multiplied by appropriate

hourly rates. Hours of service performed shall be subject to review and approval of
County.

4.6. County shall pay Consultant's monthly billings in accordance with Sections
218.70 through 218.80 Florida Statutes, the Local Government Prompt Payment Act.




Raftelis
Contract No. 2023000004
Water, Sewer, Reclaimed Water and Miscellaneous Fees - Rate Study

ARTICLE 5.
CONSULTANT’S RESPONSIBILITIES

5.1. Consultant shall perform or furnish consulting and related services to a level of
technical skill, ability, and diligence customarily provided by an experienced
professional in his or her field of expertise at the time and place the services are
performed when rendering the same services, and in accordance with sound principles
and practices generally acknowledged by professionals in his or her field of expertise,
as represented to the County, both orally and in writing, to be possessed by Consultant,
all in accordance with the standards contained elsewhere in this Agreement and in
accordance with generally accepted standards of professional consuiting practice
prevailing at the time and place the services are performed and with the laws, statutes,
ordinances, codes, rules and regulations governing Consultant's profession. The same
standards of care shall be required of any subconsultant or subcontractor engaged by
Consultant.

5.2. Consultant shall, without additional compensation, correct and revise any
errors, omissions, or other deficiencies in its work product, services, or materials arising
from the negligent act, error or omission of Consultant or any subconsultant or
subcontractor engaged by Consultant for one year after the completion of Consultant's
services under this Agreement. The foregoing shall be construed as an independent
duty to correct rather than a waiver of County's rights under any applicable statute of
limitations. County review of, approval of, acceptance of, or payment for any of
Consultant's work product, services, or materials shall not be construed to operate as a
waiver of any of County's rights under this Agreement, or cause of action County may
have arising out of the performance of this Agreement.

ARTICLE 6.
OWNERSHIP AND USE OF DOCUMENTS

6.1. All deliverables prepared in accordance with Consultant's services under this
Agreement shall become the property of, and shall be delivered to, County. However,
any use subsequent to or other than for the specific project for which such items were
created, shall be at sole risk of County. Nothing contained herein shall be deemed a
transfer, assignment or divestiture by Consultant of its trade secrets, know-how or
intellectual property.

6.2. Consultant agrees that any software, computer systems and databases used
for providing the documents necessary to this Agreement shall be compatible with
existing County software and systems.

ARTICLE 7.
COUNTY’S RESPONSIBILITIES

7.1. County shall perform the responsibilities contained in this Article 7 in a timely
manner so as not to delay the services of Consultant.




Raftelis
Contract No. 2023000004
Water, Sewer, Reclaimed Water and Miscellaneous Fees — Rate Study

7.2. County shall furnish to Consultant, upon request of Consultant and at County
expense, all existing studies, reports and other available data pertinent to the services
to be performed under this Agreement which are within the County's possession.
However, Consultant shall be required to evaluate all materials furnished hereunder
using reasonable professional judgment before relying on such materials.

7.3. County shall provide reasonable access and entry to all public property
required by Consultant to perform the services described in this Agreement. All such
access and entry shall be provided at County expense. County shall also use
reasonable efforts to obtain permission for reasonable access and entry to any private
property required by Consultant to perform the services described in this Agreement.

ARTICLE 8.
TERM / TERMINATION

8.1. The term of this Agreement shall be for the period commencing on the date
this Agreement is executed by both parties, and up to and including September 30,
2028, with an option to renew for two (2) additional one- (1) year terms, at the same
terms and conditions, with the mutual consent of the parties.

8.2. This Agreement, or any specific project authorized under this Agreement, may
be terminated by County, with or without cause, by written notice to Consultant of the
intent to terminate. Such termination shall be effective fourteen (14) days after receipt
by Consultant of such written notice of intent to terminate. However, no termination for
cause will be effective unless Consultant is first given ten (10) calendar days after
receipt of notice of intent to terminate in which to cure the cause for termination.

8.3. In the event that the Consultant has abandoned performance under this
Agreement, then the County may terminate this Agreement upon three (3) calendar
day's written notice to the Consultant indicating its intention to terminate. The written
notice shall state the evidence indicating the Consultant's abandonment. Payment for

services performed prior to the Consultant's abandonment shall be as stated Section 3
above.

8.4. In the event of termination, Consultant shall be entitled to compensation for
services rendered and costs incurred through the effective date. of termination. All
finished or unfinished documents, data, studies, surveys, drawings, maps, models,
photographs, and reports, prepared by Consultant shall become the property of County

and shall be delivered by Consultant to County immediately upon the effective date of
termination.




Raftelis
Contract No. 2023000004
Water, Sewer, Reclaimed Water and Miscellaneous Fees — Rate Study

ARTICLE 9.
NOTICES

9.1. Any notice required or permitted to be sent hereunder shall be sent certified
mail, return receipt requested to the parties at the addresses listed below:

CONSULTANT: COUNTY:
Raftelis Purchasing Division
Name: Murray Hamilton, Vice President Name: Kim Corbett, Sr. Div. Manager
Address: 341 N. Maitland Avenue, Suite 300 Address: 18500 Murdock Circle, Ste. 344
Maitland, FL 32751 Port Charlotte, FL 33948
ARTICLE 10.
NO CONTINGENT FEES

10.1. Consultant certifies that it has not employed or retained any company or
person, other than a bona fide employee working solely for Consuitant to solicit or
secure this Agreement and that it has not paid or agreed to pay any person, company,
corporation, individual or firm, other than a bona fide employee working solely for
Consultant any fee, commission, percentage, gift or other consideration contingent upon
or resulting from the award or making of this Agreement. For the breach or violation of
this provision, County shall have the right to terminate the Agreement without liability at
its discretion, to deduct from the contract price, or otherwise recover, the full amount of
such fee, commission, percentage, gift or consideration.

ARTICLE 11.
TRUTH-IN-NEGOTIATION CERTIFICATE

11.1. In accordance with Section 287.055 Florida Statutes and Charlotte County
Resolution 2003-059, signature of this Agreement by Consultant shall act as the
execution of a truth-in-negotiation certificate stating that wage rates and other factual
unit costs supporting the compensation of this Agreement are accurate, complete, and
current at the time of contracting. The original contract price and any additions thereto
shall be adjusted to exclude any significant sums by which County determines the
contract price was increased due to inaccurate, incomplete, or noncurrent wage rates
and other factual unit costs. All such contract adjustments shall be made within one (1)
year following the end of this Agreement.

ARTICLE 12.
ASSIGNMENT

12.1. This Agreement, or any interest herein, shall not be assigned, transferred or
otherwise encumbered, under any circumstances by Consultant without the prior written
consent of County. Further, no portion of this Agreement may be performed by




Raftelis
Contract No. 2023000004
Water, Sewer, Reclaimed Water and Miscellaneous Fees - Rate Study

subcontractors or subconsultants without written notice to and approval of such action
by County.

ARTICLE 13.
EXTENT OF AGREEMENT / SEVERABILITY / MODIFICATION

13.1. This Agreement represents the entire and integrated agreement between the
County and Consultant and supersedes all prior negotiations, representations or
agreement, either written or oral.

13.2. In the event any provision of this Agreement shall be held invalid and
unenforceable, the remaining provisions shall be valid and binding upon the parties.
One or more waivers by either party of any breach of any provision, term, condition or
covenant shall not be construed by the other party as a waiver of any subsequent
breach.

13.3. No modification, amendment or alteration in the terms or conditions contained
herein shall be effective unless contained in a written document executed by both
parties.

13.4. This is a nonexclusive contract. The County has the right to enter into
contracts with other consultants for providing professional services.

ARTICLE 14.
GOVERNING LAW / VENUE

14.1. This Agreement shall be governed and construed in accordance with Florida
law. In the event any litigation arises between the parties in connection with this
Agreement, venue for such litigation shall lie exclusively in or for Charlotte County,
Florida.

ARTICLE 15.
INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR STATUS

15.1. Consultant is an independent contractor and is ndt an employee, servant,
agent, partner or joint venturer of the County.

Neither the County nor any of its employees shall have any control over the conduct
of Consultant or any of Consultant's employees, except as herein set forth, and
Consultant expressly warrants not to represent at any time or in any manner that
Consultant or any of Consultant's agents, servants or employees are in any manner
agents, servants or employees of the County. It is understood and agreed that
Consultant is, and shall at all times remain as to the County, a wholly independent
contractor and that Consultant's obligations to the County are solely as prescribed by
this Agreement.




Raftelis
Contract No. 2023000004
Water, Sewer, Reclaimed Water and Miscellaneous Fees — Rate Study

ARTICLE 16.
AUDIT REQUIREMENTS

16.1. Consultant shall maintain books, records, documents, and other evidence
directly pertaining to or connected with the services under this Agreement which shall
be available and accessible at Consultant's offices for the purpose of inspection, audit,
and copying during normal business hours by the County, or any of its authorized
representatives. Such records shall be retained for a minimum of five (5) years after
completion of the services. If any litigation, claim or audit is commenced prior to the
expiration of the five (5) year period, the records shall be maintained until all litigation,
claims or audit findings involving the records have been resolved.

16.2 Consultant shall require all subcontractors to comply with the provisions of this
paragraph by insertion of the requirements hereof in a written contract agreement
between Consultant and the subcontractor.

ARTICLE 17.
INDEMNIFICATION

17.1. Consultant shall indemnify and hold harmiess County, and its officers and
employees, from liabilities, damages, losses, and costs, including, but not limited to,
reasonable attorneys' fees, to the extent caused by the negligence, recklessness, or
intentionally wrongful conduct of Consultant and other persons employed or utilized by
Consultant in the performance of services under this Agreement.

ARTICLE 18.
PUBLIC RECORDS

18.1. Pursuant to Section 119.0701 of the Florida Statutes, Contractors acting on
behalf of the County must comply with the public records laws, specifically: a) keep and
maintain public records required by the County to perform the contracted services; b)
upon request from the County's custodian of public records, provide the County with a
copy of the requested records or allow the records to be inspected or copied within a
reasonable time at a cost that does not exceed the cost provided in Chapter 119 of the
Florida Statutes or as otherwise provided by law; ¢) ensure that public records that are
exempt or confidential from public records disclosure requirements are not disclosed
except as authorized by law for the duration of the contract term and following
completion of the contract; and d) upon completion of the contract, keep and maintain
all public records required by the County to perform the service, and meet all applicable
requirements for retaining public records.

IF THE CONTRACTOR HAS QUESTIONS REGARDING THE
APPLICATION OF CHAPTER 119, FLORIDA STATUTES TO THE
CONTRACTOR’S DUTY TO RETAIN AND PROVIDE PUBLIC RECORDS
RELATING TO THIS CONTRACT, THE CONTRATOR SHOULD




Raftelis
Contract No. 2023000004
Water, Sewer, Reclaimed Water and Miscellaneous Fees — Rate Study

CONTACT THE COUNTY’S CUSTODIAN OF PUBLIC RECORDS AT
(941) 743-1441, E-MAIL TO RECORDS@CHARLOTTECOUNTYFL.GOV,
18500 MURDOCK CIRCLE, BLDG. B, Suite 109, PORT CHARLOTTE,
FLORIDA 33948.

ARTICLE 19.
EMPLOYEE RESTRICTIONS

19.1. Charlotte County will not intentionally award publicly-funded contracts to any
contractor who knowingly employs unauthorized alien workers, constituting a violation of
the employment provisions contains in 8 U.S.C. Section 1324a [Section 274A of the
Immigration and Nationality Act (“INA")]. The County shall consider employment by the
Consultant of unauthorized aliens a violation of Section 274A of the INA. Such violation
by the Consultant of the employment provisions contained in Section 274A of the INA
shall be grounds for termination of this Agreement by the County.

19.2. Pursuant to Section 448.095 of the Florida Statutes, all persons or firms
entering into contracts with Charlotte County are required to register with, and use, the
E-Verify system of the U.S. Department of Homeland Security to electronically verify the
employment eligibility of all newly hired employees. The County may terminate this
Agreement for failure on the part of the Contractor to use E-Verify. Contract termination
for failure to use E-Verify is not considered a breach of contract pursuant to s.
448.095(2)(c)3, Fla. Stat.

ARTICLE 20.
SCRUTINIZED VENDORS

20.1. Pursuant to Section 287.135(3)(b) of the Florida Statutes, Charlotte County
may, at its sole option, terminate this Agreement if the Consultant is found to have been
placed on the Scrutinized Companies that Boycott Israel List, or is engaged in a boycott
of Israel.

REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

10




Raftelis
Contract No. 2023000004

Water, Sewer, Reclaimed Water and Miscellaneous Fees — Rate Study

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Contract as of the

date and year written below.

WITNESSES:

Signed By: %9{ W
Print Name: L %ﬁ'ﬂ/

Date: /MQ'/\/ ri 0’100’45

ATTEST:

Roger D. Eaton, Clerk of Circuit
Court and Ex-officio Clerk to the
Board of County Commissioners

B@mﬂﬂm
Deputy CI@

Exhibit List:
Exhibit A — Work Assignment — Sample Form
Exhibit B — Rates Schedule

RAFTELIS

Signed by: N bb%‘
Print Name: N\‘m) Haw H“v" T .
Title: Vm et "meclc

Date: slzz (2023

......
vvvvv

BOARD OF coum*s@é fMISSIONERS
OF CHARLOTT%@\OUNH Fugalm

Q<

Daté374 )L ?@ oGk
~F A

APPROVED AS TO FORM
AND LEGAL SUFFICIENCY

Clonrigd

Janette S. Kn , County Attorney
LR 23-0290
v,

By:

11



WORK ASSIGNMENT
CHARLOTTE COUNTY PURCHASING DIVISION
CONTRACT NO. 2023000004

WATER, SEWER, RECLAIMED WATER AND MISCELLANEOUS FEES - RATE STUDY

“TH|S WORK ASSIGNMENT**
1. | Work Assignment #

Short Title

Date Submitted

Amount ”!H“'

oAl I I

Scheduled Completion l“

Hf

““mil ilms
l ”lll“ [ﬂ”“

Ml L
Unless detailed herein, all drawings, data, electronic files & ow ln r tlonlrequired for ihs\N k Assignment has been
accepted by Consultant. Specifically, all electronic files have|peen reviei éd and’ ElCt]‘. ted fi lthe purposes of this Work
Assignment. Unless specified herein, additional |nfor ation w;[l Wot be re ’,nred r !“ 'T

l

BY: Nameo oliisb} =~ !Flrrhl( pe/Print)
*'l”l““lm, T Ty,

U
In presenting this Work Assignment, Consultant agrees that: I' ”“ |

SUBMITTED AND AGREED TO BY: "“H“ l

||:1 E”!1
]l! 81ghf,[ ||| |[”]

[J
'lnllq th‘DATE t“h ’ H I

m | "Hn,l v
||1 i *|||“,‘

[ |H|lh

RECOMMENDE‘ {mn APPROVED *1[

FISCAL REVIEWED|BY1:-N||“““[“11 [[

CHARLOTTE COUNTY (D EF’ARTM ENTIDIVISION)

CHARLOTTE COUNTY PURC”ﬁﬂL”

CHARLOTTE COUNTY ADMINISTRATION:

APPROVED by the COUNTY Administrative Agent, the day of y20__.

-

= I EXHIBIT A =




Exhibit “B”

Raftelis Financial Consultants, Inc.

2023 Standard Hourly Billing Rates

Position Hourly Billing Rate *
Executive Vice President $325
Vice President $300
Senior Manager $275
Manager $245
Senior Consultant $200
Consultant $180
Associate $155
Administration $95

* These rates will be in effect for calendar year 2023 and will then increase annually by
3% unless specified otherwise by contract.



EXHIBIT C
CITY OF POLK CITY, FLORIDA

D CAPITAL CONNECTION CHARGE STUDY

Line Task Vice Senior Associate
No. Ref. [1 President Consultant Consultant Administrative Totals
Direct Labor Rates $ 30000 3 200.00 § 15500 § 95.00
1 Kick-off Meeting (virtual meeting) 1 2 2 - - 4
2 Data Acquisition, Compilation and Review 1 1 4 8 - 13
3 Identification of Fiscal Policies and Objectives 2 2 2 - - 4
4 Compilation of Historical Customer Billing Information 3 2 4 8 - 14
5 Development of Customer Usage Forecast and Billing Frequency 3 2 12 16 - 30
6 Development of Water and Wastewater Customer Billing Profile 4 2 10 20 - 32
7 Review of Capital Improvements Program 5 2 8 8 - 18
Development of Revenue Requirements and Analysis
8 Development of Revenue Projections from Existing Rates 6 [ 4 8 - 13
9 Development of Operating Expense Projections 6 1 4 4 - 9
10 Development of Capital [mprovement Funding Analysis 6 2 4 8 - 14
11 Flow of Funds Analysis and Interest [ncome Determination 6 1 4 4 - 9
12 Development of Net Revenue Requirements and Rate Impact Analyses 6 2 4 4 - 10
13 Rate Covenant / Fiscal Policy Compliance Analysis 6 2 4 4 - 10
14 Design of Water and Wastewater Connection Fees 7 8 20 40 - 68
15 Review of Miscellaneous Charges for Ancillary Services 8 4 16 24 - 44
16 Staff Workshop to Review Adopted Ordinance 8 4 4 - - 8
17 Preparation of Rate Study Report 9 4 8 10 10 32
18 Preparation of Public Hearing Presentation Documentation 9 2 6 2 - 10
19  Staff Meetings to Review Study Progress (two on-site meetings) 9 10 10 - - 20
20 One-on-ones with City Commissioners (one on-site meeting) 9 6 6 - - 12
21 Present Results at City Commission (two on-site meetings) 9 8 8 - - 16
22 Project Management All 4 - - - 4
23 Total Hours 72 144 168 10 394
24 Direct Labor Cost S 21,600 § 28800 S 26,040 $ 950 § 77,390
25 Average Hourly Rate $ 196.42
Other Direct Costs
26 Mileage @ $0.67 Per Mile - 100 Miles Roundtrip; 6 Trips S 402
27 Miscellaneous / Rounding 8
28 Total Other Direct Costs $ 410
29 Total Estimated Project Cost $ 77,800

Footnotes
[1] Please reference Exhibit A - Scope of Services for description of tasks to be performed by Raftelis.




City Commission Meeting
April 16, 2024

AGENDA ITEM #5: Polk County Library Cooperative Interlocal Agreement with Polk City

____INFORMATION ONLY
X__ACTION REQUESTED

ISSUE:

Requesting a vote by the City Commission to approve the Interlocal Agreement between the Suzette
Penton Polk City Community Library and the Polk County Library Cooperative.

ATTACHMENT:

Interlocal Agreement

ANALYSIS:

This Agreement continues the Polk County Library Cooperative, which was formed on October 1, 1997,
through an Interlocal Agreement between the Board of County Commissioners (BoCC) and the thirteen
(13) municipalities with Public Libraries in Polk County: Auburndale, Bartow, Dundee, Eagle Lake, Fort
Meade, Frostproof, Haines City, Lake Alfred, Lake Wales, Lakeland, Mulberry, Polk City, and Winter
Haven. Subsequently, the Agreement has been reviewed and renewed to continue the delivery of
seamless countywide public library services.

Membership in the Cooperative gives a Municipal Library access to hundreds of thousands of resources
for their patrons, automatic membership in the Tampa Bay Library Consortium (for continuing education
and vendor discounts); delivery between libraries, Books by Mail, a State-of-the-Art Library Automation
System that includes mobile applications, all e-rate forms filed on your behalf, State and Federal Grants,
Professional Development, and so much more!

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

Approve the Interlocal Agreement between the Polk County Library Cooperative and Polk City.



POLK COUNTY LIBRARY COOPERATIVE
INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT 2024

This Agreement is entered into this ____day of by Polk County, a
political subdivision of the State of Florida, hereinafter referred to as the County, and the
municipalities of Auburndale, Bartow, Dundee, Eagle Lake, Fort Meade, Frostproof,
Haines City, Lake Alfred, Lakeland, Lake Wales, Mulberry, Polk City, and Winter Haven,
hereinafter referred to as "participating municipalities".

WHEREAS, Section 163.01, Florida Statutes (2023) the Florida Interlocal Cooperation
Act of 1969, permits local governmental units to make the most efficient use of their
powers by enabling them to cooperate with other localities on a basis of mutual
advantage; and

WHEREAS, both the County and participating municipalities are public agencies within
the meaning of Chapter 163.01, Florida Statutes (2023); and

WHEREAS, Section 163.01(4), Florida Statutes (2023) provides that a public agency of
this state may exercise jointly with any other public agency of the state any power,
privilege, or authority which such agencies share in common and which each might
exercise separately; and

WHEREAS, Section 125.01(f), Florida Statutes (2023) authorizes the County to provide
libraries and cultural facilities and programs; and

WHEREAS, Section 166.021(1), Florida Statutes (2023), authorizes municipalities to
render municipal services and exercise power for municipal services, except when
expressly prohibited by law; and

WHEREAS, the County and participating municipalities desire to cooperate in a
countywide agreement to provide library services without charge to all persons residing
in Polk County, including residents of the unincorporated areas and those incorporated
areas not served by a public library; and

WHEREAS, the County as an eligible political subdivision under Section 257.17, Florida
Statutes (2023), may participate in the State Aid to Libraries Program; and

WHEREAS, the County enacted Ordinance 07-18, the Polk County Amended, Restated
and Consolidated Comprehensive Impact Fee Ordinance, as amended, which in part
provides for the funding of library capital improvements required by growth within Polk
County; and



Passed by Library Cooperative Governing Board on March 13, 2024
WHEREAS, the County enacted Ordinance 05-025, the Polk County Library MSTU
Ordinance to levy ad valorem taxes within the unincorporated area of Polk County to fund
new libraries, and, to the extent that it is demonstrated that such facilities benefit and are
used by the residents of the unincorporated area of Polk County, existing and future
library facilities operated by the Polk County Library Cooperative and its members.

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the promises and mutual covenants hereinafter
contained, the parties do agree as follows:

1. PURPOSE
The County and participating municipalities agree to cooperate, pursuant to the
terms of this interlocal agreement, in the operation of a cooperative countywide
library system in Polk County to provide library services without charge to all
persons who are residents of Polk County.

In particular, it is the express purpose of the agreement to provide for the
coordination of library service throughout the service area of the County and all
participating entities, to provide for equal access to free public library service to all
residents in Polk County, and to formulate and implement consistent plans,
programs, policies, and procedures in the operation, maintenance and
development of library service throughout the service area of the participating
entities. The Board of County Commissioners shall have the authority to
administer this Agreement and is empowered to take collective action as directed
by the Library Cooperative Governing Board (hereafter governing board) as is
reasonable or appropriate to achieve the purposes as set forth herein.

2: DEFINITIONS

1. Resident shall mean any individual who either owns real property or
resides in Polk County on a permanent basis or as established by the
Governing Board.

2. County shall mean Polk County, a political subdivision of the State of
Florida.

3. Auburndale shall mean the City of Auburndale, a legal entity established
for local governmental purposes and the location of the Auburndale
Public Library.

4. Bartow shall mean the City of Bartow, a legal entity established for local
governmental purposes and the locations of the Bartow Public Library,
Polk County Historical & Genealogical Library and the Polk County Law
Library.

5. Dundee shall mean the Town of Dundee, a legal entity established for
local governmental purposes and the location of the Dundee Public
Library.

6. Eagle Lake shall mean the City of Eagle Lake, a legal entity established
for local governmental purposes and the location of the Eagle Lake

2



Passed by Library Cooperative Governing Board on March 13, 2024
Public Library.

7. Fort Meade shall mean the City of Fort Meade, a legal entity established
for local governmental purposes, and the location of the Fort Meade
Public Library.

8. Frostproof shall mean the City of Frostproof, a legal entity established
for local governmental purposes and the location of the Latt Maxcy
Memorial Library.

9. Haines City shall mean the City of Haines City, a legal entity established
for local governmental purposes and the location of the Haines City
Public Library.

10. Lake Alfred shall mean the City of Lake Alfred, a legal entity established
for local governmental purposes and the location of the Lake Alfred
Public Library.

11.Lake Wales shall mean the City of Lake Wales, a legal entity established
for local governmental purposes and the location of the Lake Wales
Public Library.

12.Lakeland shall mean the City of Lakeland, a legal entity established for
local governmental purposes and the locations of the Lakeland Public
Library, Larry R. Jackson Branch Library and the Kelly Branch Library.

13.Mulberry shall mean the City of Mulberry, a legal entity established for
local governmental purposes and the location of the Mulberry Public
Library.

14.Polk City shall mean the City of Polk City, a legal entity established for
local governmental purposes and the location of the Suzette Penton
Polk City Community Library.

15.Winter Haven shall mean the City of Winter Haven, a legal entity
established for local governmental purposes and the location of the
Winter Haven Public Library, Kathryn L. Smith Memorial.

16.Cooperative shall mean the Polk County Library Cooperative, a public
library system operated by a governing body designated by one or more
participating local governments and/or entities to administer through a
single administrative head, the common services for a group of libraries
supported by those participating local governments and/or entities that
have joined together by formal agreements to provide services across
their combined service areas.

17.Single administrative head (Cooperative Coordinator) shall mean the
central administrator of the Polk County Library Cooperative who
administers, manages, and coordinates Cooperative activities and who,
at a minimum, meets the requirements for a Cooperative Coordinator as
described at Section 9, herein.

18.Governing Board shall mean the governing body of the Polk County
Library Cooperative as empowered pursuant to this Agreement.

19. Service area shall mean all of Polk County.

20. Participating Library shall mean any of the libraries located within Polk
County that have entered into this agreement.

3



Passed by Library Cooperative Governing Board on March 13, 2024

21.Polk County is a political subdivision of the State of Florida and is
authorized to participate in the State Aid to Libraries Program and
operates the Polk County Genealogical Library and the Justice Steven
H. Grimes Law Library.

22.Circulation — shall mean all library materials that are borrowed for use
outside the library, including digital books and media.

23. Capital — shall mean money expended for purchase or construction of
a library building or library quarters (ie: bricks and mortar, land (purchase
or value of); and utility infrastructure). Capital shall not include shelving,
furniture, or replacement of carpet.

24.BOCC - shall mean the “Board of County Commissioners” of Polk
County

25.MSTU- shall mean the “Municipal Services Taxing Unit” enacted by the
BOCC in the unincorporated areas of the county for public library
services beginning with FY 2005-2006, the funds from which may be
used for existing and future library facilities, collections and programs to
the extent that it is demonstrated that such facilities benefit and are used
by residents of the unincorporated area of Polk County.

26.Impact Fee — shall mean the library impact fee enacted by the BOCC for
public library capital projects required by growth.

3. AGREEMENT

This Agreement shall constitute the entire agreement of parties hereto and of the
Polk County Library Cooperative. There are no promises, representations, or
warranties other than those set forth herein. This Agreement shall be binding upon
the parties and successors in interest in accordance with its terms. No modification
or amendment of the Agreement shall be binding unless in writing approved by
each of the governing boards of the participating libraries and by the Cooperative
Governing Board, and executed on behalf of each of the participating libraries and
the Cooperative Governing Board.

4, TERM

The term of this Agreement shall be 10 years, beginning on October 1, 2024 and
shall automatically renew for additional 10 year terms, however any party hereto
may terminate their participation in this Agreement as provided herein. The parties
hereto agree to meet at the request of any member party to review the provisions
of this agreement at least one hundred and twenty (120) days prior to October ik
of each year in order to consider such modifications as the parties may desire for
the subsequent year.

5. WITHDRAWAL OR TERMINATION

Any participating party may withdraw from the Cooperative established by this
Agreement and thereby terminate its rights and responsibilities under this
Agreement. Written notice of the withdrawal and termination shall be given to the
Governing Board 60 days prior to the effective date. Any funds received by the
withdrawing party will be pro-rated to the termination date and a refund will be



Passed by Library Cooperative Governing Board on March 13, 2024
made by the withdrawing party to the Cooperative. Distribution of the refund will
be made to the remaining cities in accordance with the funding formula.

6. DISPENSATION OF PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Upon withdrawal or termination of the Agreement by any participating party
(whether by termination or otherwise), all real property and equipment valued at
the amount established by applicable law and regulations and purchased by the
Cooperative with State, County or Federal funds (except State Construction Grant
Funds), shall be retained by the Polk County Library Cooperative.

If the Cooperative ceases to exist, the abovementioned real property and
equipment shall revert to the Florida Department of State, Division of Library and
Information Services (State Library of Florida). All disposition of real property and
equipment shall be in accordance with applicable state law and regulations.

Materials, furniture and equipment purchased with local funds or grants procured
by the municipality or county, whether funds of a municipality, non-profit entity, or
the county, shall remain the property of the participating library for which they were
purchased. Disposition of the real property shall be the responsibility of the owning
entity.

A terminating library will be able to purchase a copy of its MARC (Machine
Readable Catalog) records in its current format at the time of termination for a fee
covering the cost of extraction. If the terminating library requests its records to be
expunged from the Cooperative database, it will be done at the terminating library's
expense, with vendor approval from the Governing Board.

If the terminating library requests to continue using the Cooperative database and
automation software, it will be reviewed by the Cooperative Governing Board and
done at the terminating library's expense.

In the event that the terminating library serves as the host library for the automation
networking equipment and software, the Governing Board will approve another
host city or site.

7. ADDITION OF NEW MEMBERS

NEW MEMBERS: Any publicly owned and operated library within Polk County
which is not a participating library may become a party to this Agreement and a
member of the Polk County Library Cooperative upon the approval by a majority
vote of the Governing Board and upon execution and delivery of a counterpart
original of the Agreement (as then in force). The above and the following conditions

must be satisfied by new members prior to April 1% of a given calendar year: 1)
Agree to provide library services to all Polk County residents free of charge, 2)

5



Passed by Library Cooperative Governing Board on March 13, 2024
Agree to provide services in accordance with the Cooperative's Long-Range Plan,
3) Agree to submit an Annual Library Budget to the Cooperative, 4) Agree to share
materials/resources with other member libraries, 5) Agree to remain open a
minimum of 40 hours per week, and 6) Agree to all other conditions as outlined in
the Interlocal Agreement

Upon satisfaction of these conditions, the proposed new member (participating
library) shall become a party to this Agreement and a member of the Polk County
Library Cooperative effective the next October 1, subject to all the provisions and
obligations, and entitled to all the privileges and rights of new members as
delineated in the Bylaws of the Governing Board.

8. GOVERNING BODY

The Governing Board of the Polk County Library Cooperative shall consist of one
representative appointed by each participating municipality, and one administrator
from County government appointed by the Board of County Commissioners. Each
participating municipality and the County shall also designate at least one; but no
more than two alternate representatives to act on its behalf during any absence.
The Governing Board shall elect a chair, vice-chair, and secretary each to serve a
two year term. The Governing Board shall appoint the Cooperative's single
administrative head (Cooperative Coordinator), adopt By-laws, set policy for and
manage operations of the Cooperative, including salaries of the Coordinator and
other staff, develop with the Cooperative Coordinator and approve the
Cooperative's budget and submit it to the Board of County Commissioners for
review and transmittal to the State Library of Florida, review and develop new
formulas for the disbursement of County funds, make decisions with the
Cooperative Coordinator on the use of state funds, which will be centrally
expended by the Cooperative for participating libraries for the benefit of residents
of the combined service area; make decisions with the Cooperative Coordinator
on the use of County funds including county Library MSTU and Impact Fee
revenues which will be expended pursuant to the provisions and limitations set out
in Polk County Ordinances creating the Library MSTU and levying the Library
Impact Fee; conduct public meetings, (no less often than quarterly), enter into and
sign contracts to benefit the Cooperative members, and appoint members of
committees and advisory boards as required to accomplish specific activities.

9. COOPERATIVE COORDINATOR

The Cooperative Coordinator shall be appointed by the Governing Board and shall
have the following minimum qualifications: a Master's Degree in library/information
science from a program accredited by the American Library Association, plus five
years of successful, full-time, paid library experience in a public library. The
Governing Board may establish any other qualifications for the Cooperative
Coordinator and shall set positions, salary structure and benefits for the
Coordinator and all direct staff of the Cooperative. The Cooperative Coordinator,

6



Passed by Library Cooperative Governing Board on March 13, 2024
under the supervision of the Governing Board, shall interview, select, supervise,
and recommend discharge of staff for the office of the Cooperative in accordance
with policies established by the Governing Board. All paid staff of the participating
libraries shall remain employees of the governing board that operates each library
and shall retain all rights, responsibilities and powers associated with employment
of staff. In the event the Coordinator is an employee of a participating municipality
the Coordinator's salary and other expenses of employment shall be reimbursed
by the Cooperative.

10. DUTIES OF THE COOPERATIVE COORDINATOR
Under the direction of the Governing Board, the duties of the Cooperative
Coordinator shall include, but are not limited to:

a. Maintaining information and submitting with approval of the Governing
Board and on behalf of the Cooperative and participating libraries
applications for available County, State and Federal library funds
and filing reports required by the Florida Department of State,
Division of Library and Information Services.

b. Preparing and presenting to the Governing Board for approval the
Cooperative's single Long Range Plan developed by the
Governing Board and the Coordinator.

c. Preparing and presenting to the Governing Board for approval the
Cooperative's annual operating and capital budgets and Annual
Plan of Service.

d. Recommending and coordinating the implementation of library program
opportunities for offering to the participating libraries.

e. Recommending and developing, with the approval of the Governing
Board cooperative projects as a method of cost reductions and
improved efficiency.

f. Planning for and developing centralized coordination, planning,
technical services, and automation programs for participating
libraries, as agreed to by the Governing Board.

11. LONG RANGE PLAN FOR LIBRARY SERVICES AND ANNUAL

PLAN AND BUDGET
In concert with the Governing Board, the Cooperative Coordinator shall coordinate
the development and implementation of a Long Range Plan for the operation,
maintenance, and development of the Cooperative and its participating libraries,
to be adopted by the Governing Board and maintained through a yearly update.

The Governing Bodies of the participating libraries shall continue to fund their local
libraries and are not required to make any payment to the Cooperative for
participating in the Cooperative. All authority with respect to participating library
funding of the Cooperative's Long Range Plan, the Annual Plan and any other
library program or expenditure from participating library's governing body shall lie

7



Passed by Library Cooperative Governing Board on March 13, 2024
solely with the participating municipality. In order to qualify for the maximum
amount of state aid, all expenditures made for participating libraries by the
participating municipalities shall be made in accordance with the Cooperative's
Long Range Plan and Annual Plan.

There shall be a single, combined annual Cooperative budget for library service in
Polk County. The budget shall be developed with a Fiscal Year ending September
30 of each year. The Cooperative's budget shall reflect the annual plan approved
by the Governing Board, shall be prepared by the Cooperative Coordinator, and
shall take into account funds received, budgeted for and expended by participating
libraries, and funds received from the County, State and Federal funds (except
State construction grants), and all other revenues received to provide library
service.

The budget shall be adopted by the Cooperative's Governing Board for submission
to the Board of County Commissioners. Nothing contained herein shall require
any participating municipality or Polk County on behalf of Polk County’s
Historical/Genealogical Library or Polk County’s Law Library to appropriate any
amount in excess of the Maintenance of Effort defined at Section 14, herein.

12. ACCEPTANCE OF GIFTS, GRANTS, FUNDS, OR BEQUESTS
The Governing Board, on behalf of the Cooperative, shall have the authority to
apply for or receive gifts, grants, funds, or bequests. All such monies, property or
funds received by the Cooperative shall be the property of the Cooperative, subject
to termination provisions set forth in this Agreement. All such monies, property or
funds received by municipalities or non-profit entities for the benefit of an individual
participating library shall remain the property of the participating library.

13. COOPERATIVE SYSTEM-WIDE AND CENTRALIZED

ACTIVITIES
An Annual Plan of Library Service for the Cooperative may offer system-wide and
centralized activities, such as centralized purchasing, centralized periodical
subscription service, centralized technical services, shared staff, and others to be
funded by one or a combination of:

a. The Cooperative's County funds including Library MSTU and Library
Impact fees designated in the Annual Budget.

The Cooperative's State funds designated in the Annual Budget.

Agreed-to portions of the Cooperative's County funds programmed to be
distributed to the participating libraries with the approval of the
participating libraries' governing bodies of those libraries that
choose to participate in any system-wide and/or centralized
activity.

Direct payment to the Cooperative by the governing bodies of

oo

a

8



Passed by Library Cooperative Governing Board on March 13, 2024
participating libraries that choose to participate in any system-
wide and/or centralized activity.

14. APPROPRIATION FOR PARTICIPATING MUNICIPALITIES

FUNDS:

There is reserved to the participating municipalities the sole and exclusive
discretion to determine the amount of annual appropriations from their own
revenues and sources for the provision of library services. Participating libraries,
including participating municipalities and the County, agree to a Maintenance of
Effort which will maintain actual operating and maintenance expenditures for public
library services, exclusive of short-term special funding, at that level of at least the
lesser amount expended from the same purpose in either of the two fiscal years
preceding the annual appropriation being considered, such that funds provided
under this Agreement shall not be construed to be a substitute for city funds
allocated for the support of public library services to the residents of the city or
county. Participating municipalities who cannot meet this condition because of
extenuating budget circumstances in a specific fiscal year may request a
Maintenance of Effort Waiver for that specific fiscal year according to procedures
established by the Cooperative's Governing Board and codified in the By-Laws
adopted by the Governing Board.

15. APPROPRIATION AND ALLOCATION OF POLK COUNTY
FUNDS FOR PARTICIPATING LIBRARIES

For the duration of this Agreement, County funds allocated for the support of the

Cooperative shall be distributed among participating publicly owned and operated

libraries according to the formulas found in Section 21 and Section 22.

1) Funding Formula — To the extent that it is demonstrated that the
Cooperative’s library system benefits and is used by residents of the
unincorporated area of Polk County, the County shall provide dedicated
funding from Library MSTU dollars to the Cooperative as provided for in
Section 21.

2) Distribution Formula — The County funds, including Library MSTU
dollars, allocated for the support of the Cooperative shall be distributed
among participating libraries in two payment installments by January 31
and April 15 pending necessary information is provided by cities
according to the formula in Section 22 with an annual review.

3) All County funds shall be spent by the participating libraries in
accordance with the Cooperative's Long Range Plan and Annual Plan
of Service and pursuant to the provisions and limitations set out in Polk
County Ordinances creating the Library MSTU and levying the Library
Impact Fee

4) State Aid to Libraries Grant funds and County Library Impact Fee dollars
for capital projects required by growth shall be administered centrally

9



Passed by Library Cooperative Governing Board on March 13, 2024
and budgeted in accordance with the Long Range Plan and Annual Plan
of Service and expended by the Cooperative on behalf of libraries
services in Polk County.

5) The Cooperative Governing Board will expend any County funding
provided for public library services in accordance with the Cooperative’s
long range plan and annual plan of service and the provisions and
limitations set out in Polk County Ordinances creating the Library MSTU
and levying the Library Impact Fee.

16. STATISTICAL REPORTS

Each month, by the 20t day, statistical reports in the format requested by the
Coordinator shall be submitted by all participating libraries to the Cooperative
Coordinator for the previous month. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the
Coordinator shall have the authority to adjust the reporting frequency to periods
which are more efficient and productive to the administration of the Cooperative.

17. RESPONSIBILITY OF THE COOPERATIVE

The Cooperative shall abide by the terms and provisions of laws of the State of
Florida and the provisions of this Agreement and other applicable Federal, State,
and or local laws, rules, and regulations.

18. ADDITIONAL RESPONSIBILITIES OF PARTICIPATING

GOVERNING BODIES
Participating governing bodies shall abide by all State and Federal laws, and
specifically those relating to the provision of library services. Participating
governing bodies shall retain local autonomy and control over the operations and
functions of its participating library, except where participating governing bodies
have ceded authority to the Cooperative's governing body through this Agreement
or amendments thereto.

19. MODIFICATION OF AGREEMENT

No modification, amendment, or alteration of the terms or conditions contained
herein shall be effective unless contained in a written document approved and
executed by the Cooperative's Governing Board and all parties hereto with the
same formality and of equal dignity herewith.

20. NOTICES

All notices, demands or other writings required to be given or made or sent in this
Agreement, or which may be given or made or sent, by either party or the other,
shall be deemed to have been fully given or made or sent when in writing and
addressed to the City Manager of the participating municipalities and the County
Manager for the Board of County Commissioners.

21. FUNDING FORMULA
10



Passed by Library Cooperative Governing Board on March 13, 2024
The County has provided a dedicated funding source (Library MSTU) which assists
in its commitment to more equitable funding in order to reach $23.60 operational
funding per capita as recommended by previous professional consultants hired by
the County.

22. DISTRIBUTION FORMULA

Each participating municipality shall be allocated a portion of all county dollars,
including the Library MSTU, to the extent that it is demonstrated that the
Cooperative’s library system benefits and is used by residents of the
unincorporated area of Polk County, based on this formula:

[10% of the municipality's current library budget (excluding capital as defined
herein) + (remaining funds for distribution X its library's % of circulation (as
compared to the entire Cooperative's circulation) for the most recent fiscal year)]
Any publicly owned and operated library open at least 40 hours a week will receive
at least $25,000. The minimum funding level has the opportunity to be increased
upon recommendation by the Governing Board and with a unanimous approval
vote of the Governing board.

Shown another way the formula looks like this:

A = Total County Funds

B = 10% of municipality's current library budget (excluding capital as
defined herein)

C = Sum of amount B for each location

D = A — C (remaining funds for distribution)

E = % of library's circulation (as compared to the entire Cooperative's

cumulative Circulation for the most recent fiscal
year)

Each municipality's allocation = B + (D*E), with the provision that any library open
at least 40 hours a week will receive at least $25,000. The minimum funding level
has the opportunity to be increased upon recommendation by the Governing Board
and with a unanimous approval vote of the Governing board.

ENTIRE AGREEMENT

This Agreement embodies the entire agreement between the parties. It may not
be modified or terminated except as provided herein. If any provision herein is
invalid it shall be considered deleted therefrom, and shall not invalidate the
remaining provisions.

11



Passed by Library Cooperative Governing Board on March 13, 2024

POLK COUNTY BOARD OF CITY OF.__POLK CITY
COUNTY COMMISSIONERS

Signed by: Signed by:

Printed name: Printed name:

Title: Title:

Date: Date:

Witness: Witness:

Printed name: Printed name:

12



